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PROCEEDTINGS

CHAIRMAN EDGAR: All right. Good morning all. Call
this hearing to order.

We'll begin by asking our staff to read the notice.

MS. BROWN: By notice issued April 12th, 2007, this
time and place was set for a hearing in Docket Number
060162-EI, petition by Progress Energy Florida, Inc., for
approval to recover modular cooling tower costs through the
environmental cost recovery clause. The purpose of the hearing
is set out in the notice.

CHAIRMAN EDGAR: Thank you. And we'll take
appearances.

MR. PERKO: Good morning, Madam Chair. My name is
Gary Perko of the Hopping, Green & Sams Law Firm on behalf of
Progress Energy Florida.

MR. McGLOTHLIN: Good morning. I'm Joe McGlothlin,
Associate Public Counsel.

CHAIRMAN EDGAR: Thank you. And staff.

MS. BROWN: Martha Carter Brown and Lisa C. Bennett
on behalf of the Commission.

CHAIRMAN EDGAR: Thank you.

Ms. Brown, preliminary matters.

MS. BROWN: Yes, Chairman Edgar. The parties have
reached a stipulation on the procedure they wish to follow in

this case, which is described in the prehearing order. After
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opening statements of ten minutes a side, the prefiled
testimony and exhibits and staff's composite exhibit of
discovery responses can be entered into the record with the
parties waiving cross-examination. When that is done, the
hearing can be adjourned. The parties will file their
posthearing briefs on the stipulated record and the witnesses
have been excused. And I think that's all the preliminary
matters we have, and could start with opening statements, if
you'd like.

CHAIRMAN EDGAR: Okay. That was going to be my next
question. So are we ready for opening statements?

MS. BROWN: Yes, ma'am.

CHAIRMAN EDGAR: Okay. Mr. Perko, are you ready?

MR. PERKO: Yes, ma'am.

CHAIRMAN EDGAR: Okay. Ten minutes each. You are
recognized.

MR. PERKO: Thank you, Madam Chair, and good morning,
Commissioners. Again, I'm Gary Perko on behalf of Progress
Energy Florida. We appreciate this opportunity to present
Progress Energy's case, albeit brief, in support of its request
to recover the costs of the modular cooling tower project.
Because it's been some time since the Commission originally
addressed this matter in August 2006, I thought I'd start with
a brief summary of the project and how we got to where we are

today.
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As explained in the testimony of Progress Witness
Thomas Lawery, the Florida Department of Environmental
Protection's industrial wastewater permit for the Crystal River
plant includes a thermal limit of 96.5 degrees Fahrenheit on a
three-hour rolling average on the cooling water discharge from
the plant. Progress Energy is legally required to comply with
this permit limit no matter what the temperature of the inlet
waters are in the Gulf of Mexico.

Now in the summer of 2005 there was a dramatic
increase in the temperature in the inlet Gulf water. This led
Progress having to -- to having unprecedented derates of the
Crystal River Units 1 and 2 in order to comply with the permit
limit. When those derates occur on these baseloaded units,
Progress must replace that lost generation by using more
expensive oil or gas-fired units or by purchasing higher cost
power on the open market. As discussed in the testimony of
Progress Witness Javier Portuondo, the modular cooling towers
are the most cost-effective option for minimizing derates
associated with a thermal permit limit, while giving the
company the flexibility to evaluate whether a permanent
solution is needed for this problem, and, if so, what that
permanent solﬁtion should be.

Moreover, the project is projected to result in
significant fuel cost savings both cumulatively and in each of

the five years the towers are expected to be in operation.
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Those fuel savings are projected to exceed the estimated cost
of the project, thus benefiting the company's ratepayers. I
don't believe there's any question about the prudence or any
issue about the prudence of the project. Rather, the issue is
whether the costs are recoverable under either the ECRC or the
fuel clause.

Now as you may remember back in August when the
Commission first considered this matter, it was noted that
Progress Energy originally sought recovery of this project
under the fuel clause. We believe that request was appropriate
based on long-standing Commission precedent in what you'll be
hearing as Order Number 14546 which I will discuss later.

Based on discussion with staff, however, we amended
our petition to seek recovery under the ECRC in light of the
fact that the project was necessitated by an environmental
requirement in the Crystal River permit.

Staff recommended approval of the company's petition,
but after considerable discussion at the August Agenda
Conference the Commission decided to set this matter for
hearing specifically to determine whether the costs were
recoverable under the ECRC or the fuel clause.

Now turning to the ECRC, as explained in
Mr. Portuondo's testimony, the project is proper for recovery
under the ECRC because it satisfies the three criteria that the

Commission established in Order Number 94-044, which was the
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first order that implemented the environmental cost recovery
clause.

First, the costs of this project are being incurred
after April 13th, 1993, when the ECRC was first enacted by the
Legislature. Second, the need for this project to comply with
the DEP permit was triggered after the company's last test year
upon which rates are based. 2And, third, the costs of the
project are not recovered through some other cost recovery
mechanism or base rates.

I don't think there's any issue regarding the first
criteria since the costs are clearly being incurred after 1993.
However, OPC's witnesses argue that the project does not
satisfy the second criterion because the thermal permit limit
was established before the company's last rate case.

As discussed in Mr. Portuondo's direct and rebuttal
testimony, however, the relevant language of Order
94-004 states, and I quote, the activity must be legally
required to comply with a governmentally imposed environmental
regulation that was enacted or became effective, or whose
effect was triggered after the company's last test year upon
which rates are based.

Now OPC's witnesses gloss over the third part of that
criteria which focuses on when the effect of the environmental
requirement was triggered rather than just the date it was put

in place. As Mr. Portuondo's rebuttal testimony explains, the
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10

modular cooling tower project satisfies this criteria because
the need for the additional cooling water capacity to comply
with the environmental requirement was triggered by the
unusually high inlet water temperatures during the summer of
2005. Now those unusually high water temperatures were not
fully analyzed until the company submitted its MFRs and its
base rates were approved in its 2005 rate proceeding. 1In fact,
the decision to implement the project was not made until
February 2006. Thus, the project satisfies the second criteria
for ECRC recovery.

Now turning to the third criteria, whether the costs
are recovered through some other cost recovery mechanism or
base rates, OPC's witness effectively says that she's not
convinced that Progress has established that the costs are not
being recovered in base rates. That opinion is simply not
supported by the record. As exhibits to his direct testimony,
Mr. Portuondo provides the relevant schedules from the
company's MFRs in its 2005 rate case. Because the costs for
this project were not included in those schedules, they
demonstrate that the costs for the project were not anticipated
when the company's current base rates were established. As
recently as -- and although OPC's witness cautions against
relying on MFRs, as recently as the 2006 annual ECRC docket
this Commission has relied on MFRs in addressing whether costs

were included 1in base rates in connection with its
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consideration of FPL's request to recover costs of challenging
the Clean Air Interstate Rule. So this is by no means
something new for the Commission to do.

In addition, as Mr. Portuondo's rebuttal testimony
explains, OPC's witness is simply wrong in suggesting that
recovery of project costs would somehow contravene the
company's 2005 rate case settlement. The provision of the
settlement agreement the OPC witness cites precludes the
company from petitioning for new surcharges. It does not
prevent the company from recovering newly incurred costs under
an existing cost recovery program. Moreover, Paragraph 8 of
the settlement explicitly contemplates that new environmental
capital costs would be recovered under the ECRC.

In summary, the project is necessary to comply with
an environmental requirement whose full effect was not
triggered until after the company's last rate case, and the
costs of the projects are not being recovered through base
rates. Therefore, the project qualifies under the three
criteria for the ECRC recovery.

Now turning to the fuel clause, while we believe the
project costs are recoverable through the ECRC, we also believe
that given the unique nature of the significant fuel savings it
could also be appropriate to recover these costs through the
fuel clause. 1In 1985, Commission Order Number 14546

established comprehensive guidelines for the recovery of costs
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to the fuel clause. 1In that order the Commission recognized
that certain unanticipated costs are appropriate for recovery
under the fuel clause on a case-by-case basis. Specifically
the Commission recognized the recovery is appropriate for, and
again I'll quote, fossil fuel-related costs normally recovered
through base rates but which were not recognized or anticipated
in the cost levels used to determine current base rates and
which, if expended, will result in fuel savings to customers.

As I previously discussed, the costs of the modular
cooling tower project were not anticipated at the time of PEF's
last rate case. And as discussed in Mr. Portuondo's direct
testimony, the project will result in significant fuel savings
to PEF's ratepayers by avoiding derates to the Crystal River
units and thereby reducing the need for higher costs -- the
need to use higher cost units or to purchase more expensive
power on the market. As such, the costs of the project gqualify
for recovery through the fuel clause under the policies set
forth in Order Number 14546.

Now OPC's witness Mr. Hewson argues that the project
does not qualify for recovery under that order because the
project will not result in lower, what he terms, delivered fuel
costs. However, nothing in Order Number 14546 or subsequent
orders implementing it over the past 20 years has ever
specified that projects must be directly tied to delivered fuel

costs. To the contrary, as Mr. Portuondo's rebuttal explains,
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in Order Number 14546 the Commission expressly sought to
establish a flexible policy. 1In applying this flexible policy
over the last 20 or so years, the Commission has not sought to
limit the type of costs that are recoverable. Rather, it has
sought to ensure a link between the types of costs incurred and
the types of costs avoided.

An excellent example of this is the Commission's
approval of FPL's request to recover costs associated with an
uprate at its Turkey Point nuclear plant. The costs incurred
were of a capital nature and associated with nuclear
production, not fossil fuel. However, because the project
would allow FPL to lower total overall fuel costs by more than
the expected costs of the project, the Commission found that
the project fell within the scope of Order Number 14546. This
Commission precedent indicates that any costs that result in
overall fuel savings are potentially subject to recovery under
the fuel clause as fuel-related costs.

I would suggest that Mr. Hewson raises a red herring
when he opines that if the Commission approves recovery of this
project, it will have to approve recovery of virtually all O&M
projects. As Mr. Portuondo explains in his rebuttal testimony,
most O&M projects, including costs incurred in planned and
unplanned outages, are recognized and anticipated when base
rates are determined because they are meant to repair or

replace existing equipment due to natural wear and tear. By
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contrast, the costs of the modular cooling project were not
recognized or anticipated in the cost levels used to determine
the company's base rates. We're not talking about a normal
foreseeable O&M project here. No one could have foreseen the
unprecedented cooling water intake temperatures that
necessitated this project and they were simply beyond the
company's control. These are the types of volatile and
unpredictable costs that the Commission previously has
recognized that cost recovery clauses are designed to cover.

Now I'd like to touch upon one other point raised by
OPC Witness Merchant.

CHAIRMAN EDGAR: And, Mr. Perko, you're over time, so
I'll need you to wrap.

MR. PERKO: Okay. I just wanted to touch on one
point that Ms. Merchant raises. She goes into great detail
talking about ratemaking theory and the effect of this project
on Progress's earned rate of return. And I would suggest that
that discussion is irrelevant because this Commission has
established specific criteria in determining whether a project
is, 1is recoverable under the cost recovery clauses, and it has
specifically rejected a rate of -- an earnings test in
establishing whether costs are recoverable either under the
ECRC and also under the fuel clause. And with that, Madam
Chair, I'll conclude.

CHAIRMAN EDGAR: Thank you, Mr. Perko.
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Mr. McGlothlin.

MR. McGLOTHLIN: Yes. Thank you.

Commissioners, in the scheme of things this docket
and the amount of money involved in this docket is not as
impressive as some of the other things that come your way, but
the case does involve some important principles. And also from
the customer standpoint a thousand small cuts can be as painful
as a single large one. And we predict that if you approve this
request, others will follow.

We're going to sponsor the testimony of two
witnesses, Thomas Hewson and Patricia Merchant. Mr. Hewson is
a civil engineer by training and has been involved as a
consultant on environmental matters to the energy industry for
some 30 years and has offered expert testimony in more than a
dozen states. Ms. Merchant is our office's resident CPA and
has substantial regulatory experience, as you're aware.

The principle that I mentioned is discussed in
Ms. Merchant's testimony. It is that base rates continue to be
the primary means of overseeing and regulating a regulated
utility's financial condition. Base rates are designed to
recover general costs as opposed to tracking a specific one,
and they are designed to function in an environment of changing
customer patterns, changing revenue, changing costs, with the
objective of maintaining a reasonable return over time.

Cost recovery mechanisms are an exception to this

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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basic and fundamental ratemaking approach, and they are
designed to track precisely a single item of cost. Because
they are an exception they have eligibility criteria. And I
think it's important for the Commission to emphasize in this
case and others that it intends to police those eligibility
criteria to ensure that utilities do not attempt to enlarge the
scope of a cost recovery mechanism beyond the original intent.
Because the effect of allowing a cost that is technically
ineligible for inclusion to go through a cost recovery
mechanism is to increase the customers'!', the size of
customers' bills and is tantamount to an unwarranted and
backdoor rate increase. For that reason, we ask you to take a
close look at the rationale offered by the company in this
case.

To begin with, the, the ECRC claim, again, the
criterion is that the activity is legally required to comply
with the government-imposed environmental regulation that was
enacted or became effective or whose effect was triggered after
the company's last test year upon which rates are based. And I
agree with counsel that the question presented by this
application is the meaning of the word "triggered." It's
undisputed that the regulation in question has been in effect
since 1988, has been continuously in effect since that time,
which predates the last rate case. So the question is what

does the phrase "triggered by, " "triggered" mean? We contend
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that triggered means that regulation is in place but the
requirement to comply occurs later. And as a matter of fact,
the rule that is cited in Mr. Portuondo's rebuttal testimony is
of that ilk. 1In other words, the regulation is in place in
Year A, but it says that by Year B you will do thus and so.
That isn't what the company is arguing in this case. Instead,
the company argues that a change in climatic conditions, in
other words, the increase in temperatures is a triggering
effect. We contend that that is not a triggering event, it is
simply a change in operating conditions that may have the
effect of increasing the costs necessary to comply with a
regulation that has been in effect since 1988, and that's where
the dispute focuses. And we see the question as follows:
Should the Commission stretch the definition of trigger to
allow the utility to flow this cost through the ECRC in case,
in which case the customers' bills go up, or should it enforce
the definition of eligible costs, in which case the utility
absorbs those costs through base rates?

If you recall, the recovery mechanism is already a
utility favoring device. It has the effect of reducing risk,
ensuring recovery of the costs defined for inclusion. But to
extend it to include increases in what is basically O&M would
be an abuse of the clause. That would be detrimental to
customers.

With respect to the fuel cost recovery clause, I hope

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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the Commission will take time to review the number of times in
which the word "fossil" precedes "fuel" in the order that's
cited by counsel, and also to take into account the example
that is included in that order. The example of costs that can
be flowed through the clause even though they're base rate in
nature gave the example of the leasing of an oil terminal for a
short-term to make possible the purchase of o0il to be burned in
generating units at a particularly attractive price. What we
see here has reached -- is far afield from anything that, that
resembles that.

Bear in mind also that the company describes the
situation as follows. They are currently derating generating
units in order to lessen the impact on the temperature of the
water that exits the system. Economic dispatch is the norm,
it's the normal objective. That means you're using the lowest
cost resources available to meet customer demand. If you are
derating, that means you are departing from the norm and you're
imposing on the system abnormally high costs. So when a
measure is designed to eliminate abnormally high costs and get
back to the norm, can you really call that fuel savings? We
think instead it's another example of O&M that's necessary to,
to realize the objective of every utility, which is to operate
efficiently.

The company also says that it has two options: It

can continue to derate the unit or it can incur the costs here.
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That's a bit like saying I have two options: I can buy a tire
or I can continue to run on a flat.

We think that the option of derating should not be
regarded as coequal with the objective of returning from an
abnormally expensive situation to one in which the units are
operating in economic dispatch.

So for those reasons, we think that the proposed
measure fails to meet the criteria of either the environmental
cost recovery clause or the fuel cost recovery clause.

And I would end simply by noting that when
Ms. Merchant performs her exercise, it is not to impose an
earnings test, per se, but it's to make the point that if an
ineligible cost is precluded from going through a clause, that
is not a harsh result for the utility because the result would
be to require it to absorb those costs of base rates. And that
is the third option in this case. Counsel for the utility
would, would like to portray this as an either/or, being one
clause or the other, but the third alternative is to tell the
utility to look to its base rate earnings as it must with
respect to other costs that don't qualify for inclusion. And
the fact is that the, the impact on, on earnings in this case
would be de minimis. And base rates continue to have a
function, and the function is to ensure that the company has an
opportunity to continue to achieve a fair rate of return. And

in the event the impact of additional costs on that return is
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to make it less than fair, then the alternative is not to abuse
the cost recovery mechanism, but to seek an increase in base
rates, at which time the Commission would have the opportunity
to look at the totality of the company's circumstances. Thank
you.

CHAIRMAN EDGAR: Thank you, Mr. McGlothlin.

Commissioners?

Ms. Brown.

MS. BROWN: We can turn to the record at this point
and admit the testimony and exhibits.

Preliminarily, I would ask that you look at your
staff's comprehensive exhibit list. On Page 2 we corrected the
title of one exhibit. It's reflected correctly in the
prehearing order, but I just wanted to point that out to you.
And then before we get started, I think Mr. Perko has some
changes to the testimony of one of his witnesses.

CHAIRMAN EDGAR: Okay. Mr. Perko.

MR. PERKO: Yes. Madam Chair, in order to resolve an
objection that Mr. McGlothlin had to Mr. Portuondo's rebuttal
testimony, we've deleted some of the exhibit that originally
appeared in that testimony and changed the discussion within
the testimony to reflect that. There's no real substantive
change, but we just felt like it was probably easier to change
that testimony and exhibit to make it clear to understand. So

I've left that with each of you, with staff and the court
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reporter, and I believe Mr. McGlothlin has reviewed it. I
don't want to speak for him, but I think he's okay with that.

CHAIRMAN EDGAR: Mr. McGlothlin.

MR. McGLOTHLIN: I have reviewed it. 1It's
acceptable.

CHAIRMAN EDGAR: Okay. All right. Thank you,

Mr. Perko.

MS. BROWN: With that, Madam Chairman, we ask that
the prefiled testimony of the witnesses identified in
Section VI of the prehearing order be entered into the order.

CHAIRMAN EDGAR: Okay. The prefiled testimony of the
witnesses with the substituted revised rebuttal testimony of

Witness Portuondo will be entered into the record.
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BEFORE THE FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

DockeT No. 060162-El

In re: Amended Petition of Progress Energy Florida, Inc.
to recover modular cooling tower costs

through the environmental cost recovery clause.

REVISED DIRECT TESTIMONY OF
JAVIER PORTUONDO

July 13, 2006

Please state your name and business address.
My name is Javier J. Portuondo. My business address is Post Office Box

14042, St. Petersburg, Florida 33733.

By whom are you employed and in what capacity?
| am employed by Progress Energy Service Company, LLC, as Director of

Regulatory Planning.

What is the scope of your duties?
Currently, | am responsible for regulatory planning, cost recovery and pricing
functions for both Progress Energy Florida (PEF or “Company”) and Progress

Energy Carolinas.

PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA
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Please describe your educational background and professional
experience.

| received a Bachelors of Science degree in Accounting from the University of
South Florida. | began my employment with Florida Power Corporation in
1985. During my 20 years with Florida Power Corporation and PEF, | have
held a number of financial and accounting positions. In 1993, | became
Manager, Regulatory Services, and | recently became Director, Regulatory

Planning.

What is the purpose of your testimony?

The purpose of my testimony is to support the Company’'s request for
recovery of reasonably and prudently incurred costs of modular cooling
towers that PEF plans to install and operate at its Crystal River plant.
Specifically, | will explain why recovery of the cooling tower costs through the

Environmental Cost Recovery Clause is appropriate.

Are you sponsoring any Exhibits with your direct testimony?

Yes. | am sponsoring the following exhibits:

e Exhibit No. __ (JP-1), which is an excerpt of Schedule C-6 of the
minimum filing requirements (MFRs) that PEF submitted in its recent
ratemaking proceeding in Docket No. 050078-El;

e Exhibit No. __ (JP-2), which is an excerpt of Schedule B-8 of the MFRs

submitted in Docket No. 050078-El; and
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e Exhibit No. __ (JP-3), which is a table that provides PEF’s projection of
fuel cost savings expected to result from the modular cooling tower

project.

Please briefly describe the Modular Cooling Tower Project.
The project involves installation and operation of modular cooling towers in
order to minimize “de-rates” of PEF’s Crystal River Units 1 and 2 necessary

to comply with the permit limit on the temperature of cooling water discharged

from the Crystal River plant (“thermal permit limit”). As discussed in more

detail in the pre-filed testimony of Thomas Lawery, the project involves
installation and operation of modular cooling towers in the summer months in
order to reduce the discharge canal temperatures. This will enable PEF to
reduce the number and extent of de-rates necessary to comply with the
thermal permit limit and thereby reduce replacement fuel and purchase power

costs.

What is the basis for PEF’s request to recover costs of the Modular
Cooling Tower Project through the Environmental Cost Recovery
Clause?

The ECRC, Section 366.8255, Florida Statues, authorizes the Commission to
review and approve recovery of environmental compliance costs prudently
incurred by electric utilities. In Order No. PSC-94-0044-FOF-EIl, the

Commission established the policy that recovery of such costs associated
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with environmental compliance activities should be recoverable through

ECRC if:

1)  such costs were prudently incurred after April 13, 1993

2) the activity is legally required to comply with a governmentally imposed
environmental regulation enacted, became effective, or whose effect
was triggered after the company’s last test year upon which rates are
based; and

3) such costs are not recovered through some other cost recovery

mechanism or through base rates.

The need for the modular cooling towers was triggered by the unusually high
inlet water temperatures for extended periods during the summer of 2005.
These high temperatures led to the unprecedented de-ratings of the Crystal
River plants which were necessary to comply with the permit limit for the

temperature of cooling water discharged from the plant.

Were you involved in PEF’s last ratemaking proceeding in Docket No.
050078-E1?
Yes. | submitted pre-filed testimony in that docket and | was responsible for

the preparation of the MFRs that PEF submitted on April 29, 2005.
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What are the projected costs of the modular cooling tower project?

As Mr. Lawery explains in his testimony, the project is estimated to cost
approximately $2 to $3 million per year beginning in 2006. Annual costs are
expected to include rental fees and other O&M expenditures. Additionally, in
2006, PEF expects to incur one-time capital expenses of approximately $1.5

million to $2 million for initial installation.

Are the costs of the modular cooling tower project recovered through
the base rates established in Docket No. 050078-EI?

No. The modular cooling tower project was not anticipated when PEF’s
current base rates were established in Docket No. 050078-El. The
Company’s evaluation of the project was prompted by unusually high inlet
water temperatures and associated de-rates during the summer of 2005.
Thus, the costs of the project were not anticipated when the Company
submitted its rate case MFRs in April 2005. This is demonstrated by Exhibit

Nos. _ (JP-1)and __ (JP-2).

Exhibit No. __ (JP-1) is an excerpt (page 3) from MFR Schedule C-6. Among
other things, Schedule C-6 presented the Company’'s projected operating
budget for the 2006 test year. As shown on line 12 of Exhibit No. __ (JP-1),
the Company projected no rental costs associated with its fossil fuel-fired

steam generating units. Had rental costs associated with the modular cooling
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towers been anticipated when the MFRs were filed, such costs would have

been reflected on that line.

Exhibit No. __ (JP-2) is an excerpt (page 1) from MFR Schedule B-8. That
schedule presented the monthly plant balances for the projected 2006 test
year. Had PEF anticipated capital expenditures associated with the cooling
tower project, the resulting plant addition would have been reflected on line
26 for FERC account 314. See 18 CFR Part 101, p. 382 (4-1-05 edition)
(defining account 314 to include “all costs installed of main turbine-driven
units and all accessory equipment” such as the “Cooling system, including
towers[.]”). However, the monthly balances shown on that line do not include
any increases that would accommodate plant additions for the modular

cooling towers.

The costs of the modular cooling towers also were not anticipated when the
Commission approved PEF’s current base rates. As noted above, the
Company’s evaluation of the project was prompted by record high
temperatures and de-rates in the summer of 2005. The evaluation was not
completed until after the Commission approved PEF’s current rates in

September 2005.
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Please describe the Company’s analysis of fuel cost savings estimated
as a result of the cooling tower project.

Fuel cost savings were analyzed based on the amount of avoided de-rates
that are expected to result from the project. First, historical de-rate amounts
attributable to the thermal limit were compiled for the years 2003-2005. Each
hourly de-rate amount was distributed throughout the May-September period
being evaluated based on the hourly load forecast for that period. The
highest hourly de-rate amount recorded during the historical period was
assigned to the hour with the highest projected load for the forecast period.
The hour with the second highest de-rate amount was assigned to the hour
with next highest projected load, and so forth. This pattern continued in order
of descending de-rate volumes until each expected hour of de-rate had been

assigned.

For modeling purposes, the data was summarized into a “typical” week profile
for each month in the evaluation period. Avoided de-rates were capped at
330 MW based on the physical limitations of the modular cooling towers. The
resulting profiles were then used as inputs to a dispatch simulation model,
which projected total system costs. These costs were compared against a
scenario in which no thermal de-rate parameters were imposed on the
system. The difference in costs was then used to derive the $/mwh benefit of
avoiding thermal de-rates. This represents gross fuel savings. Because the

modular cooling towers are expected to use approximately 6 MWs of auxiliary
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power, the cost of this auxiliary power was subtracted from the gross fuel

savings to arrive at net fuel savings.

What are the results of the fuel cost savings analysis?

As shown in Exhibit No. __ (JP-3), the cooling tower project is projected to
result in cumulative net fuel cost savings of approximately $45 million over
five years. Additionally, in each of the five years, annual fuel cost savings are

projected to exceed the estimated costs of the project.

How does the Company propose to recover the costs of the project?

PEF proposes to recover all capital and O&M costs incurred for the project.
Actual costs incurred for the project would be subject to Commission review
for prudence and reasonableness as they are submitted for recovery through

the Environmental Cost Recovery Clause.

Does this conclude your testimony?

Yes, it does.
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BEFORE THE FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
DocKET No. 060162-El

In re: Amended Petition of Progress Energy Florida, Inc.

to recover modular cooling tower costs.

DIRECT TESTIMONY OF
THOMAS LAWERY

January 22, 2007

Please state your name and business address.
My name is Thomas Lawery. My business address is 8202 West Venable

Street, Crystal River, Florida 34429.

By whom are you employed and in what capacity?
| am employed by Progress Energy Florida, Inc. (PEF) as Manager of

Regional Engineering.

What are your responsibilities in that position?
| provide engineering and technical support to the fossil power plants for PEF.
This includes projects and troubleshooting for the Crystal River fossil plants,

Anclote plant, Suwannee plant and Bartow plant.

PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA
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Please describe your educational background and professional
experience.

| have a B.S. degree in Electrical Engineering from Florida State University
and | am presently pursuing an MBA at the University of Tampa. | am a
registered Professional Engineer in Florida with seventeen years experience
in fossil power plant operation and design. | have been involved in financial
and technical aspects of managing, evaluating and developing power

generation assets.

What is the purpose of your testimony?

The purpose of my testimony is to support the Company's request for
recovery of costs for installation and operation of modular cooling towers at
PEF's Crystal River plant. Specifically, | will describe the modular cooling
tower project, present cost estimates for the project, and describe how the

Company will assess the effectiveness of the project.

Are you sponsoring any exhibits with your testimony?

Yes. | am sponsoring Exhibit No. __ (TL-1), which is a chart that shows
cooling water inlet temperatures for the summer months in 2003 through
2005, and the associated de-rates that have been necessary to ensure
compliance with the permit limit for the cooling water temperature discharged
from PEF’s Crystal River plant during the same time period. | am also

sponsoring Exhibit No. (TL-2), which is the Florida Department of
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Environmental Protection (FDEP) industrial wastewater permit for the Cyrstal
River Plant. Finally, | am sponsoring Exhibit No. __ (TL-3), which is a chart
that shows cooling water inlet temperatures and unit loads for the time period
May 1, 2006 through July 31, 2006. It also includes the associated amount of
de-rates that have been necessary to ensure compliance with the permit limit
for the temperature of the cooling water discharged from PEF’s Crystal River

plant during the same time period.

Please describe the modular cooling tower project.

The project involves the installation and operation of modular cooling towers
in the summer months in order to minimize “de-rates” of Crystal River Units 1
and 2 (CR-1 and CR-2) necessary to comply with the permit limit on the
temperature of cooling water discharges from the Crystal River plant. The
project involves installation and operation of modular cooling towers in the
summer months (mid-May through mid-September) in order to reduce the
discharge canal temperature. This will enable PEF to reduce the number and
extent of de-rates and thereby reduce replacement fuel and purchase power

costs.

The specific type and capacity of modular units were selected based upon
the results of a competitive bidding process. Based on physical limitations,
environmental permitting considerations and projected temperature

decreases, the Company has assumed a water flow capacity of
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approximately 180,000 gallons per minute for purposes of analysis. At this
capacity, the rental towers would reduce hourly de-rates attributable to the

thermal permit limit by approximately 330 MW.

What is meant by the term “de-rate”?

A “de-rate” is a temporary reduction in the output of a generating unit.
Because CR-1 and CR-2 are base-load coal units, whenever those units are
de-rated PEF must replace the lost generation by using more expensive oil or

gas-fired units, or by purchasing higher-cost power on the open market.

Why have de-rates been necessary to comply with the thermal permit
limit?

At PEF’s Crystal River plant, water is removed from the Gulf of Mexico and
used to condense turbine exhaust steam to water. The Crystal River
generating units share a common discharge canal that sends the cooling
water back into the Gulf of Mexico. The FDEP industrial wastewater permit
for the Crystal River plant, which is provided as Exhibit No. __ (TL-2) includes
a limit on the temperature of cooling water discharges (i.e., 96.52 F 3-hour
rolling average). This limit must always be met regardless of the temperature

of the inlet waters from the Gulf of Mexico.

The primary strategy for complying with the thermal permit limit is the

operation of permanent cooling towers. Plant operation and maintenance
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personnel strive to maintain a 100% availability of the towers during months
of peak usage. Once the cooling capacity of the towers is reached, the only
other immediate option to ensure compliance with the thermal permit limit is
to de-rate CR-1, CR-2 or both. Recently, de-rates necessary to ensure permit
compliance have increased due to weather conditions beyond PEF’s control
that have increased the temperature of inlet waters for the CR-1 and CR-2
cooling systems. As shown in Exhibit No. __ (TL-2), inlet water temperatures
and associated thermal de-rates were particularly severe in the summer of

2005.

In general, what are the economic effects of de-rates due to the
temperature permit limit?

As | previously noted, whenever the Crystal River units are de-rated, PEF
must replace the lost generation by using more expensive oil or gas-fired
units, or by purchasing higher-cost power on the open market. De-rates due
to the thermal permit _Iimit have occurred mostly during the hottest summer
days during peak demand periods when fuel and purchase power costs are
at a peak. In addition, if off system sales opportunities are available during
the periods when CR-1 and/or CR-2 are de-rated, those opportunities and the

associated customer benefits are lost.

Has the Company explored the possibility of obtaining less stringent

permit conditions?
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Yes. Based on discussions with FDEP, however, the likelihood of obtaining
less stringent permit conditions is negligible and would depend upon the
results of lengthy and expensive scientific studies that may prove

inconclusive.

Has PEF explored other alternatives to the modular cooling towers?

Yes. The Company evaluated and compared several alternatives, including:
(a) installation of new permanent helper cooling towers; (b) installation of
additional cells to the existing cooling towers; (c) enhancement of existing
cooling tower fan performance to reduce recirculation and interference; and
(d) installation of additional dilution pumps to dilute the temperature of the
water in the discharge canal. Based on the relative efficiencies and costs of
the various options, however, PEF determined that the modular cooling tower
solution would be most cost-effective. Moreover, use of modular towers will
enable the Company to assess whether the thermal de-rate problem is a
temporary or cyclical phenomenon before costs are unnecessarily expended
on a permanent solution. Unlike permanent towers, the modular towers can
be easily mobilized and used at other locations if they are no longer needed

at Crystal River at some point in the future.

What is the status of the Modular Cooling Tower Project?
The Modular Cooling Towers were placed in service in June 20086, after the

submittal of PEF’s petition for cost recovery.
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How are you calculating the avoided summer de-rates?

We are using a model that looks at the actual measured hot water
temperature in the canal and actual measured cool water temperature from
the permanent helper cooling towers to predict what the POD temperature
would have been without the modular cooling towers. This is hourly data
from the Plant Information system for May 1 through July 31. For hours
where a de-rate would have been required, the model calculates the amount
of de-rate that would have been necessary in order to achieve the targeted
POD temperature. The logic for the de-rate is to begin with Unit 1 and
continue de-rates until the target POD temperature is achieved or the unit is
de-rated to minimum load (120 MW). If more de-rates are required, the
model then de-rates Unit 2 until either the target is achieved or the unit is de-

rated to minimum load (120 MW).

Have the Modular Cooling Towers been effective at reducing the number
of summer de-rates?

Yes. The Modular Cooling Towers have successfully reduced the number of
required de-rates for Crystal River Units 1 and 2. As illustrated in Exhibit No.
_ (TL-3), PEF only had to de-rate once for thermal permit issues through the
end of July 2006. The modular cooling towers are estimated to have reduced

necessary de-rates by 23,955 MWhs.
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Can you quantify any 2006 fuel cost and net fuel cost savings
attributable to this project?

The 2006 net fuel savings attributable to this project were calculated by using
an industry standard unit commitment dispatch model. For each event where
de-rates were avoided, two separate cases were modeled: one case with
actual generation of CR-1 and CR-2, and another case with generation of
CR-1 and/or CR-2 reduced to the extent of calculated avoided de-rates. The
fuel cost differences between the cases were then calculated to arrive at the
gross benefit of reduced fuel costs associated with avoided de-rates as a
result of the modular cooling towers. Using this methodology, the calculation
of gross benefits from avoided de-rates yields a total of $4,033,020. The
value of additional auxiliary loads io power the modular cooling towers is

$289,057. The net of the two numbers yields net savings of $3,743,963.

What are the projected costs of the temporary cooling tower project?

PEF incurred approximately $516,000 capital costs and $4.6 million in O&M
costs for the project during 2006. The one-time capital expenses included
installation of the modular cooling towers and ancillary equipment, such as
power transformers, switchgear, and cable. In future years, PEF estimates
project costs of approximately $3 million to $4 million annually. The annual
expenditures are expected to include O&M expenses for unit mobilization and

setup, rental fees, de-mobilization, and fill replacement.
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What steps is PEF taking to ensure that the costs of the modular
temporary cooling tower project are reasonable and prudent?

PEF conducted a competitive bidding process to ensure that costs were
reasonable and prudent. As part of the bid evaluation process, PEF analyzed
traditional leasing and lease-to-own options submitted by various bidders.
After reviewing various proposals, PEF elected to go with a 5 year contract
with Aggreko, LLC containing provisions allowing PEF to purchase the towers
if it is determined that they are the appropriate long-term solution, or cancel
the contract if it is determined this is not a long-term issue or that there is a
better long-term solution based on further analysis. At this time PEF believes
it is still premature to make a final determination as to the correct long-term

solution.

Does this conclude your testimony?

Yes, it does.




10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18

19
20
21

22

Juyi35s

DIRECT TESTIMONY
OF
THOMAS A. HEWSON JR.
On Behalf Of The Office of Public Counsel
Before the
Florida Public Service Commission

Docket No. 060162-E1

Introduction
PLEASE STATE YOUR NAME.

My name is Thomas A. Hewson Jr.

ON WHOSE BEHALF ARE YOU SUBMITTING TESTIMONY?
I am testifying on behalf of the Citizens of the State Florida as represented by

Florida’s Office of Public Counsel (OPC).

HOW ARE YOU CURRENTLY EMPLOYED?

Since 1981, I have been a principal at Energy Ventures Analysis, Inc (EVA), an
energy consulting firm located at 1901 North Moore Street in Arlington, Virginia.
Between 1976-1981, I had been employed as a project manager at Energy and

Environmental Analysis Inc in Arlington, Virginia.
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WHAT ARE YOUR QUALIFICATIONS FOR PROVIDING YOUR
TESTIMONY?

For 30 years, 1 have provided numerous reports and provided testimony on the
effects of environmental requirements on the electric utility industry operations
for the electric utility industry, fuel suppliers, fuel transporters, electric utility
commissions and industrial trade groups. I have a Bachelor of Science in
Engineering degree in Civil Engineering from Princeton University (1976). My

resume is attached as Exhibit ___ (TAH-1).

HAVE YOU PREVIOUSLY TESTIFIED BEFORE THE FLORIDA
PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION?

Yes, I have. I testified previously on behalf of the Office of Public Counsel for an
Environmental Cost Recovery Clause request by Tampa Electric Company as part

of Commission Docket No: 050958-E1

HAVE YOU PREVIOUSLY TESTIFIED AS AN ENVIRONMENTAL
EXPERT BEFORE OTHER REGULATORY BODIES?

Yes, I have. I have testified as an environmental expert in the energy industry in
proceedings before numerous other regulatory bodies in California, Delaware,
Georgia, Maine, Maryland, Massachusetts, Minnesota, Pennsylvania, South
Dakota, Vermont, and Virginia. I have also testified in legislative proceedings in
Idaho, Massachusetts, New Hampshire and Wisconsin as well as the US

Congress. I have also testified in legal judicial proceedings in West Virginia.
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PLEASE DESCRIBE THE ASSIGNMENT YOU WERE GIVEN BY THE
OFFICE OF PUBLIC COUNCIL.

EVA was asked to review the Progress Energy Florida (PEF) request for cost
recovery of installation and operation of modular cooling towers at the Crystal
River plant. Specifically, EVA was asked if these costs qualify for cost recovery

under the Environmental Cost Recovery Clause (ECRC) or the Fuel Clause.

Summary
PLEASE SUMMARIZE YOUR FINDINGS.

While the modular cooling tower project may be an appropriate response to
reduce unit derates at Crystal River station during the summer months, the project
is not be eligible for cost recovery under either the environmental cost recovery
clause (ECRC) or the fuel clause. PEF should recover its costs for this project

through base rates.

Environmental Cost Recovery Clause Eligibility
CAN YOU SUMMARIZE BRIEFLY THE ELIGIBILITY CRITERIA FOR

COST RECOVERY UNDER THE ECRC?

A: Section 366.8255 of the Florida Statutes directs the Florida Public Service
Commission to permit the recovery of certain qualifying environmental
compliance costs incurred by electric utilities through the Environmental

Cost Recovery Clause. The Commission defined the eligibility criteria for
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ECRC cost recovery projects in its Order No. PSC-9400044-FOF-EI. To
qualify, an environmental project must demonstrate the following:

1. Such costs were prudently incurred after April 13, 1993;

2. The activity is legally required to comply with a government imposed
environmental regulation that was enacted or became effective, or whose
effect was triggered after the company’s last test year upon which rates are
based; and

3. Such costs are not recovered through some other cost recovery mechanism

or through base rates.

BASED UPON YOUR INVESTIGATION, DO YOU BELIEVE THAT THE
CRYSTAL RIVER STATION’S MODULAR COOLING TOWER
PROJECT MEETS THESE ELIGIBILITY CRITERIA FOR COST
RECOVERY THROUGH THE ECRC ?

No, it does not qualify. The modular cooling tower project does not satisfy the
second criterion in the order that the activity be triggered by a legally required
governmentally imposed regulation that was enacted or became effective after the

company’s last test year upon which rates are based.

THE MODULAR COOLING TOWER PROJECT IS BEING USED TO
MEET WHICH GOVERNMENTAL REQUIREMENT?
The modular cooling tower is being used to help comply with the Crystal River

station water discharge’s maximum allowable temperature limitation of 96.5
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degrees. This limitation is required under Section L.A.1 of the station’s National

Pollution Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit #FL0000159.

This NPDES permit limitation is not a new requirement, having been in place
since 1988. This 1988 effective date predates Progress Energy Florida’s last test
year upon which its rates are based (2006). Therefore, this project does not meet
the Commission’s 2* ECRC qualification criteria of:
“a government imposed environmental regulation that was enacted or
became effective, or whose effect was triggered after the company’s last

test year upon which rates are based”

PROGRESS ENERGY ARGUES THAT THE PROJECT QUALIFIES
UNDER THE ECRC BECAUSE THE EFFECT OF THE WARMER
INTAKE WATER TRIGGERED THE NEED FOR ADDITIONAL
COOLING WATER CAPACITY THAT WAS NECESSARY TO COMPLY
WITH THE MAXIMUM TEMPERATURE LIMIT WITHOUT
DERATING THE UNITS OUTPUT. DO YOU BELIEVE THAT THE
WARMER INTAKE WATER IS A “TRIGGERING EVENT” AS
DEFINED UNDER THE COMMISSION’S 2" ECRC QUALIFICATION
CRITERION?

No, I do not.
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Florida Progress broad interpretation would suggest that any changes in station
operating conditions (e.g. intake water temperature) that require any new
measures to comply with existing environmental limitations should qualify under
the ECRC. Under this line of reasoning, any future changes in fuel market
conditions that would trigger different environmental compliance measures (e.g.
FGD scrubbers become cost-effective with rapid low sulfur coal price escalations)

should also qualify for ECRC treatment.

Such an interpretation goes far beyond the Commission’s language that was very
explicit. The “triggering event” clearly refers only to changes in governmental
regulation requirements, not operating conditions. This language was likely
adopted in response to environmental requirements that can be phased in over a
several year period. Recent examples would include the Clean Air Interstate Rule
(Phase I- 2009 (for NOx)/2010 (for SO2), Phase II- 2015) and Clean Air Mercury
Rule (Phase I- 2010, Phase II-2018). Therefore, projects in response to the
scheduled phasing in of future tighter governmental limitations under an existing
rule may qualify for ECRC treatment, while changes in operating conditions to

meet existing limitations do not qualify.

Since the NPDES temperature limitation has been in place since 1988, it is clearly
an existing limitation that has not been changed. The warmer intake water
temperature is not a change in a governmental requirement but a change in

operating conditions that may require PEF to adopt new measures.
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Fuel Clause Eligibility

PEF ALSO ATTEMPTS TO JUSTIFY RECOVERING THE PROJECT
COSTS ASSOCIATED WITH THE MODULAR COOLING TOWER
PROJECT THROUGH THE FUEL COST RECOVERY PROCEEDING.
DO YOU HAVE ANY COMMENTS?

Yes. It is my understanding that the Commission in its Order #14546 indicated
the fuel clause was limited to only fossil fuel-related costs. This order identified
ten different categories that would be considered as eligible costs recoverable
through the fuel clause. I do not consider the modular cooling tower project
qualifies under any of the ten “fossil-fuel related” categories and therefore this

project should not be eligible for cost recovery under the fuel clause.

WHY DO YOU CONSIDER THE MODULAR COOLING TOWER
PROJECT COSTS NOT TO BE “FOSSIL FUEL RELATED”?

The modular cooling tower project was designed specifically to reduce unit
derates on Crystal River Units #1-2 that were triggered in order to maintain
compliance with the maximum temperature limitation for the cooling water canal

discharge. This project will not have any direct effect on the Crystal River units’

delivered coal prices. Like many'operation and maintenance projects. it is

specifically designed to improve station performance. not lower fuel prices. As

such, it would be more appropriate for project costs to be recovered through base

rates.
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PROGRESS ENERGY ARGUES THAT THE MODULAR COOLING
PROJECT MEETS THE COMMISSION CATEGORY 10 ELIGIBILITY
REQUIREMENT FOR FUEL CLAUSE RECOVERY SINCE THE
PROJECT WILL REDUCE SYSTEM COSTS BY REDUCING POWER
PURCHASE COSTS AND/OR HIGHER PEF UNIT COSTS DURING

COOLING WATER DERATING EVENTS. DO YOU AGREE?

No, I do not. Under Commission Order #14546, the category 10 qualification

criterion was for:

“10.  Fossil fuel related costs normally recovered through base rates but
were not recognized or anticipated in the cost levels used to determine
current base rates and which, if expended, would result in fuel savings to
customers. Recovery of such costs should be made on a case by case basis

after Commission approval.”

First, as discussed earlier, the modular cooling water project will have no direct

effect on the Crystal River station’s delivered fossil fuel prices.

Second, Progress Energy’s argument that it will provide ratepayers savings
through improved station performance (from lowering forced derating events) and
avoiding higher cost power sources is not sufficient to qualify for fuel clause

treatment. These more indirect fuel savings are clearly outside the Commission’s
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intent for inclusion in a fuel clause. If the Commission applied this test for fuel
clause treatment, most operation and maintenance projects would qualify for
similar fuel clause treatment since they are designed to improve unit performance
and availability and thereby minimize the dependence on higher cost power

sources.

The intent of the fuel clause is limited to fuel-related changes not performance

related changes.

DOES THAT COMPLETE YOUR TESTIMONY?

Yes it does.
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DIRECT TESTIMONY
OF
PATRICIA W. MERCHANT, CPA
On Behalf of the Office of Public Counsel
Before the
Florida Public Service Commission

Docket No. 060162-EI

Introduction

PLEASE STATE YOUR NAME AND BUSINESS ADDRESS.
My name is Patricia W. Merchant. My business address is Room 812, 111

West Madison Street, Tallahassee Florida, 32399-1400.

BY WHOM ARE YOU EMPLOYED AND WHAT IS YOUR
POSITION?

I am a Certified Public Accountant licensed in the State of Florida and
employed as a Senior Legislative Analyst with the Office of Public Counsel

(OPC). Ibegan my employment with OPC in March, 2005.

PLEASE DESCRIBE YOUR EDUCATIONAL BACKGROUND AND
PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE.

In 1981, I received a Bachelor of Science degree with a major in accounting
from Florida State University. In that same year, I was employed by the
Florida Public Service Commission (PSC) as an auditor in the Division of

Auditing and Financial Analysis. In 1983, I joined the PSC’s Division of
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Water and Sewer as an analyst in the Bureau of Accounting. From May, 1989
to February, 2005 I was a regulatory supervisor in the Division of Water and

Wastewater which evolved into the Division of Economic Regulation.

HAVE YOU PREVIOUSLY TESTIFIED BEFORE THE FLORIDA
PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION?
Yes, I have testified numerous times before the PSC. I have also testified

before the Division of Administrative Hearings as an expert witness.

ARE YOU SPONSORING AN EXHIBIT IN THIS CASE?
Yes. I am sponsoring the following exhibits, which are attached to my

testimony:

Exhibit PWM-1 is a summary of my regulatory experience and qualifications.

Exhibit PWM-2 is an analysis of the impact that absorbing the 2006 modular
cooling tower estimated capital and operating costs would have on PEF’s

earned return on equity for 2006. |

WHAT IS THE PURPOSE OF YOUR TESTIMONY?

The purpose of my testimony is to discuss the proper regulatory treatment of
modular cooling tower costs that PEF seeks to recover either through the
Environmental Cost Recovery Clause (“ECRC”) or the Fuel and Purchased

Power Cost Recovery Clause (“fuel clause™).
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HAVE YOU REVIEWED PEF’s PETITION FOR APPROVAL OF THE
COSTS ASSOCIATED WITH THE MODULAR COOLING TOWERS
IN THIS DOCKET?

Yes. PEF’s original pet.ition was filed on February 24, 2006 and was styled
as a request for recovery of the modular cooling towers through the fuel
clause. On page two of its original petition, PEF stated that the costs of the
modular cooling tower project are unanticipated and will result in significant
savings to ifs ratepayers, and asserted the costs qualify for recovery through
the fuel clause pursuant to Order No. 14546. PEF subsequently revised its
filing and requested authority to collect the costs through the ECRC. In its
amended petition, PEF stated that this change was based on consultations with

Commission staff.

HOW DOES YOUR TESTIMONY RELATE TO THAT OF TOM
HEWSON, WHO ALSO IS TESTIFYING FOR THE CITIZENS?

Citizen’s witness Hewson addresses whether the costs for specific requested
projects are required by new environmental law, regulation or mandate and
are thus eligible for inclusion in the ECRC, or alternatively are appropriate to
be recovered through the fuel clause. He and I both apply the results of his
analysis to the criteria for eiigibility for recovery through either of the two
cost recovery clauses. In support of the result we seek, I will also testify
regarding ratemaking theory and the proper roles of base rates and cost

recovery clauses in designing fair and reasonable rates.

vuulob
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ARE YOU TAKING ISSUE WITH THE PRUDENCE OF THIS
PROJECT?
No. The company should take all reasonable efforts to make sure that it
complies with all environmental regulations and that the costs that it incurs are
the most economical and prudent decisions based on the circumstances that
occur in maintaining and operating its plants. We have not investigated or
challenged the prudence of these costs. However, a cost may be prudent and
not be appropriate for recovery through a cost recovery clause. We take issue
with PEF’s proposal to collect the costs through a cost recovery clause rather

than through base rates.

WHAT ARE THE TWO MAIN TYPES OF RATE RECOVERY
MECHANISMS AVAILABLE TO ELECTRIC UTILITIES?

The principal rate recovery mechanisms available for regulated electric
utilities are base rates and special cost recovery clauses. Each recovery
method has its defined role, and they are designed to work together to ensure
that rates paid by customers are fair, just, reasonable and not unduly

discriminatory.

PLEASE DESCRIBE THE BASE RATE RECOVERY MECHANISM.
Base rates are designed to allow the utility the opportunity to recover its
prudent operating costs and a reasonable rate of return on its investment in
utility plant. In a base rate case, a test year is used to examine the levels of
plant investment and operating costs that represent the levels that will be

incurred when the rates go into effect. Adjustments are made to remove any
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unreasonable amounts and to normalize nonrecurring or extraordinary
amounts in the test year. By analyzing the data included in the utility’s rate
request, the Commission determines the total amount of revenues the utility
should be allowed to collect and then designs rates that will generate that

revenue figure.

HOW DOES THE COMMISSION ALLOW THE UTILITY THE
OPPORTUNITY TO RECOVER A REASONABLE RATE OF
RETURN ON ITS INVESTMENT?

In setting rates, the Commission determines the overall rate of return on the
utility’s investment in its utility plant. This overall cost of capital is based on
the weighted average cost of debt, equity and other sources of capital. The
cost of debt and other sources of capital are determined based on stated cost
rates, and the cost of equity is based on the level of profit and business risk for

which utility shareholders should be compensated.

HOW DOES REGULATORY THEORY ADDRESS THE SUBJECT OF
DESIGNING RATES TO BE SUFFICIENT FOR FUTURE PERIODS?
Ratemaking principles recognize that after rates are set, the future
relationships between costs and revenues will change from those levels used
in setting the rates. The level of a particular cost may increase, decrease, or
the cost may go away altogether. Costs that were non-existent during the test
period may arise after the rates take effect. Projected revenue levels will also
vary based on customer growth, changes in consumption, or a combination of

both. An increase in a particular expense level does not automatically cause a

6
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utility to earn less than its fair rate of return on its investment or to not recover
the expense. In order to determine whether an increase in a single cost is
affecting a utility adversely, it is necessary to consider the overall relationship

of total revenues and total costs.

HOW DOES ONE GAUGE WHETHER A UTILITY IS RECOVERING
ALL OF ITS OPERATING COSTS AT A GIVEN POINT IN TIME?
If the utility’s revenues exceed its expenses, including debt costs, then it has

recovered all of its operating costs from customers.

HOW DOES ONE GAUGE WHETHER THE RETURN ON
INVESTMENT IS REASONABLE AT A GIVEN POINT IN TIME?

The Commission sets rates using the mid-point of the authorized rate of return
on equity (ROE) and then establishes a range for the ROE. If the utility earns
within the range, generally set at 100 basis points on either side of the mid-
point, then the utility is earning a fair return on its investment and is
recovering its prudent operating costs. If the utility is earning above or below

the range on its ROE, then it is over- or under-earning, respectively.

PLEASE DESCRIBE THE VARIOUS COST RECOVERY CLAUSES
AVAILABLE TO ELECTRIC COMPANIES.

The cost recovery clauses available to electric companies are the fuel clause,
the ECRC, and the Energy Conservation Cost Recovery Clause (“ECCR”).
Whereas, base rates are designed to generate revenues that reflect a variety of

costs, the cost recovery clauses focus on specific costs and design a rate

7
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element or rate factor to track changes in those costs. The clauses enable
companies to recover specific costs on a current basis outside of base rate
considerations. Clauses provide dollar for dollar rate recovery of the specific
eligible costs identified for inclusion through the true-up process as long as
those costs are deemed to be prudently incurred. They are a departure from
the traditional base rate mechanism, under which the rates are designed to
provide the utility an opportunity, not a guarantee, to recover its prudent costs
and to earn a fair return. Base rte revenues and base rate earnings may

increase or decrease as relationships change. There is no “true-up” provision.

The fuel clause provides recovery to the utility for the day to day fluctuations
in the cost of fuel and other volatile fuel-related costs that cannot be timely
tracked and recovered in base rates. In the case of environmental costs,
Section 366.8255, Florida Statutes, mandates the use of a cost recovery clause
for qualifying expenditures. Pursuant to Section 366.82, Florida Statutes, the
conservation clause allows utilities to recover costs to implement cost-
effective demand side conservation programs. All of the cost recovery factors
are reestablished annually and include projections for the prospective year.
The factors also include a true-up of the current year projections based on
actual and prudent expenses incurred, with over or under recoveries included

in the next year’s factor.

WHY IS IT IMPORTANT TO LIMIT THE COSTS THAT ARE
COLLECTED THROUGH A COST RECOVERY CLAUSE TO THOSE

THAT ARE ELIGIBLE?

JUulo4
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The reason is simple. If a cost does not legitimately meet the definition of
costs that qualify for a recovery clause, it should be borne through base rates.
To allow the cost to instead flow through the clause will result in an
unwarranted increase in overall charges borne by customers. This
unwarranted increase in revenues directly benefits shareholders, to the

detriment of ratepayers.

CAN YOU GIVE AN EXAMPLE TO MAKE THIS POINT?

Yes. Assume a utility has a rate base (a utility’s net investment in utility plant)
of $1 billion, a Commission-authorized fair rate of return with a range of 9%
to 11%, and net income of $100 million. Assume that the Commission must
consider the following: a) allow the utility to collect an additional $1 million
expense normally recovered in base rates through the fuel clause or b) require
the utility to absorb the expense in earnings achieved from base rates.

Assume the achieved rate of return before the additional expense will be 10%,

which is in the middle of the authorized range.

If the utility is allowed to collect the additional expense through the fuel
clause, base rates will not change; but the customers will pay additional fuel
revenues of $1 million. However, if the Commission denies the request to
recover the expense through the clause, the utility will recover the expense
through revenues generated by base rates. In this later scenario, the
customers’ overall bill will not go up — both fuel revenues and base rate
revenues will be unchanged. The income for the period becomes $99 million

instead of $100 million and the return falls from 10% to 9.9%. The return is

9
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still well within the range of the return that the Commission established as fair

and reasonable.

Because special cost recovery clause treatment enables the utility to avoid
absorbing the expense through bas¢ rate earnings, the utility has a powerful
financial incentive to steer as many costs as possible through recovery clauses.
For this reason, the Commission should be ever vigilant for claims that new or
unusual costs belong in a cost recovery clause as opposed to being absorbed in

base rates.

HAS THE COMMISSION ADDRESSED THE APPROPRIATE WAY
TO DETERMINE WHAT TYPES OF COSTS ARE ALLOWED TO BE
RECOVERED THROUGH THE ECRC?

Yes. By Order No. PSC-94-0044-FOF-EI’, the Commission outlined the most

appropriate way to implement the intent of the ECRC statute as follows:

Upon petition, we shall allow the recovery of costs associated
with an environmental compliance activity through the
environmental cost recovery factor if:

1. such costs were prudently incurred after April 13, 1993;
2. the activity is legally required to comply §vith a

governmentally imposed environmental regulation enacted,

JUulob

! Order No. PSC-94-0044-FOF-EL issued J anuary 12, 1994, in Docket No. 930613-El, In re: Petition
to establish an environmental cost recovery clause pursuant to Section 366.0825, Florida Statutes, by
Gulf Power Company.

10
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became effective, or whose effect was triggered after the
company's last test year upon which rates are based; and,

3. such costs are not recovered through some other cost
recovery mechanism or through base rates.

In addition, we shall consider that all costs associated with
activities included in the test year of the utility's last rate case are
being recovered in base rates unless there have been new legal
environmental requirements which change the scope of
previously approved activities and caused costs to change from
the level included in the test year. If new legal requirements
cause an increase, or decrease, in costs from the level included in
the test year of the utility's last rate case, the amount recovered
through base rates should be the determined to be the amount

included in the test year. (Order at page 6-7.)

WHAT DOES CITIZEN’S WITNESS HEWSON SAY REGARDING
THE MODULAR COOLING TOWER PROJECT AND WHETHER
THOSE COSTS QUALIFY FOR RECOVERY UNDER THE ECRC?
Mr. Hewson concludes that the cooling towers are intended to help PEF
comply with a requirement that predated the passage of the statute and the
company’s last rate case. Further, the effect of the requirement was not

“triggered” after PEF’s last rate case.

WHAT IS THE IMPORT OF THE RESULTS OF MR. HEWSON’S

ANALYSIS?

11
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The cost does not satisfy any of the commission’s eligibility criteria. They do

not belong in the ECRC.

PEF WITNESS PORTUONDO TESTIFIES THAT THE MODULAR
COOLING COSTS WERE NOT RECOVERED THROUGH BASE
RATES ESTABLISHED IN DOCKET NO. 050078-EI BECAUSE THE
PROJECT WAS NOT ANTICIPATED AT THAT TIME. DO YOU
AGREE WITH THIS STATEMENT?

I disagree with the premise that only if a cost was reflected as a specific line
item in the last test year is it being recovered through base rates. As I testified
earlier, because base rates are designed and intended to recover all changing
base rate-related costs of whatever description, as long as the utility’s base
rate revenues exceed its expenses including debt, then it is recovering all of

those expenses.

DOES WITNESS PORTUONDO’S EXHIBITS JP-1 and JP-2 SHOW
THAT THE MODULAR COOLING TOWER COSTS WERE NOT
INCLUDED AS HE HAS TESTIFIED?

No. On page 6, he states that one can gleam from MFR Schedule C-6, entitled
“Budgeted Versus Actual Operating Revenue and Expenses” from the last rate
case docket that the modular cooling tower costs were not included. In
looking at page 2 in Exhibit JP-1, all one can see is a comparison of amounts
budgeted compared to actual by account title for the years 2000 to 2006. The
same 1s true with regard to Exhibit JP-2, which reflects the monthly plant

balances for the 2006 test year. This MFR schedule shows only total plant

12
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balances and does not reflect any itemization of projects or a description of
any plant additions. Without looking at the supporting detail behind either of
these schedules, which is not part of the MFRs, one cannot tell what costs or
activities are included in the MFRs. Based on these two exhibits, I do not
believe that PEF has demonstrated that it did not estimate costs of compliance
with its permit related to temperature of cooling water discharged from the

Crystal River plant for base rate purposes.

WHAT OTHER POINTS DO YOU HAVE REGARDING MFR
PROJECTION LEVELS?

Basic ratemaking theory recognizes that it is impossible to project exactly
what levels will be incurred after the rate case has concluded. This is precisely
the basis for allowing utility companies to earn within a range of
reasonableness on its rate of return on equity. Just because an item is not
specifically spelled out in the company’s last MFRs certainly does not mean
that it cannot recover the costs and earn a fair return on its investment through
base rates. That is the nature of the rate setting process and the company is
adequately compensated for this risk through the rate of return on equity

approved.

PLEASE ADDRESS THE TYPES OF COSTS THE COMMISSION
ALLOWS UTILITIES TO RECOVER THROUGH THE FUEL
CLAUSE.

Order No. 14546, from the 1985 fuel clause docket, addresses the cost

recovery method for fuel-related expenses. Prudently incurred fossil fuel-

13
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related expenses subject to volatile changes are recovered through the fuel
clause. Specifically, the order reflects those incurred prior to the delivery of
fuel to the utility's dedicated storage facilities. The order states that all other
fossil fuel-related costs should be recovered through base rates. The
Commission said other fossil fuel-related costs normally recovered through
base rates could be considered in the fuel clause to the extent that that those
costs resulted in fuel savings to the customers, but required a case-by-case

consideration of requests for approval.

DO YOU BELIEVE THAT THE MODULAR COOLING TOWER
COSTS ARE APPROPRIATE TO BE RECOVERED THROUGH THE
FUEL CLAUSE?

No. The modular cooling tower costs do not qualify for recovery through the
fuel clause. Witness Portuondo, on page 10 of his revised direct testimony
testifies that the costs should be recovered through either the ECRC or the fuel
clause. On page 7, he states that Order No. 14546 established the guidelines

for fuel cost recovery. He quotes paragraph 10 of that order which states:

Fossil fuel-related costs normally recovered through base rates
but which were not recognized or anticipated in the cost levels
used to determine current base rates and which, if expended,
will result in fuel savings to customers. Recovery of such costs
should be made on a case by case basis after commission

approval.

14
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WHY SHOULD THE COMMISSION REFUSE TO ALLOW PEF TO
COLLECT THESE COSTS THROUGH THE FUEL CLAUSE?
First, the modular cooling tower costs are not fossil-fuel related. These costs
are well-removed from the portion of the plant where fuel consumption enters
into the process, as OPC witness Hewson observes. These costs were incurred
to maintain compliance with the plant permits regarding water temperature

requirements that have been in effect since 1988.

Secondly, Paragraph 10 in the order was meant to encourage utilities to spend
money that they might not otherwise choose to spend to save fuel costs. The
example given on page 3 of the order was to allow fuel recovery of the cost of
an unanticipated short-term lease of a terminal to allow a utility to receive a
shipment of low cost oil. We do not acquiesce to the view that it is
appropriate for a utility to for go expenditures that would lower fuel costs just
because the expenditure would temporarily affect base rate earnings.
However, as Mr. Hewson develops in his testimony, complying with permit
terms so as to avoid having to curtail operations is a fundamental operational
need and is not an example of the fuel-related type of expenditure the

Commission had in mind.

Further, if you accept PEF’s fuel savings argument, then by extension all costs
incurred in planned or unplanned outages of any lower-fuel cost plant would
qualify for the fuel clause. These types of costs are properly considercd
operation and/or maintenance costs and they belong in base rates. This is true

even though the exact type of project may not have been anticipated when the

15
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last base rate test year projections were made. The bottom line is that costs
avoided from planned outages, de-rates or unplanned outages are operation
and/or maintenance costs, not fuel costs, and properly belong in base rates.
Further, it is only reasonable and prudent for the utility to operate their plants

to avoid increased fuel costs.

ARE THE MODULAR COOLING TOWER COSTS VOLATILE?
No. These costs are essentially compliance costs that do not meet the standard
for recovery through the ERCR or the fuel clause and are not "volatile fuel

costs" and therefore should be recovered through base rates.

WOULD THE REFUSAL TO ALLOW CLAUSE RECOVERY THAT
YOU RECOMMEND TREAT PEF HARSHLY?

No. Rather, PEF is seeking extraordinary treatment of amounts that are
ineligible for‘clause treatment and in any event have no material bearing on its
earnings. Based on information contained in the most recent surveillance
report as of December 31, 20062, and information I took from PEF’s 2006
ECRC exhibits®, I calculated that absorbing the modular cooling tower costs
in base rate earmnings would cause PEF’s return on equity to fall by just
9/100ths of 1% during the first, highest-cost year. (Exhibit  PWM-2),

The impact on subsequent years would be less.

DO YOU BELIEVE THAT PEF’S BASE RATES ARE SUFFICIENT

2 PEF December 31, 2006, Surveillance Report filed with Commission staff dated February 14, 2007.
? Direct testimony exhibit of J. Portuondo in the ECRC Docket No. 060007-EI, filed with the
Commission on August 4, 2006.
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TO ABSORB THE COSTS OF THE MODULAR COOLING TOWERS?

Yes. Based on my analysis PEF could include all of the 2006 costs for the
cooling towers in base rates and fully recover its operating costs and earn a
fair rate of return on its investment. In short, PEF can and will recover these
costs in base rates. On the other hand, if these costs are recovered through
either the ECRC or the fuel clause, the ratepayers will receive an unwarranted,

back-door rate increase.

WOULD YOUR VIEW OF THE PROPER FUNCTIONS OF BASE
RATES AND COST RECOVERY CLAUSES CHANGE IF THE
UTILITY WAS EARNING LESS THAN A FAIR RATE OF RETURN
AT THE TIME IT INCURS THE COST FOR WHICH IT SEEKS
RECOVERY THROUGH A CLAUSE?

No. If, hypothetically, the utility is earning less than the bottom of the range
of its authorized rate of return, then its appropriate recourse is -- not abuse a
clause -- to avail itself of the opportunity afforded it by statute to seek an
adjustment in base rates. If it does so, then customers and the Commission
will have an opportunity to assess the company’s condition on an overall
basis.  Ultimately, the responsibility belongs solely with the utility’s

management to consider the need to seek base rate relief.

DO YOU BELIEVE INCLUDING THE MODULAR COOLING
TOWER COSTS IN THE FUEL CLAUSE WOULD VIOLATE THE
2005 RATE CASE SETTLEMENT APPROVED BY THE

COMMISSION IN DOCKET NO. 050078-EI

17
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A. Yes, [ believe that it would. 1believe that these costs are normal capital and
operating costs that are traditionally and historically included in base rates.

The 2005 rate case settlement order” stated the following:

... During the term of this Stipulation and Settlement, except as
otherwise provided for in this Agreement, or except for
unforeseen extraordinary costs imposed by government
agencies relating to safety or matters of national security, PEF
will not petition for any new surcharges ... to recover costs that
are of a type that traditionally and historically would be, or are

presently, recovered through base rates. (Paragraph 4)

Thus it is clear to me that including these unanticipated but normal operating
costs in the ERCR or fuel clause would violate the terms of PEF’s rate case
settlement. Even in his direct testimony, Witness Portuondo uses the
language from Order No. 14546, paragraph 10, to support that these costs are
normal base rate type costs. He relies on the language that states: “Fossil-fuel

related costs normally recovered through base rates...”, see Page 7, lines 18-

19 (Emphasis added).

Q. WHAT ACTION DO YOU BELIEVE THAT THE COMMISSION
SHOULD TAKE REGARDING THE MODULAR COOLING TOWER

COSTS?

* In re: Petition for rate increase by Progress Energy Florida, Inc., in Docket No. 050078-EL, Order No.
PSC-05-0945-S-El, issued September 28, 2005.

18
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These costs belong in base rates. PEF should be refund all amounts collected

through the ECRC in 2006 and 2007 estimates, with interest. The refund

should be implemented as a part of the 2007 true-up proceeding.

DOES THIS COMPLETE YOUR TESTIMONY?

Yes, it does.

19
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BEFORE THE FL.ORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
DockEeT No. 060162-El

In re: Petition of Progress Energy Florida, Inc.
to recover modular cooling tower costs.

REVISED REBUTTAL TESTIMONY OF
JAVIER PORTUONDO

April 4, 2007

Please state your name and business address.
My name is Javier J. Portuondo. My business address is Post Office Box

1551, Raleigh, North Carolina 27601.

By whom are you employed and in what capacity?
I am employed by Progress Energy Service Company, LLC, as Director of

Regulatory Planning.

Have you previously submitted testimony in this docket?
Yes. | provided regulatory support for the Progress Energy’s request for

recovery of the costs of the modular cooling tower project.

Have any of your responsibilities or duties changed since you last
submitted testimony in this docket.

No.

PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA
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What is the purpose of your rebuttal testimony?

The purpose of my rebuttal testimony is to respond to several assertions

made by witnesses Patricia Merchant and Thomas Hewson on behalf of the

Office of Public Counsel (OPC). In particular, | will respond to the following

issues raised by Ms. Merchant and Mr. Hewson:

¢  Whether the Modular Cooling Tower Project meets the second criterion
for recovery under the Environmental Cost Recovery Clause (ECRC)
(i.e., whether the effect of the environmental requirement that led to the
project was triggered after the company’s last test year upon which rates
are based);

e  Whether the Modular Cooling Tower Project meets the third criterion for
ECRC recovery (i.e., whether the costs for the project are recovered in
Progress Energy Florida’s (PEF's) base rates); and

e  Whether the Modular Cooling Tower Project meets the criteria for
recovery under the Fuel and Purchase Power Recovery Clause (Fuel

Clause) under Commission Order No. 14546.

Are you sponsoring any Exhibits with your rebuttal testimony?

Yes. | am sponsoring Exhibit No. __ (JP-3), which is a copy of Rule 62-761,
Florida Administrative Code, effective July 13, 1998, which was submitted on
behalf of PEF in support of its request for ECRC recovery of the costs of
PEF’s Aboveground Storage Tank Program. That request was approved in

PSC Order No.03-1348-FOF-EI, at p. 10.
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1 | Q. Do you disagree with Ms. Merchant’s statement that “[i]f a cost does not
2 legitimately meet the definition of costs that qualify for a recovery
3 clause, it shouid be borne through base rates.”
4 | A. | do not disagree with this statement. However, it begs the question of
5 whether a cost meets the criteria for recovery under a cost recovery clause.
6 Ms. Merchant goes to great lengths to explain her view of ratemaking theory
7 and when a utility is earning fair rate of return. However, that discussion is
8 largely, if not entirely, irrelevant to the criteria for recovery under the ECRC
9 and the Fuel Clause. In its initial order implementing the ECRC, the
10 Commission specifically rejected OPC’s argument that ECRC recovery
11 should be subject to an earnings test under which recovery would be denied if
12 a utility is earning within its allowed return on equity range. See Order No.
13 PSC-94-0044-FOF-EI, at pp. 3-4. Likewise, Order No. 14546 did not establish
14 an earnings test for determining whether “other’ non-specified fuel-related
15 costs are recoverable under the Fuel Clause. However, in both orders, the
16 Commission ensured against double-recovery by establishing a criterion that
17 the costs at issue were not anticipated when the utility’'s base rates were
18 established.
19
20 | Q. Are you familiar with the eligibility criteria for recovery through the
21 ECRC?
22 | A. Yes. The ECRC, Section 366.8255, Florida Statutes, authorizes the
23 Commission to review and approve recovery of environmental compliance
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1 costs prudently incurred by electric utilities. In Order No. PSC-94-0044-FOF-
2 El, the Commission established the policy that recovery of costs associated
3 with environmental compliance activities should be recoverable through
4 ECRC if:
5 1)  such costs were prudently incurred after April 13, 1993;
6 2) the activity is legally required to comply with a governmentally imposed
7 environmental regulation that was enacted or became effective, or
8 whose effect was triggered after the company’s last test year upon
9 which rates are based; and
10 3) such costs are not recovered through some other cost recovery
11 mechanism or through base rates.
12

13 | Q. On pages 4 through 7 of his testimony, Mr. Hewson asserts that the

14 Modular Cooling Tower Project does not meet the second ECRC
15 eligibility criterion because the NPDES permit limitation was “In place”
16 prior to the test year upon which PEF’s base rates were based. Do you
17 agree with this assertion?

18 | A. No. As | previously quoted, the relevant language from Order No. PSC-94-

19 0044-FOF-E! states that “the activity must be legally required to comply with a
20 governmentally imposed environmental regulation that was enacted or
21 became effective, or whose effect was triggered after the company’s last test
22 year upon which rates are based.” (emphasis added). Mr. Hewson ignores
23 the italicized language which focuses on when the effect of the environmental
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1 requirement was triggered, rather than just the date it was put in place as Mr.
2 Hewson suggests. The Modular Cooling Tower Project satisfies this criterion
3 because the need for the additional cooling water capacity to comply with the
4 NPDES permit limitation was triggered by the unusually high inlet water
5 temperatures during the summer of 2005, which were not fully analyzed until
6 after PEF's MFRs were submitted and its base rates were
7 established/approved in Docket No. 050078. Indeed, the decision to
8 implement the project was not made until February, 2006.
9
10 As Commission Staff recognized in its recommendation that the Commission
11 approve PEF’'s request for ECRC recovery, the Crystal River industrial
12 wastewater permit does not mandate a particular method to meet the thermal
13 limitation. However, the permit legally requires PEF to remain in compliance.
14 Due to the increased cooling water intake temperatures, PEF has two options
15 to maintain compliance: de-rate, and thus decrease the availability of its
16 baseload capacity; or add additional cooling capacity. The Modular Cooling
17 Tower Project provides additional cooling capacity and restores plant capacity
18 to its baseline level and thereby avoids higher alternate fuel or purchase
19 power costs being borne by ratepayers. Although PEF has the option to de-
20 rate its plants to comply with the permit, the Modular Cooling Tower Project is
21 the most cost-effective and beneficial compliance option for PEF’s
22 ratepayers.
23
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1 | Q. Has the Commission previously approved ECRC recovery for activities
2 necessary to comply with environmental requirements that were in
3 place prior to the test year upon which PEF’s base rates were based?
4 | A. Yes. In Order No. PSC-03-1348-FOF-EIl, at p. 10, the Commission
5 approved PEF's request to recover activities necessary to comply with
6 requirements established in 1998 amendments to the Florida
7 Department of Environmental Protection’s (FDEP’s) above ground
8 storage tank rule. Exhibit No. __ (JP-3) is a copy of FDEP Rule 62-62-
9 761, Florida Administrative Code, effective July 13, 1998, which was
10 submitted in support of PEF’s request. As shown in Table AST on page
11 5 of the exhibit, although the rule amendments were in place since 1998
12 (before the test year upon which PEF’s then-current rates were based),
13 PEF was not required to undertake any compliance activities to meet
14 with the specific requirements for the storage tanks at issue (keynotes
15 W and U) until 2005 and 2010. In other words, the full effect of the pre-
16 existing environmental requirement was not triggered until after PEF’s
17 last base rate proceeding. The same logic applies to the Modular
18 Cooling Tower Project because the full effect of the NPDES permit limit
19 was not triggered until after PEF’s base rates were established. Prior to
20 that time, there had been no determination that additional cooling water
21 capacity was needed to comply with the NPDES permit limitation.
22
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1 Mr. Hewson discusses issues like improved station performance and
2 improved unit performance and availability as though these were operational
3 issues that PEF was facing in the operation of Crystal River. This could not
4 be further from the truth. The operational efficiency of the units, but for this
5 climatic issue manifesting itself in the higher than normal cooling water intake
6 temperatures, would not have caused the need for increasedv cooling water
7 capacity. Mr. Hewson is confusing operational or maintenance activities that
8 would facilitate ongoing, efficient plant operation with a climatic change —
9 something beyond the control of the Company and unanticipated when the
10 NPDES permit limitations were established — which triggered the need to
1 implement incremental compliance measures.

12

13 | Q. Do you agree with Mr. Hewson’s suggestion, at pages 7 and 8 of his
14 testimony, that projects must have a direct effect on delivered fossil fuel
15 prices to be eligible for Fuel Clause recovery under Order No. 145467

16 | A. No, Order No. 14546 imposes no such limitation. To the contrary, the

17 Commission expressly sought to establish a “flexible” policy to allow for
18 recovery through the fuel clause of expenses that were not anticipated in the
19 cost levels used to determine current base rates and which, if expended, will
20 result in fuel savings to customers. See Order No. 14546 at p. 3, 85 FPSC
21 7:69. In applying this “flexible” policy, the Commission has not sought to limit
22 the types of costs incurred, but rather to ensure a linkage to the types of
23 costs avoided. An excellent example of this is the Commission’s decision
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with regard to FPL's request for recovery of costs associated with the uprate
at Turkey point in Order No. PSC-96-1172-FOF-EIl issued in Docket No.
96001-El, at p.9. The costs incurred were of a capital nature and associated
with nuclear production, not fossil fuel. Because the project would allow FPL
to lower total overall fuel costs by more than the expected cost of the project,
the Commission found that the project fell under the scope of Order No.
14546. This Commission precedent indicates that any costs that result in
overall fuel savings can be considered fossil fuel-related costs even though

they do not have a direct effect on delivered fossil fuel prices.

Do you agree with Mr. Hewson’s suggestion that, if the modular cooling
tower costs are eligible for Fuel Clause recovery under Order No. 14546,
“most operational and maintenance projects” also would qualify?

No. Order No. 14546 only allows recovery of costs “which were not
recognized or anticipated in the cost levels used to determine current base
rates[.]” Most operation and maintenance costs (including costs incurred in
planned or unplanned outages) are recognized and anticipated when base
rates are determined and in fact are activities meant to repair or replace
existing equipment due to natural wear and tear. By contrast, as | previously
discussed, the costs of the Modular Cooling Tower Project were not
recognized or anticipated in the cost levels used to determine PEF’s current

base rates. In addition, most if not all of those operation and maintenance
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projects would not meet the Commission test that fuel savings resulting from

the project must exceed the cost incurred to achieve those savings.

Whether other, hypothetical activities may be eligible for cost recovery under
the ECRC or Fuel Clause depends upon the specific circumstances involved.
For example, the Commission previously has approved recovery of capital
expenditures for fuel switch projects of the type cited by Mr. Hewson where,
under the criteria set forth in Order No. 14546, they would result in fuel cost
savings. See, Order Nos. PSC-95-0450-FOF-Ef (modifications enabling FPL
units to burn a more economic grade of residual fuel oil); PSC-98-0412-FOF-
El (conversion of Suwannee Unit 3 to burn natural gas); and PSC-97-0359-

FOF-EI (conversion of FPC units to burn natural gas).

Do you agree with Ms. Merchant's assertion that the costs of the
Modular Cooling Tower Project are included in PEF’s base rates?

No. As | stated in my direct testimony, the Modular Cooling Tower Project
was not anticipated when PEF's current base rates were
established/approved in Docket No. 050078-El. The Company's evaluation
of the project was prompted by unusually high inlet water temperatures and
associated de-rates during the summer of 2005. The analysis leading to a
determination that additional cooling was needed occurred throughout the
fourth quarter of 2005 and the decision to implement the Project was not

made until February 2006. Thus, the costs of the project were not anticipated
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1 when the Company submitted its rate case MFRs in April 2005 and are not
2 included in the Company’s base rates.

3

4 Contrary to Ms. Merchant's suggestion, Exhibit Nos. __ (JP-1) and (JP-2)
5 confirm that the modular cooling tower costs were not anticipated when
6 PEF’'s current base rates were established/approved. As Ms. Merchant
7 recognizes, line 12 of Exhibit No. __ (JP-1) compares the amounts budgeted
8 to actual expenditures for rental expenses from 2000 through 2006. The
9 balance for both years is zero, demonstrating that PEF had not incurred
10 cooling tower rental costs in 2000 and did not anticipate them in 2006.

11

12 Exhibit No. __ (JP-2) shows the monthly in-plant balances for the test year
13 2006. Prior to 2006 when the Modular Cooling Tower Project was placed into
14 service, PEF had never incurred any capital costs for modular cooling towers.
15 Thus, if the project had been anticipated when the MFRs were submitted, the
16 increase in plant-balance for FERC account 314 reflected in Exhibit No. ___
17 (JP-2) would have had to be large enough to encompass the costs of the
18 project. As stated in my direct testimony, however, the schedule does not
19 show any increases that would accommodate plant additions for the modular
20 cooling towers.
21

10
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1 | Q. Do you agree with Ms. Merchant’s assertion, at pages 17 and 18 of her
2 testimony, that recovery of the modular cooling tower costs would
3 violate the 2005 rate case settlement approved in Docket No. 050078-E1?
4 I A. No. In relevant part, the provision of the settlement referenced by Ms.
5 Merchant states that “PEF will not petition for any new surcharges . . . to
6 recover costs that are of a type traditionally and historically would be, or are
7 presently, recovered in base rates.” (emphasis added). This provision
8 precludes PEF from petitioning for “new surcharges.” It does not prevent
9 PEF from recovering newly incurred costs under existing cost recovery
10 clauses. Ms. Merchant also points to the “...traditionally recovered in base
11 rates...” in Order No. 14546, but does not acknowledge that there are types
12 of costs that have been traditionally and historically recovered through the
13 Fuel Clause as well as ECRC when they are found to meet the respective
14 tests for eligibility. These costs are of a nature that they pass the criteria for
15 recoverability under either clause as discussed in more detail in my pre-filed
16 direct testimony and above and as such have traditionally and historically
17 been recovered through these clauses, not through base rates.

18

19 | Q. Does this conclude your rebuttal testimony?
20 | A. Yes, it does.

11
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MS. BROWN: We have also prepared, as I mentioned, a
comprehensive exhibit list that includes staff's stipulated
composite exhibit and all exhibits prefiled with the parties'
testimony. We ask that the exhibit list itself be marked as
Exhibit 1 and all other exhibits be marked as identified on the
list.

CHAIRMAN EDGAR: Okay. Seeing no objection -- no
objection. The comprehensive exhibit list will be marked
Exhibit 1 and the composite list with all of the, the, all the
rest of the exhibits will be so marked.

MS. BROWN: We ask that the marked exhibits all be
admitted into the record.

CHAIRMAN EDGAR: And the exhibits as marked will be
entered into the record.

(Exhibits 1 through 11 marked for identification and
admitted into the record.)

MS. BROWN: And I think, Madam Chairman, unless the
parties have anything more, we can conclude the hearing.

Let me point out that the transcript of the hearing
will be due May 7th, the briefs will be due May 31lst, staff
recommendation June 27th for an Agenda July 10th.

CHAIRMAN EDGAR: To the parties, any other matters or
questions or comments?

MR. McGLOTHLIN: I have none.

CHAIRMAN EDGAR: None? Mr. Perko?

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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MR. PERKO: I have none.
CHAIRMAN EDGAR: None. Commissioners? No.
Okay. Well, then as always, thank you to our staff,

to the parties for the cooperation in getting us to

this point so that the issues could be laid out for

consideration. And, Ms. Brown, thank you, and we are

adjourned.

(Proceeding adjourned at 10:10 a.m.)

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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STATE OF FLORIDA )
: CERTIFICATE OF REPORTER
COUNTY OF LEON )

I, LINDA BOLES, RPR, CRR, Official Commission
Reporter, do hereby certify that the foregoing proceeding was
heard at the time and place herein stated.

IT IS FURTHER CERTIFIED that I stenographically
reported the said proceedings; that the same has been
transcribed under my direct supervision; and that this
transcript constitutes a true transcription of my notes of said
proceedings.

I FURTHER CERTIFY that I am not a relative, employee,
attorney or counsel of any of the parties, nor am I a relative
or employee of any of the parties' attorneys or counsel
connected with the action, nor am I financially interested in
the action.

DATED THIS &Eé"' day of May, 2007.

A BOLES, RPR, CRR
FPSC Official Commission Reporter
(850) 413-6734
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BEFORE THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

In re: Petitioni by Progress Energy Florida, Inc. § DOCKET NO. 060162-EI
for approval to recover modular cooling tower

costs through environmental cost recovery | DATED: MARCH 19, 2007
clause.

- PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA’S RESPONSES & OBJECTIONS
TO STAFE’S FIRST SET OF INTERROGATORIES (NOS. 1-8)

PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA, INC. (“PEF”), pursuant to Rule 28-106.206, Florida
Administrative Code, Rule 1.340, Florida Rules of Civil Procedure, and the Order Establishing
Procedure in this matter, hereby responds to Staff’s First Set of Interrogatories (Nos. 1-8):

RESPONSES & OBJECTIONS

1. Please refer to page 8 of the testimony of Javier Portuondo, lines 12 through 22 and
continuing on to page 9, lines 1 through 20. In estimating net fuel savings, witness
Portuondo matches the highest hourly de-rate to the hour with the highest projected load.

(a) Does this method maximize the amount of net fuel savings? Please explain.

RESPONSE: No. This method was chosen because it was judged to be most representative of
the size and timing of the de-rates. POD de-rates are driven by cooling water intake
temperatures and occur during periods of high system loads. The method in the referenced
testimony of Javier Portoundo describes how a population of hourly derate values (derived by
averaging historical years by month) were assigned to specific hours of the forecast period in an
appropriate fashion. Hourly derates were allocated to the respective hours where they are most
likely to occur and therefore represent the condition as accurately as possible.

(b) What would estimated net fuel savings be if the calculation was done on an
average basis, i.e., matching average hourly de-rate to average projected load?

RESPONSE: Such an analysis was not done. As noted above, the population of hourly de-rate
values already represent an average, by month, of the three years of available historical data.
Due to the correlation between system load and the size and timing of individual hourly de-rates,
the calculation did match historically averaged hourly de-rates to the system loads that they
would be most likely to coincide with.

(c) What fuel and purchased power price forecasts were assumed for estimating
net fuel savings?

Hearing Exhibit - 00001
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RESPONSE: This information is already available to the Commission Staff in this docket. On
April 10, 2006, Progress Energy filed with the Commission a redacted copy of the fuel and
purchase power price forecasts used for the estimates in Javier Portuondo’s testimony (PSC
Document No. 03215-06). On the same date, a non-redacted, confidential copy of the forecasts
was provided to the Commission Clerk on April 10, 2006 (PSC Document No. 03214-06), with a
request for confidential classification, which was granted on July 7, 2006. See Order No. PSC-
06-0591-CFO-EL

2. Please refer to page 8, lines 1 through 10, of the testimony of Javier Portuondo. For
each order on lines 3 through 5, please cite and describe the specific example of the
Commission approving recovery of unanticipated costs through the fuel clause that
resulted in significant savings to the utility’s ratepayers. Also, describe the expenditures
and the savings.

RESPONSE:

. PSC-95-0450-FOF-EI: Order granting the Florida Power and Light (FPL) request for
recovery of $2.8 million in costs associated with the modifications made to Cape
Canaveral Unit #1 & 2, Fort Meyers Unit #2, Riviera Unit #3 & 4, and Sanford Unit #3,
4, & 5 enabling the units to burn a more economic grade of residual fuel oil. FPL
requested recovery of the costs through the Fuel and Purchased Power Cost Recovery
Clause because the modifications were expected to generate significant savings due to
lower fuel prices. The Commission allowed these costs to be recovered through the fuel
clause because the expenditures would result in significant savings to the utility’s
ratepayers. FPL estimated the project would cost approximately $2.8 million and the
ratepayers would save approximately $80 million between 1995 and 1999.

. PSC-94-1106-FOF-EI: Order granting petition for cost-recovery of Orimulsion
Conversion project costs through the Fuel and Purchased Power Cost Recovery Clause.
FPL requested permission to recover the costs of converting two units to burn
Orimulsion. To the extent fuel savings exceeded costs, FPL was allowed to recognize
half of these savings as additional accelerated depreciation. The cost of the project was
projected to result in $2.6 billion in fuel savings over 20 years at an expected cost of
approximately $72 million.

. PSC-98-0412-FOF-EI: Order granting the Florida Power Corporation request for
approval to recover the cost of converting Suwannee Unit 3 to burn natural gas through
the Fuel and Purchased Power Cost Recovery Clause. The conversion was estimated to
save the ratepayers approximately $3.25 million over the following five years at a cost of
approximately $2.45 million. The Commission approved recovery through the fuel
clause of these costs because they were not previously addressed in determining base
rates and would result in fuel savings to ratepayers.

Hearing Exhibit - 00002
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. PSC-97-0359-FOF-EI: Order granting the Florida Power Corporation request for
approval to recover the cost of converting Debary Unit 7, Bartow Units 3 & 4, and
Suwannee Unit 1 to burn natural gas through the Fuel and Purchased Power Cost
Recovery Clause. The conversion was estimated to save the ratepayers more than $22
million over the following five years at a cost of approximately $7.5 million. The
Commission approved recovery through the fuel clause of these costs because they were
not previously addressed in determining base rates and would result in fuel savings to
ratepayers. The Commission specifically sited Order #14546 in approving these costs for
recovery through the fuel clause.

o PSC-97-0359-FOF-EI: Order granting the FPL request for recovery of depreciation
expense and return on investment for rail cars purchased to deliver coal to the Scherer
Plant. The Commission cited Order No. 14546 in approving these costs for recovery
through the Fuel and Purchased Power Cost Recovery Clause due to the fact that they
were not previously considered in a rate case. The Commission further stated that when
economically beneficial to the utility’s ratepayers, the cost of purchasing or leasing
railcars is considered to be a fuel-related expense and should be recovered through the
fuel clause. FPL also requested approval to recover modifications needed at certain sites
to allow for the use of “low gravity” fuel oil. These modifications were estimated to save
the ratepayer approximately $19 million over three years at a cost of approximately $2
million. The Commission again cited Order No. 14546 in approving these costs for
recovery through the fuel clause.

. PSC-96-1172-FOF-EIL: FPL requested recovery through the Fuel and Purchased Power
Cost Recovery Clause of the costs associated with the thermal power uprate of Turkey
Point Units 3 & 4. The project was estimated to save the ratepayer approximately $198
million through year 2011 at a cost of approximately $10 million. It is notable that the
Commission approved recovery of these costs through the Fuel Clause citing Order No.
14546 not because the costs of the project had anything to do with fossil fuel generation,
but rather because they allowed the utility to use less fossil fuel due to increased nuclear
generation availability. The Commission specifically stated that because the fuel savings
are expected to outweigh the costs, FPL should be able to recover these costs through the
Fuel Clause.

3. For purposes of preparing and filing a need determination, please list each type of cost
that is non-fuel.

OBJECTIONS: PEF objections to this interrogatory for the grounds stated in its filing
dated February 26, 2007. It is PEF’s understanding that Staff has withdrawn this interrogatory.
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4. For purposes of preparing and filing a need determination, please list each type of cost
that is an environmental compliance cost.

OBJECTIONS: PEF objections to this interrogatory for the grounds stated in its filing dated
February 26, 2007. It is PEF’s understanding that Staff has withdrawn this interrogatory.

S. Is the thermal discharge temperature criteria at the Crystal River Power Plant
established for the purpose of avoiding higher fuel costs? In your response please state the
scope of jurisdiction of the authority which set and enforces the thermal discharge
temperature criteria at the Crystal River Power Plant.

RESPONSE: No. As authorized by the Clean Water Act, the NPDES permit program controls
water pollution by regulating point sources that discharge into waters of the United States. In
Florida, the federal NPDES program is administered by authorized delegation to the FDEP. The
thermal component of the discharge from the once-through cooling system at Crystal River is
subject to water quality standards. These standards require that thermal discharges shall not
increase the temperature of the receiving body of water so as to cause substantial damage or
harm to the aquatic life or vegetation therein or interfere with beneficial uses assigned to that
water body. The NPDES permit is renewed every 5 years with thermal limits set by FDEP to
ensure compliance with state and federal criteria.

6. Please identify all portions of the Company’s testimony and exhibits showing that the
high cost of non-coal based power/energy, not the thermal discharge temperature criteria,
caused the Company to look for alternatives to lessen its incurred cost of fuel and energy.
Include in your response all set points and triggers that the Company used to determine
when it began to seek lower fuel cost alternatives.

RESPONSE: There is an inextricable link between the need to operate within the thermal
permit limit and the increased replacement power costs. For this reason, PEF cannot link any
portion of the testimony solely to one or the other. This project can be justified on either basis:
the need to comply with the thermal permit limit, or the opportunity to save the customer fuel
costs. The thermal permit limit forced PEF to derate Units 1 & 2 during the summer months due
primarily to increased intake canal temperatures beyond PEF’s control. These de-rates are what
give rise to the opportunity to reap fuel savings. The company has continuously monitored the
number of de-rates necessary to comply with the 96.5 F thermal discharge limit (3 hour rolling).
[t was only after the 2005 summer that PEF determined that it would be prudent to undertake this
project because it was expected the cost would be more than offset by fuel savings to the
customer. This project therefore has the critical link to fossil fuel costs required to be
recoverable under the fuel clause and Order No. 14546. Alternatively, the change in
environmental conditions has triggered the need for additional cooling in order to operate at full
power during the summer months. Order No. PSC-94-0044-FOF-EI established the policy that
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recovery of such costs should be recoverable through ECRC if such costs are prudently incurred
after April 13, 1993, the activity is legally required to comply with a governmentally imposed
environmental regulation that was enacted or became effective, or whose effect was triggered
after the company’s last year upon which rates are based, and such costs are not recovered
through some other cost recovery mechanism or through base rates. The modular cooling tower
project clearly meets the test for costs that can be recovered through the ECRC.

If there was no limit on the discharge temperature, PEF would not have had to derate the units
and there would be no savings opportunity. Alternatively, if derating the plants was not costing
ratepayers anything (i.e. higher fuel costs) PEF would likely not be incurring expenses to avoid
these derates. As such, it would be improper to say that certain portions of PEF’s testimony in
this docket are solely due to fuel savings and have no link to the discharge temperature limit.

7. Please identify all formally established ongoing Company programs specifically targeted
at mitigating and/or lowering incurred fuel/energy costs. List all documents memorializing
the scope and objectives of each such programs. Include in your response all set points,
triggers, and other criteria that the Company uses to determine when additional measures
are necessary to mitigate and/or lower incurred fuel/energy costs.

RESPONSE: PEF considers the obligation to provide reliable power to our customers at
as low a cost as possible to be one of our fundamental goals. As such, PEF is always trying to
provide power at the lowest total cost. While there is no formal memorialized program
specifically targeted at mitigating and/or lowering incurred fuel/energy costs, PEF continuously
looks for opportunities to lower or stabilize the cost of fuel.

8. Please provide a list identifying all types of costs that the Company believes to be fossil
fuel-related costs and show the approximate percentage of base rates and/or rate base
associated with each type of cost, the FERC account number associated with each type of
cost, and the FERC account definition associated with each type of cost.

RESPONSE: Order No. 14546 lists specific types of fossil fuel-related costs that are not
included in base rates, but are recoverable under the fuel and purchase power cost recovery
clause. In addition, Order No. 14546 established a “flexible” policy to allow for recovery
through the fuel clause of other expenses that were not anticipated in the cost levels used to
determine current base rates and which, if expended, will result in fuel savings to customers. In
applying this “flexible” policy, the Commission has not sought to limit the types of costs
incurred, but rather to ensure a linkage to the types of costs avoided. An excellent example of
this is the Commission’s decision with regard to FPL’s request for recovery of costs associated
with the uprate at Turkey point in Docket No. 960001-EI. The costs incurred were of a capital
nature and associated with nuclear production, not fossil fuel. Because the project would allow
FPL to lower total overall fuel costs by more than the expected cost of the project, the
Commission found that the project fell under the scope of Order 14546. This Commission
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precedent indicates that any costs that result in savings associated with fossil fuel can be
considered fossil fuel-related costs.

DATED this | i%&‘ay of March, 2007.

HOPPING GREEN & SAMS, P.A.

By:

Florida Bar No. 855898
Carolyn S. Raepple
Florida Bar No. 329142
Virginia C. Dailey
Florida Bar No. 419168
Post Office Box 6526
Tallahassee, FL 32314
garyp@hgslaw.com
carolynr@hgslaw.com
virginiad@hgslaw.com
Tel.: 850-222-7500
Fax: 850-224-8551

Attorneys for Progress Energy Florida, Inc.
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AFFIDAVIT
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA)

COUNTY OF WAKE)

[ hereby certify that on this 19" day of March, 2007, before me, an officer duly
authorized in the State and County aforesaid to take acknowledgments, personally appeared
Javier Portuondo, who is personally known to me, and he/she acknowledged before me that
he/she provided the answers to interrogatory number(s) 1-4, and 6-8 from COMMISSION
STAFF'S FIRST SET OF INTERROGATORIES TO PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA, INC.
(NOS. 1 - 8) in Docket No. 060162-El, and that the responses are true and correct based on
his/her personal knowledge.

[n Witness Whereof, I have hereunto ¥t my hand and seal in the State and County

atoresaid as of this 19th day of March, 2007.

Javier Portuondo -
Director, Regulatory Planning

W7V &w

Notary Pubhc
State of North Carolina, at Large

My Commission Expires:

}/.22,/;&@1;
1
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AFFIDAVIT

STATE OF FLORIDA)

COUNTY oa&"‘ﬁ

[ hereby certify that on this 19" day of March, 2007, before me, an officer duly
authorized in the State and County aforesaid to take acknowledgments, personally appeared
Thomas Lawery, who is personally known to me, and he/she acknowledged before me that
he/she provided the answers to interrogatory number(s) 5 from COMMISSION STAFF'S FIRST
SET OF INTERROGATORIES TO PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA, INC. (NOS. 1 -8) in
Docket No. 060162-El, and that the responses are true and correct based on his/her personal
knowledge.

In Witness Whereof, | have hereunto set my hand and seal in the State and County

aforesaid as of this !@W' dayof_10ACA 2007

Thomas Lawery
Manager, Regional £ngineering — South

S A(/MMM /“/ ?/W

State of F orxda, at Large

My C031m1551on EXpH‘ES
»}' o ju
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BEFORE THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

In re: Petition by Progress Energy Florida, Inc. | DOCKET NO. 060162-EI
for approval to recover modular cooling tower
costs through environmental cost recovery | DATED: APRIL 16,2007

clause.

PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA’S RESPONSES
TO STAFF’S SECOND SET OF INTERROGATORIES (NOS. 9-10)

PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA, INC. (“PEF”), pursuant to Rule 28-106.206, Florida

Administrative Code, Rule 1.340, Florida Rules of Civil Procedure, and the Order Establishing

Procedure in this matter, hereby responds to Staff’s Second Set of Interrogatories (Nos. 9-10):

RESPONSES

According to the direct testimony of Mr. Thomas Lawery, page 5, lines 21-23 and
page 6, lines 1-3, PEF explored other alternatives to the modular cooling towers at
the Crystal River plant. Did PEF explore the alternative of installing diversion
curtains to increase the length of the course water would take through the discharge
canals, thereby increasing the time for the water to cool in the discharge canals?

Response: PEF reviewed the potential feasibility of using diversion curtains but
determined that diversion curtains are not technically feasible for this application. The
discharge canal is narrow (less than 100 yards across) and surrounded by either power
plant systems in use or wetlands. In order to make diversion curtains effective, the
discharge canal would need to be extended in length by a significant distance (miles).
This would require acquisition of significant, additional real estate to provide the cooling
needed and this was not possible with the geography of our discharge canal and
surrounding areas.

9(a) What are the costs and benefits associated with diversion curtains? Provide
all assumptions.

Response:  As described in the response to 9 above, the use of diversion curtains is

not a technically feasible solution for this application. As such, cost and benefit analysis
was not performed.
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PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA’S RESPONSES TO
STAFF'S SECOND SET OF INTERROGATORIES (NOS. 9-10)
DOCKET NO. 060162-El

PAGE 2

10.

9(b) Would use of diversion curtains be a feasible alternative to the modular
cooling towers? If not, why not?

Response:  No. Asnoted in response to Interrogatory 9 above, PEF reviewed the
feasibility of installing diversion curtains and determined this alternative to be infeasible.

9(c) Would use of diversion curtains be a cost-effective option to use in
conjunction with the modular cooling towers? If not, why not?

Response:  As discussed in the response to 9 above, diversion curtains would be of
little benefit due to the narrow discharge canal.

Are you aware of any instances where diversion curtains have been installed in
discharge canals to decrease discharge water temperatures? Please explain.

Response: Yes, diversion curtains are used under circumstances different than the
Crystal River Energy Complex. For example, PEF uses diversion curtains at its Hines
Energy Complex to avoid “short circuiting” of the cooling pond at that site. PEF
understands that FPL’s Turkey Point Nuclear Plant uses cooling canals with curtains. The
Turkey Point site has 168 miles of canals to cool their water. Both Hines and Turkey
Point are closed cooling water systems which facilitate the use of diversion curtains. By
contrast, Crystal River plants are once through cooling into the Gulf of Mexico which
does not facilitate their use.

DATED this/ day of April, 2007.

HOPPING GREEN & SAMS

Gary V. Pe/( /
Florida Bar'No. 855898
Post Office Box/6526
Tallahassee, FL 32314

garyp(@hgslaw.com
Tel.: 850-222-7500; Fax: 850-224-8551

Attorneys for Progress Energy Florida, Inc.
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AFFIDAVIT

STATE OF FLORIDA)

COUNTY OF PINELLAS)

I'hereby certify that on this 16™ day of April, 2007, before me, an officer duly authorized
in the State and County aforesaid to take acknowledgmients, personally appeared Thomas
Lawery, who is personally known to ine, and helshe acknowledged before me that he/she
provided the answers to interrogatory number(s) 9 and 10 from COMMISSION STAFF'S
SECOND SET OF INTERROGATORIES TO PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA, INC. (NOS.
9-10) in Docket No. 060162-El, and that the responses are true and correet based on his/her
'personal knowledge.

In Witness Whereof, | have hercunto set miy hand and seal in the State and County

aforesaid as of this_ |6/~ day of (ffw_f 2007,

Thomas .Lawery
Manger, Regigdal Engineering - South

State of Flé rida, at Large

My Comr%’ision, Xpires:
27/07
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BEFORE THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

In re: Petition by Progress Energy Florida, Inc. | DOCKET NO. 060162-EI
for approval to recover modular cooling tower

costs through environmental cost recovery | DATED: MARCH 19, 2007
clause.

PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA’S RESPONSE TO
STAFE’S FIRST REQUEST FOR PRODUCTION OF DOCUMENTS (NOS. 1-2)

PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA, INC. (“PEF”), pursuant to Rule 28-106.206, Florida
Administrative Code, and Rule 1.350, Florida Rules of Civil Procedure, khereby serves 1ts

response to Staff’s First Request for Production of Documents (Nos. 1-2).
RESPONSE

1. Please refer to page 8 of the testimony of Javier Portuondo, lines 12 through 22 and
continuing on to page 9, lines 1 through 20. Please provide complete copies of the
fuel and purchase power price forecasts used for the estimate of approximately $45
million in net fuel savings.

RESPONSE: This information is already available to the Commission Staff in this docket. On
April 10, 2006, Progress Energy filed with the Commission a redacted copy of the fuel and
purchase power price forecasts used for the estimates in Javier Portuondo’s testimony (PSC
Document No. 03215-06). On the same date, a non-redacted, confidential copy of the forecasts
was provided to the Commission Clerk on April 10, 2006 (PSC Document No. 03214-06), with a
request for confidential classification, which was granted on July 7, 2006. See Order No. PSC-
06-0591-CFO-EL

2. Please refer to page 8, lines 1 through 10, of the testimony of Javier Portuondo. For
each order on lines 3 through 5, please provide copies of the testimony and company
petitions that describe the projects alluded to.

RESPONSE: Non-privileged responsive documents within PEF’s possession will be made
available for inspection at the offices of Hopping Green & Sams, P.A., 123 S. Calhoun Street,
Tallahassee, FL 32301, at a mutually agreed upon time and date, with the understanding that
PEF will have the opportunity to obtain protection of confidential information in any such
documents Commission Staff may desire to copy by appropriate filing with the Commission.
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Respectfully submitted this 19th day of March, 2007.

HOPPING GREEN & SAMS, P.A.

R. Alexander Glenn Gary&/ Perko

Florida Bar No. 0097896 Florida Bar No. 855898
Deputy General Counsel Carolyn S. Raepple
Progress Energy Service Company, L.L.C. Florida Bar No. 329142
100 Central Avenue, Suite 1D Virginia C. Dailey

St. Petersburg, FL 33701-3324 Florida Bar No. 419168
alex.glenn@pgnmail.com Post Office Box 6526

Tallahassee, FL 32314
garyp@hgslaw.com
carolynr@hgslaw.com
virginiad@hgslaw.com

Tel.: 850-425-2359; Fax: 850-224-8551

Attorneys for PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA
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Fuel and Purchased Power Costs - Crystal River De-rate Study

Annual Costs

Annual Averaqes: 2010

Coal $/MMBtu
Gas $/MMBtu {excludas pipeline
fixed cost)

8.89

hBeH &

#6 Oil $/MMBtu 7.55
#2 Cil $/MMBtu 17.79

B 2006
Energy MWh 5,812,100
Energy Cost $MWh 5 39.83

Annuai Cogeneration Purchases 2006
Energy MWh 4,611,100
Energy Cost $MWh $ 32.78
Monthly Fuel Costs
Gas WMWB
(excludes
pipeline fixed
Monthly Fuel Cost Summary  Coal ¥MMBtu cost) #GOIISIMMBt_u #2 Olt YMMBtu
Jan8 § 299 § 924 § 773 § 18.45
Feb-06 § 299 § 1044 § 768 § 18.55
Mar-08 $ 298 § 1031 § 8.12 $ 18.51
Apr-06 $ 298 § 926 §$ 583 § 17.54
May-068 $ 299 § 792 § 633 § 1726
Jun-06 $ 298 § 809 § 670 $ 17.07
Jul-08 § 299 § 837 $ 754 § 17.12
Aug-06 $ 299 § 8.47 § 758 § 17.23
Sep-06 § 298 ¢ 8.04 § 7.07 § 17.41
Cct-06 § 299 § 771§ 785 § 17.50
Nov-06 § 303 § 1026 § 9.02 § 18.32
Dec06 § 3.02 8§ 8,52 § 9.15 § 18.50

Jan-07
Feb-07
Mar-07
Apr-07
May-07,
Jun-Q7
Jul-o7
Aug-07
Sep-07,
Oct-07|
Nov-07
Dec-07
Jan-08
Feb-08
Mar-08
Apr08
May-08
Jun-08
Jul-08
Aug-08
Sep-08
Oct-08
Nov-08
Dec-08
Jan-09
Feb-09
Mar-09
Apr-08
May-09
Jun-08
Jul-09
Aug-08
Sep-09
Oct-09
Nov-08
Dec-08
Jan-10
Feb-10
Mar-10
Apr-10
May-10
Jun-10
Jul-10
Aug-10
Sep-10
QOct-10
Nov-10
Dec-10
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Assumptions
1 2006 - 2007 fuel and purchase power prices based on Nov 2005 Fuel & Operations Forecast (short-term model).
2008 - 2010 fuel and purchase power prices based on the Nov 2005 Generation & Fuel Forecast (long-term model).
Fue! prices shown represent average delivered fuel prices

2 Gas price $/MMBtu exclude pipeline fixed costs.

3 Purchased Power contracts include the following contracts by year

Year Contract Max MW |
2006 CP&Lime 133
Southern UPS 412
Summer 06 Purchase 100
TECO 70
Winter 06 Purchase 500
2007 CP&L.ime 133]
Shady Hills 520
Southern UPS 412
Summer 07 Purchase 100
TECO 70
Winter 06 Purchase 500
2008 CP&Lime 133I
Shady Hills 478
Southern UPS 414
TECO 70
Winter 200 Purchase 200,
2009 CP&Lime
Shady Hills
Southern UPS
TECO
Winter 200 Purchase
2010 CP&Lime
Shady Hills
SoCo Franklin
SoCo Scherer
Southern UPS
TECO
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Assumptions

4 Cogeneration contracts include the following contracts by year

Year Contract Max MW |
2006 Auburn (As Avail)
Bay County 11
Cargill 15
Dade County 43]
El Dorado 114
Lake Cogen 110
Lake County 13
LFC 17
Mulberry 79
Orange Cogen 74
Orlando Cogen 79
Pasco Cogen 109
Pasco County 23
Pinellas County 55
Ridge Gen St 40
Royster 31
2007 Auburn (As Avail)
Cargll 15
Dade County 43}
El Dorado 114
Lake Cogen 110
Lake County 13
LFC 17
Mulberry 79
Orange Cogen 74
Orlando Cogen 79
Pasco Cogen 109
Pasco County 23
Pinellas County 55
Ridge Gen St 40!
Royster 31
2008 - 2010 Auburn (As Avail)
Dade County 43
E! Dorado 114
G2 Energy "
Lake Cogen 110
Lake County 13]
LFC 17
Mulberry 79
Orange Cogen 74
Orlando Cogen 79
Pasco Cogen 109
Pasco County 23
Pinellas County 55
Ridge Gen St 40
Royster 31
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BEFORE THE
FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

PROGRESS ENERGY FLORIDA

DOCKET NO. 050078-El

MINIMUM FILING REQUIREMENTS

SECTION C - NET OPERATING INCOME SCHEDULES
SECTION D - COST OF CAPITAL SCHEDULES

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
DOCKET

NO.OOLEA-E T BlibitNo. 3
Vs %ii;gf'ga“cwaig (TR-1) &3 Progress Energy

Date: __OS, Dli 0

Progress Encrgy Florida
Docket No.
Witness: Javier Portuondo

Exhibit No. ___ (JP-1)

Page lof2
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Page 3ot 7

SUHEERE GR Budgetsd Vercus Actual Operating Revenues and Expenses
: . . Progress Energy Florida
FLORIOA PUSLW SERVICE COMMISSIN Erpignation H the lest year is PROJECTED, provide the budgeted varsus actual Type of data shown DOCkC( NO.
opecaling revenues ard expenses by pamary account for 8 XX Projecied Tes! Year Enved 120314096 . . .o
Company PROCEESS ENLRGY FLGRIDA INC hyslo'oc';lgﬁae year peniod and the forecasted dala for the tes! year XX Paor Year Ended 12 14005 Wltness: J_awer Portuondo
and the pini year XX Histoncal Year Fnded 134004 Exhibit No. —_— (JP-[ )
Dincket B> 506,68 E Wilness Partuondo / DeSouza / Withams J Young / &t Oonatd / Bazemore Page 2 of 2
(A) (3) €} (y 3] \F} e H {h ) L] L L] l"'
Lire Accout 2000 2000 2001 2031 2002 2002 2003 2003 2004 2004 2005 2006
My Ny Account Tite Aclual Budget Actual buaget Actal Budget Actuat Rudget Actual Buaget Budgel Budgel
1 5012009 Forsi Steam Feel 4,709 7.266 5748 6.308 7.804 9,067 5995 6.224 34978 5132 3 KRUSH]
2 5182390 Nuclear Fual - Misc & L abor 53 29 1322 1575 1652 1877 1634 1.580 1642 1594 1618
3 5412000 CYhuri NP HYhg 590 618 5276 HO 1125 2319 2258 3.200 KRLY 3068
4 Non-R bie Fuet Hmdling Expense 5321 7,905 1.688 13.644 10,082 11.829 9,890 7.858 1826 9,972 4.659 8102
5
5 Opstating Expenses - Other Base Recoverable
7 5060000 Opet Supy & Engingenng 20933 1€ /76 19,460 17 254 PALS] 1643 1475 3592 1638 2418 23580 2454
8 5320000 Steam Expenses 3675 8729 3,704 6,186 t gl 1992 71612 4765 8&ub 8213 7107 1.307
9 504500 Steam Tians - Cr - Steam Frod (212} (200} (738) 120}
19 2050({0 Ele-luz Expenses 1.247 2,378 1,431 1,364 {63} g7 @ 322 i 203 IM 304
Mist Stm rower £ap 18,988 115% 11145 13440 gm 17 046 21683 25,068 18.287 8013 21 243 24 hdo
12 5070000 Renls 508 £46 - - -
13 Steam (FOS) Operations 45.219 38.908 35,507 38,044 30.636 23315 30 35,146 28,533 30.904 ton 4,803
14 5170000 Oper Supy & Erg - Nuclear 36 748 40794 Won 38,215 o 1fy 136 a2 6 I} 8 66
15 5160000 Nuclea: Cootants & Water 284 2407 2872 3157 2682 383 1820 3054
15 5200005 Steam Expenses - Nuclear 225 184 195 8y 468 1133t 10.832 16,357 9278 9 864 10630 10631
17 9211393 Steam From Uth Souice - Nuc 23 A
1R 5230:)00 Nuciear Electnc Expenses 4 3 "
19 5248060 Misc Nuc Power Exp - Tran 22908 22204 19.609 13,597 76 280 28.566 29549 24023 29.247 32 388 32347 34 894
20 5253000 Renis  Nuclear o 12 o 1€ )
Nuclear Operations 59917 63.218 49,962 8,004 40,041 2178 42390 a5y M2 646 636 40n
Oper Supv & Engingenng 5.484 1622 7.213 G4y 2716 762 7485 9,855 6.287 75iC 6,200 6.753
Ge=eralon Cxpenses 805 319 858 %] 27 38635 782 4223 m TRy 73
24 5490009 Hise Gith Pawer Gen Exps 5853 5744 5196 760 #1555 9278 5.520 10.020 6.150 812 8.945 Q426
25 5500500 Rels L T . 325 0/h
% CT Operations 0307 14535 13802 18,614 12,000 16,331 16,591 20658 060 16262 15,326 16,408
27 5552000 Sys Cor & Load Dispatch 12 4332 LY 4889 5,247 5.0t 6037 2684 2839
78 557001 {nies Powar Supply t xpenses 23
Y Other Power Supply Exp - Operations 12 4,532 6.411 4,889 5,247 5089 6.037 2,684 2,839
6 56uCHUD Opar Supy & £ yreerng 289 3047 34 4734 2817 494 2002 1.35C 2,606 208 1837 1842
31 5610500 Load Dispatching 4418 S8z 5517 5511 LTy kL] 34 381 2 4,025 4258
12 56204550 Traas Sigton [ xpences 247 153 1 516 208 159 319 183 212 217 218
33 5630009 Trans Querheas Lina Expriises Ay 05 53 62 313 65 " 1
34 S€50320 Trans of Elecincaty by Othes 5.398 10435 1016 10,436 1178 3
35 5660730 Msc Tra-sewss on Exps 5147 4,805 7.248 3583 5408 133 12 831 16921 12744 1674 11423 11244
3 5670000 Subslation 8 8 ? 6 - ¢
37 Transmission Operations 17.5% 1335 22,008 21391 20410 24,795 15,98 18966 16230 17,266 1763 17,681
T Rerap Schedules

Supporting Schedules

R ow v Rate CaseMFRMERS 2005 RATE CASE Sutmied G0 §C 3C 33C 37 C-I%Fe o) - New 021805 C &
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Progress Encrgy Florida
Docket No. .
Witness: Javier Portuondo

Exhibit No. ____(JP-2)
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BEFORE THE
FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

PROGRESS ENERGY FLCRIDA

DOCKET NO. 050078-El

MINIMUM FILING REQUIREMENTS

SECTION A - SUMMARY SCHEDULES
SECTION B - RATE BASE SCHEDULES

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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Page 1 0i 8
Ak MINTHLY PLANT BALANLGES TEST YEAR - 1INTHLIAS PI‘OgTCSS Energy Flonda'
Dacket No. )
HUCR:OATUBL. SER . TF SOMMISSO Expianabor Frovige Ire montry phant balances (or 83t acoc.ml o gub 3 meur 15 Tyve " Dais Shaar Witness: Javier Ponuondd
which ang ~di. dual deprecialion fale s agpia0 Trese hatanoes shou's I :
Company PRCi9E 68 EXERGY FLORILA INC be the Ghes sed o comus the manirly depietcn o asex exclads: XX Progead Test Yew Ended azaExhibit No. ___ (JP-2)
any amcAizaiCniregovary sched.aey __ Friot Yaa Ended 12312015 Pagc 2 Of 2
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Docket No. 060162-El
Progress Energy Florida
Witness: Javier Portuondo
Exhibit No. __ (JP-3)

Modular Cooling Tower Project

Estimated Fuel Cost Savings

2006 $11,000,000
2007 $11,000,000
2008 $8,500,000
2009 $8,000,000
2010 $6,500,000
TOTAL $45,000,000
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Witness: Thomas Lawery
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Crystal River South

Plant POD Derate vs Inlet Water Temp - 2003
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Docket No. 060162-E1
Progress Energy Florida
Witness: Thomas Lawery
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Environmental Protection

Twin Towers Office Building

o | 2600 Blair Stone Road Colleen M. Castill
Jab Bush Tallahasses, Florida 323992400 ey
NOTICE OF PERMIT
CERTIFIED MAIL
RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED
In the Matter of an

Application for Permit by:

Progress Energy Florida

Crystal River Plant Units 1,2 and 3 DEP File # FL0000159-009-IW1S5/NR
15760 West Powerline Street

Crystal River , F1.34428

Attention: Mr. Michael Olive

Enclosed is Permit FLO000139, issued under Section 403.0885, Florida Statutes, and DEP Chapter 62~
620, Florida Administrative Code, authorizing wastewater discharge from the PEF Crystal River Units
1,2,&3, Citrus County to the Gulf of Mexico, a Class I marine water.

Any party to this order (permit) has the right to seek judicial review of the permit under Section
120.68, Florida Statutes, by the filing of a Notice of Appeal under Rules 9.110 and 9.190, Florida
Rules of Appellate Procedure, with the Clerk of the Department of Environmental Protection, Office of
General Counsel, Mail Station 35, 3900 Commonwealth Boulevard, Tallahasses, Florida 32399-3000
and by filing a copy of the notice of appeal accompanied by the applicable filing fees with the
appropriate district court of appeal. The notice of appeal must be filed within thirty days after this
notice is filed with the clerk of the Department.

Executed in Tallahassee, Florida.

STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT
OF ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

@dm ELOC@) S
Mizhi Drest &

Director
Division of Water Resource Management

2600 Blair Stone Road
Tallahassee, FL 32399-2400

(850) 245-8336 FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
DOCKET
NO. Qb D! 5 ).~ E I Exhibit No. Z
Company/ PE F - Di'recf

“More Protecrion, Less Process” Witness: -Tb‘ %_Y\T% oL ¥ ( i L'3>
Date: S/ -0

Printed on recycled poper. 7 ¥
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Facility ID Number FLOGCO1SS

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

The undersigned duly designated deputy agency clerk hereby certifies that this NOTICE OF
PERMIT and all copies were mailed before the close of business on ZI-5-05  to the listed
persons. :

[Clerk Stamp]

FILING AND ACKNOWLEDGMENT
FILED, on this date, under Section 120.52 (9), Florida Statutes, with the designated Department Clerk,

receipt of which is hereby acknowledged.
@f{ Aotds) 950505

{Clerk) (Date)

Coples furnished to:

Chairman, Board of Citrus County Conumnissioners
Michael Shrader, PEF

Yaniga Angulo, P.E. DEP SWD Tampa

Betsy Hewitt, DEP Tallahassee
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SECOND AMENDMENT TO THE FACT SHEET

DATE: April 21, 2005
PERMIT NUMBER:  FL0000159

PERMITTEE: Progress Energy Florida (PEF)
Crystal River Units 1,2,&3 Power Plant

'The following minor corrections have been made to the proposed permit. None of these corrections alter
any of the limitations for discharge to waters of the state.

1. Typographical Errors in the Proposed Permit: The Department and the Permittee noted several
minor typographical errors which are not itemized below. The Department has corrected these errors,
which were non-substantive and did not affect any permit limitations or monitoring requirements.

2. Permittee Comments

The Permittee requested the following minor corrections fo the permit.

Condition 1.A.9: The Permittee pointed out that that pH limitation for Internal Outfall I-0FE in the Draft
and Proposed permits (6.5 to 8.5) was incorrect, and should be 6.0 to 9.0, which is the appropriate
Technology Based Efftuent Limitation (TBEL) pursuant to 40 CFR Part 423.12, and is consistent with the
previous permit. The Department concurs, and corrected the limitation in the permit.

Condition LE.14: The Permittee requested that the Department clarify the requirement regarding the
Amertap condenser cleaning systern at Unit 3, by stating in the condition that any substantive changes to the
cleaning ball devices or refrieval system must be approved by the Department. This would enable the
facility to make minor mechanical repairs that do not potentially impact discharge without requiring
specific approval. The Department concurs and has revised the condition in the permit.

3. Department Comment

Condition 1LE.17.: The Department added this condition, which was erroneously omitted from the draft
and proposed permits, and authorizes the continued use of biocides and chemical additives that were
approved for use in the previous permit renewal and its revisions, The condition does not authorize the use
of any new biocides or chemical additives.
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STATE OF FLORIDA
INDUSTRIAL WASTEWATER FACILITY PERMIT

PERMIITEX: PERMIT NUMBER: FLO0000159 (Major)
PAFILE NUMBER: FLO000159-009 -TWI1S/NR

Progress Energy Florida . MarD 9

Crystal River Units 1, 2, and 3 ISSUANCE DATE: May9,2005

P.O. Box 14042 EXPIRATION DATE: May8, 2010

St. Petersburg, FL 34428

RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY:

Mr. Michael Olive
Manager

FACILITY:

Progress Energy Florida

Crystal River Plant Units 1,2 and 3
15760 West Powerline Strect
Crystal River, FL 34428

Citrus County

Latitude: 28° 58’ 2" N Longitude: 82° 417 45” W

This permit is issued under the provisions of Chapter 403, Florida Statutes (F.S.) and applicable rules of the Florida |
Administrative Code (F.A.C.), and constitutes authorization to discharge to waters of the state under the National
Poilutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES). The Permittee is hereby authorized to operate the facilities
shown on the application and other documents attached hereto or on file with the Department and made a part hereof
and specifically described as follows:

Operation of an industrial wastewater treatment and disposal system to serve the referenced facility. The facility
consists of two fossil fuel units (Units 1 and 2) and a nuclear fuel unit {Unit 3). These units have a combined
maximum permitted deily discharge flow of 1,898 MGD and a total name plate rating of 1,854.8 MW. The facility
discharge consists of once-through condenser cooling water, treated muclear auxiliary cooling water, treated coal pile
rainfal]l run off, intake screen washwater; and treated non-radicactive waste/radiation waste.

The radivactive component of the discharge is regulated by the U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission under the
Atomic Energy Act and not by the U.S, Environmental Protection Agency under the Clean Water Act.

WASTEWATER TREATMENT:

Wastewater treatment at the facility consists of the following: filtzation and or other biocide treatment of once-
through non-contact condenser cooling water (OTCW); neutralization, settling, filtration and/or oil/water separation
for Jow volume wastes and metal cleaning wastes.,

EFFLUENT DISPOSAL:
Surface Water Discharge:

An existing discharge of GTCW to the site discharge canal and thence to the Gulf of Mexico, a Class Il marine
water, via Qutfall D-011, located approximately at latitude 28° 57'30.8" N, longitude 82° 42 00.7" W,

An existing discharge of OTCW to the site discharge canal and thence to the Gulf of Mexico, a Class Il marine
water;, via Outfall D-012, located approximately at latitude 28° 5§7'31.2" N, longhiude 82° 42' 03.0" W.



AULATL LYUs UUY A Ve LJa
Progress Energy Florida
Witness: Thomas Lawery

PERMITTEE: PERMIT NUMBER: FLOOO01SY Exhibit No. __(TL-2)
Progress Energy Florida Issuance date: May 9, 2005 Page 5 of 34
Crystal River Units 1,2, and 3

P.O. Box 14042 Expiration date: May 8, 2010
St. Petersburg, FL 34428 ,

An existing discharge of OTCW 1o the site discharge canal and thence to the Gulf of Mexico, a Class IIT marine
water, via Qutfall D-013, located approximately at latitude 28° 37'30.9" N, longitude §2° 41' 549" W.

An existing discharge of intake screen washwater to the site intake capal and thence to the Gulf of Mexico, a
Class UII marine water, via Qutfall D-091, located approximately at latitude 28° 5724 " N, longitude 82°42
0.4" W

An existing discharge of intake screen waghwater to the site intake canal fhence to the Gulf of Mexico, a Class

IIY marine water, via Outfall D-092, located approximately at latitude 28° 5723.2 " N, longitude 8§2°42 '01.9"
W, :

An existing discharge of intake screen washwater to the site intake canal and thence to the Gulf of Mexico, a
Class Il marine water, via Outfall D-093, located approximately at latitude 28° 57'21.6 ¥ N, longitude 82°41
56.2" W.

Aw existing discharge from the ash pond to the site discharge canal and thence to the Gulf of Mexico, a Class III
marine water; via Outfall D-0C1, located approximately at latitude 28° 57'34.7 " N, longitude 82°4228.8" W.

Ax existing dischargs from the wastewater pond system to the site discharge canal and thence to the Gulf of
Mexico, a Class I marine water, via Outfall D-0C2, located approximately at Jatiade 28° 57'31.0 " N,
longitude 82°42 324" W,

An existing discharge of Nuclear Services and Decay Heat Seawater System effluent to the site discharge canal
and thence to the Guif of Mexico, a Class III marine water, via Outfall D-80F, located approximately at latitude
28° 57'31.2 "N, longitade 82°41 '55.4° W,

An existing discharge of Coal Pile runoff (Units 1 and 2) o an adjacent salt marsh, a Class I marine water,
via Qutfall D-0H, located approximately at latitude 28° 57 08.8 "N, longitude 82°42 '12.7" W.

Pxisting discharges of OTCW from the Helper Cooling Tower system to the site discharge canal and thence to-
the Gulf of Mexico, a Class Il marme water, via Outfalis D-071 and D-072, located approximately at latitudes
289 57" 345" N, longitude 82° 42 732.0" W, and 28° 57'35.8 " N, longitude 82° 42 '48.5" W, regpectively.

An existing discharge of intake screen washwater to the site discharge canal and thence to the Gulf of Mexico, a
Class 111 marine water, via Outfall D-094, located approximately at latitude 28° §7'34.4 " N, longitude 82°42
'30.4" W

Internal Discharges
An existing discharge from internal outfall I-FG Regeneration Waste Weutralization Tank to Qutfall D-(0F,
An existing discharge from internal outfall I-FE Laundry and Shower Surmnp Tank effluent to Outfall D-00F.
Stormwater Discharges

Euxsting discharges of stormwater from plant areas 1o the site intake and discharge canal and thence to the Gulf
of Mexico via Outialls D-100, D-200, D-300, D-400, D-500. and D-600.

IN ACCORDANCE WITH: The limitations, monitoring requirements and other conditions as set forth in Part 1
through Part VIII on pages 3 through 28 of this permit.
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PERMITTEE: PERMIT NUUMBER: FLOOOOLSS Exhibit No. __(TL-2)
Progress Energy Florida Issuance date: May 9, 2005 — 4
Crystal River Units 1,2, and 3 Page 6 of 3
P.O. Box 14042 Expiration date: May §, 2010

St. Petersburg, FL 34428

I Effluent Limitations and Monitoring Requirements

A. Surface Water Discharges

1. During the period beginning on the issuance date and lasting through the expiration date of this permut, the
permittee is authorized to discharge once-through non-contact condenser cooling water (OTCW) from Qutfalls
D-011, D012, D-013 to the site discharge canal thence the Gulf of Mexico. Such discharge shall be bimited and
monitored by the permittce as specified below:

Discharge Limitations Monitoring Requirements
Parameters (wnifs) Daily Daily Average Daily Monitoring Sample Type Sample
Maximom Minimum Frequency Poipt
Flow (MGD) Ses item LA3. Report - Continuous Purap logs 2 EFF-2
Chlorination Duraton Seeftem LAS. e - 2 Week Pump logs EFF-1a
(MINUTES) —
EFF-1C
Oxidanits, Total 0.01% Report - 2 Wesk Multiple EFF-1A
csidual (MG Grabs
Restdual (MG/L) i EFE-1B
EFF-1C
Temperature (F), Water | Report Report - Continuous Recorder INT-1
{Intake} DEG.X)
Temperature (F), Water | 96.5, See item. Report - Continnous Recorder EFF-3D
[Discharge] DEG.FY LA4
Temp. Diff. between | Report Repart . Continuous Recorder WNT1,
Intake and Discharge EFF 3D
DEG.F)

2. Effluent samples shall be taken at the monitoring site locations listed in permit condition 1.A.1 and as described

below:
Sample Point Deseription of Monitoring Location
' ‘EFF-2 At vombined sireulating water purmps.
EFF-1A Outlet corresponding to individual condenser for Unit 1
EFF-1B Cutlet corresponding to individual condenser for Unit 2
EFFaC Outlet corresponding to ndividual condenser for Unit 3

Y Flow is monitored by pump logs and/or valve position (durtng flow rediction season),

‘ Monitoring and reporting values for temperature, pump status and/or valve position shail be recorded at en minute intervals.

* Lirnitations and monitoring requirernents for total regidual oxidants {TRO) and time of TRO discharge for cutfalls D-011, D-012, andfor D-013
are appiicable oaly at times when OTCW Is being chlorinated

* Therrmal discharge fom this facility is subject to the requiremnents of Rule 62-302.520(1), FAC.

S
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PERMITTEE: PERMIT NUMBER: FLO000159
Progress Energy Florida Issuance date: May 9, 2005
Crystal River Units 1,2, and 3

P.O. Box 14042 Expiration date: May 8, 2010

St. Petersburg, FL 34428

Sample Point Description of Monitoring Location

INT-1 Intake at Unit 1, Ses item 7

BFF-3D At the bulkhead line which s new the down stream end of the site discharge canal .

Combined OTCW discharge from Units 1, 2 and 3 shall not exceed 1,897.9 MGD during the period May Ist
through October 31st of each year, or 1,613.2 MGD during the remainder of the year.

The discharge temperature monitored at Sampling Point EFF-3D shall not exceed 96.5°F as a three hour rolling
average:

Discharge of TRO from the condenser of each unit shall not exceed 4 maximum of 60 minutes in any calendar .
day, except as follows. TRO may be discharged Fom one or more individual condensers via ocutfalls D-011, D-
012, D-013, provided that TRO discharge concentration is monitored continuously by recorder(s). Additionally,
the maximutrn instantaneous TRO concentration at each outfall (D-011, D-012; or D-013) shall not exceed 0.01

mgfl.

Maultiple grab samples shall consist of grab samples collected at the beginning of the period of chlorination
discharge, and once every 15 minutes, thereafter, In addition, one grab sariple shall be collected at the end of
the period of chlorine discharge. The “period of chlorine discharge” refers to all chlorination conducted during
a 24-hour pertod.

In the event of an equipment failure of the temperature mondtor or recorder at INT-1, temperature shall be
monitored by similar instnumentation at either INT-2 or INT-3, which are the intakes for Units 2 and 3,
respectively. In such a situation, the Permittee shall maintain records of the change in monitoring location for
the monitoring period.

Intake screen washwater may be discharged from Outfalls D-091, D-092, and D-093 without lmitation or
monitoring requirements.

During the peried beginning on the issuance date and lasting through the expiration date of this permat, the
permittee i authorized to discharge laundry and shower wastewater from Internal Outfall I-0FE to outfall D-
00F. Such discharge shall he limited and monitored by the permittee as specified below:

Exhibit No. __(TL-2)
Page 7 of 34

Discharge Limitations Monitoring Requirements

Parameters {units) Daily Average Daily Daily Monitoring Sample Type Sample
Maxinni Minimam Frequency Point
Flow (MGD) Report Report - 1/Per Bawch Caleulation RFF-4
Gil and Grease (MGIL) 15.0 20.0 - 1/Per Batch raly P-4
Selids, Total 30.0 100.0 - 1/Per Bach Grab EFF-4

Suspended (MG/L)

pH (S0 - 9.0 8.9 1/Per Batch Grab EFF-4
Number of Batches Report Report - Monthly Log Ef¥F-4




PERMITTEE:
Progress Energy Florida

Crystal River Units 1,2, and 3

P.G. Box 14042

St. Petersburg, FI1. 34428

PERMIT NUMBER:

{ssuance date:

Expiration date;
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10. Effluent samples shall be taken at the monitoring site locations Hsted in perrait condition L.A.9 and as described

below:

Sample Point

Description of Monitoring Location

EFF4

The sarnple port from the laundry and shower sump tank Teatment systern, but prior to mixing
with any other waste stream.

11. The discharge of metal cleaning wastes through this outfall is not authorized.

12. During the period beginning on the issuance date and lasting through the expiration date of this permit, the
permittee is authorized to discharge process wastewater fom Qutfall D-0C1 Ash Pond apd D-0C2-
Wastewater Pond System discharges (Uit 1 and 2 combined) to the site discharge canal thence to the Guif of
Mexico. Such discharge shall be limited and monitored by the permittee as specified below:

Discharge Limitations Monitoring Requirements

Parameters {units) Daily Average Daily Daily M«‘mit‘oring Sample Type Sample
Maximum Minimum Frequency Point

Flow (MGD) Report Report - Daily, when Caleulation EFF-5

. diseharging EFF-6

Oil and Grease {MG/L) - 50 - Weekly CGrab EFE-3
EFF-

Solids, Total 30.0 100.0 - 3/ Week Grab EFF-3
Suspended (MG/L) EEF-6
Arsenie, Total - 50.0 - Monthly Grab EFE-5
Recoverable (UG/L) FFF-6
Cadmium, Total — 9.3 - Menthiy Grab EFF-5
Recoverable (UG/L) EFF-6
Chromigm, Tols} - 50.8 P Monthly Grab BFE-5
Recoverable (UG/L) FFF-6
Copper, Total - 3.7 - Monthly Grab EFF-3
Recoverable (UG/L) EFF-6
Lead; Total - 3.5 - Monthly Grab RFF-3
Recoverable (UG/L) —
Iron, Totad Recoverable - 0.3 -~ Monthly Grab EFF3
{(MG/L) EFF-6
Mercury, Total - 0.025 - Monthly Grab EFF-S
Recoverable (UG/L) EFE-6
Nickel, Total - 8.3 - Monthly Grab BEF-3
Recaverable (UG/L) EFF-6
Selenium, Total - 71 e Montily Grab EFFR-3
Recoverable (1IG/L} Prro i
PH Standard Units Repart Report Monthly- Grab INT-1

Ln



Docket No._06U162-E1
Progress Energy Florida
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Progress Energy Florida Issuance date: May 9, 20053
Crystal River Units 1,2, and 3

P.O. Box 14042 Expiration date: May 8, 2010

St. Petershurg, FL 34428

Discharge Limitations Monitoring Requirements
Parnmeters (units) Daily Average Daily Daily Monritoring Sample Type Sample
Maximum Minimum Frequency Point
PH Standard Units 8.5 : 6.5 Monthly Grab EFF-5
' EFF-5
Zing, Total Recoverable - 86.0 - Monthly Grab EFF-5
JGAL .
(UG EFF-6
13. Effluent samples shall be taken at the monitoring site locations listed in permit condition LA 12 and as described
below:
Sample Point Description of Monitoring Location
INT-1 Intakos at unit 1
EFF-3 Dischargs from the ash pond prier to mixing with the receiving swater.
BFF-§ Discharge from wastewater pond sysiem prior io mixing with the recelving water,

14. Limitations and menitoring are required only when the ash pond is discharging via D-0C1 and/or the wastewater
pond system is discharging via D-0C2.

. During the period beginning on the issuance date and lasting through the expiration date of this permit, the
permittee is authorized to discharge process wastewater from Outfall D-00F- Nuclear Services and Decay Heat
Seawater System effluent [includes discharges from outfall I-FE —~ Laundry and Shower Sump Tank; (LSST)
outfall -FG ~Secondary Drain Tank (SDT); effluent from the Evaporator Condensate Storage Tank (ECST),
and efftuent from the Condensate System (CD) to the site discharge canal and thence the Gulf of Mexico. Such
discharges shall be limited and monitored by the permittes as specified below.

Discharge Limit:.:tio‘ns Monitoring Requirements
Parameters (units) Daily Daily Average Daily " Mounitoring Sample Type Sample
) Maximum Minimum Freguency Point
Flow (MGD) Repart Report - Hourly Recorder or INT-TA
caleulation
Oil and Grease (mg'l) 20 ] 15 - Weekiy, when Grzb EFE-TB
schareing
(CD and ECST) dischacging
il and Grease {mg/l) 50! o - Weekly, when Grab EFE-7
discharging
(CD and ECST) isehaTging
Flow [EC8T} (MGD) Report Report - Daily, when Recorder or EFF-TB
discharging Caleulation
Flow [{D System} Repart Report - Daily, whea Recorder or EFF-7B
(MGD} discherging Calculation

! Monitoring requirements are only applicable if the discharge from I-FE and J-FG, the CD discharge or the ECST (following adequate mixing )}
xegeds the daily maximum lmitation of 20.0 mg/t or a mintmal difution rate of 4 to 1 is not zchieved as determined by the operator ang
recorded in logs maintained onsite for inspection by the Department,

Witness: Thomas Lawery
Exhibit No. __(TL-2)

Page 9 of 34



Docket No. 060162-EI

Progress Energy Florida
Witness: Thomas Lawery

] EE: PERMIT NUMBER: FLOOOG1SS s
PERMITIEE: ‘ Loooo? Exhibit No. __(TL-2)
Progress Energy Florida Issuance date: May 9, 2003 Pace 10 of 34
Crystal River Units 1,2, and 3 ag 0
P.O. Box 14042 Expiration dafe: May 8, 2010
St. Petersburg, FL 34428
Discharge Limitations Menitoring Reguirements
Parameters (units) Daily Daily Average Daily Monitoring Sample Type Sample
Maxicum Minimum Frequency Point
Solids, Total 106.0 300 - Weekly, when Grab - EFF-7B
Suspended (CD and discharging
ECST) MG/
Solids, Total 100.0% 300 - Weekly, when Grab EFE-7
Suspended (CD and dacharging
BCSTHD-00F] (MG/ALY
Copper, Total 37 Report - Daily, when Grab EFF-7
Recoverable (UG discharging
Iron, Total Recoverable 300.0° Report Daily, when Grab EFF-7
{UGALY discharging
Total Iron; LBS/MG of Report 3.3435% e Duily, when Grabh EFF-7
Metal Cleaning Waste discharging
generated
Total Copper, LBS/MG Report 8.345% - Daily, when Giraby EFF-7B
of Metal Cleaning discharging
Waste seneriated
Yydrazine, MG/L wmm Report’ - Per Occurrence Grab EFF-7B
Hydrazine, MG/L i 034174 N Daily, when Caleulation BRE-?
discharging
Hydrogquinane, MG/L | e - Report’ Per Occurrence Greb EFF-7B
Hydroguinone, MG/EL | weeeenn 138 B IR Daity, when Caleulation EFF-7
discharging
Total Ammonia {as N}, —— Report® e Per Oécurresice Grab EFF-7TB
MG/
Total Ammonis (8§ N}, | 0,047%% - Diafly, when Calculntion EFF-7
discharging
MG/L .

2 Monitoring requiremnts only applicable if the dischargs from I-FE and 1-RG, the CD discharge or the ECST (following adequate mixing)
exceeds the daily maximum Hmitation of 100.0 mg/! or a minimal dilztion rate of 4 to 1 is not achieved as determined by the operatar und
recorded it logs saintzined onsite for inspection by the Depariment.
* Limitations and monitoring requirements for total fron of MCW, total capper of MCW, total recoverable copper and otal recoverable iron arg
epplicable only on any calendar day in which metal cleaning waste ig dischurged in the ¢ffiuent fom LFG the Bvaparator Condensate Storage

Tank and/or the Condensate System.

* 1 imitations apply to the effluents from cutfall 1-FG, BCST and the Condensate System.

* Limitations apply to the ESCT, CD or 1FG discharge. containing stearn ganerator luy up chemicals. One grab sample shall be taken from any
batch potentizfly containing »1.0 mgh of hydrazine, based on the operator’s knowledge of the process, The measured concentrations of

hydrazine, hydroquinone, ammoenia and morpholine shall be reported monthly on the DMR

6y g . o~ . . .
The Hmitations apply av DOF. Calculation.shall be used 10 determine the concentration of
hydrogquinone, hydrazing, ammonia and morpholine at D-0F:
D-OF concentration { mg/l) = (measured soncentration [ma/l)) (discharge flow)?

flow to D-OF

* ‘The calenlation could apply 1 any baich wivich potentiuily sontains >1.0 mg/t of hydrizine.
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Progress Energy Florida Issuance date: May 9, 2005 Pa e-l_l of 34
Crystal River Units 1,2, and 3 g

P.O. Box 14042 Expiration date: May §, 2010

St. Petersburg, FL 34428

Diischarge Limitations Menitoring Requirements
Parameters (units) Daily Daily Average Draily Monitoring Sample Type S'.m?pie
Maximum Minimum Frequency Point
Morphatine, MG/L — Report® — Per Ocourrence Grab EFF-7B
Muorpholine, MG/ o 1.78%% — Daily, when Calculaticn EFF-7
digcharzing
PH, Standard Units Report - Report Daily, when Grab INT-74,
discharging
PH, Standard Usits 8.3 - 6.5 Daily, when Grab EFF-7
discharging
Spectrus CT1308, See itern LALIR EFE-7
MG/
Spectrus CT 1300 Report Report Report 1/Application Grab EFF7
(MG/L) ‘
Whole Efffuent Toxicity Ser item LA1D EFF-7
(ACUTE)

16. Effluent samples shall be tzken at the monitoring site locations listed in permit condition LA.15 and as described

below:
Szimpie Poiut Deseription of Monitoring Location
INT-74 Intake fow 4t the combined water intake pumps.
SFF-3D Atthe bulkherd line which is nezr the down stream end of the site discharge camal.
EFF-7 Prior to mixing with site discharge capal,
BFF-78 Prior to gischarge to outfail D-00F

17. Mounitoring for pH'in the combined discharge (D-OF) is required only during periods when I-FG and/or CD is
discharging. If no discharge from I.FG or CD occurs, sampling shall be during next discharge of I-FG and/or
CD into the combined discharge at D-0F.

18. Spectrus CT1300 shall be used only in accordance with the following procedures:

a.}. There will be an interval of at least 21 days between any two successive applications, unless more frequent
applications are requested in writing and approved in writing by the Departiment within 14 days of receipt of the
request.

by CT1300 may be applied at a rate not to exceed 4.5 mg/l through the Unit 3 service water system. No
applicution period may exceed 18 hours, unless approved in writing by the Department.
c.} Progress Energy will record and retain the following imformation of each CT1300 treatment

I. time of initiation and completion of treatment,

2. mass and concentration of CTI300 during the test period, and

3. resnlts of toxicity testing, if applicable.
d.} When toxicity testing is required, PEF will submit the information specified in Condition LA.16.d. zbove to
the Department within fourteen days of receipt.
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19. The permittee shall initiate the series of tests described below beginning within 60 days of the issuance of the
permit to evaluate whole effluent toxicity of the discharge from Outfall D-00F. All test species, procedures and
quality assurance criteria nsed shall be in accordance with Methods for Measuring Acute Toxicity of Effluents to
Freshwater and Marine Organisms, 5% ed. EPA-821-R-02-012, or the most current edition.

The control water and the effluent used will be adjusted to an appropriate salinity using artificial sea salts as
described in EPA-821-R-02-012, Section 7.4.2., or the most current edition. The appropriate tests salinity shall
be determined as follows:

When the salinity of the effluent is between 1 and 7 parts per thousand (ppt), the following salinity adjustment
shall be used in the test of 100% effluent. For the Americamysis (Mysidopsis) bahia bioassays, the effluent and
the control (0% effluent) shall be adjusted to a salinity of 7+1 ppt for the 100% effluent test using artificial sea
salts, No salinity adjustment shall be done for the Menidia bervllina bioassay test of the 100% effluent.

When the salinity of the effluent is greater than 7 parts per thousand, no salinity adjustment shali be made and
the test shall be run at the efflusnt’s salinity for both species. ‘

A standard reference toxicant quality assurance {(QA) acute toxicity test shall be conducted concwrrently or no
greater than 30 days before the date of the “routine” test, with each species used in the toxicity tests. The results
of all Q4 toxicity tests shall be submitted with the discharge monitoring report {DMR}. Any deviation from the
bivassay procedures outlined herein shall be submitted i writing to the Department for review and approval
prior to use.

a. (1) The permittee shall conduct 36-hour acute static renewal toxicity fests using the mysid shrimp,
Armericamysis (Mysidopsis) bahia, and the inland silverside, Menidia bervilina, All tests willbe
conducted on four separate grab sammples collected at evenly-spaced (6-hr) intervals over a 24-hour
period and used in four separate tests in order to catch any peaks of toxicity and to account for daily
variations i effluent quality.

(2} If conmrol mortality exceeds 10% for either species in any test, the test for that species ({ocluding the
control) shall be repeated. A test will be congidered valid only if control mortality does not excesd
10% for cither species. If, in any separate grab sample test, 100% mortality occurs prior to the snd of
the test, and control mortality is less than 10% at that time, that test {including the control) shall be
terminated with the conclusion that the sample dernonstrates unacceptable acute toxicity.

bo (1) The wxicity tests specified above shall be conducted once every two months until 6 valid
bimonthly tests are completed. These tests are referred 1o as “routing” tests. Upon the completion of six valid
tests which derhonstrate that no unacceptable toxicity (as defined in d.1.) bas been identified, the permittee may
petition the Department for a reduction in monitoring frequency.

{2} Results from “routine” tests shall be reported according to EPA-821-R-02-012, Section 12, Report
Preparation (or the roost current edition), and shall be submitted to:

Florida Department of Environmental Protection
Southwest Disirict Office

3804 Coconut Palm Drive

Tampa, Florida 33619-3378

3) Results from “routine” tests shall be reported on the Discharge Monitoring Report (DMR) as follows:
1. If greater then 50% mortality occurs in any of the four separate grab sample tests for the test
species, “<100” (less than 100% effluent) should be entered on the DMR for that test species.
i, If 50% or less mortality occurs in all four separate grab sammple tests for the test species, “>100"
(greater than 100% effluent) should be entered on the DMR for that test species.
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ii. For each of the additional tests required, the calculated LCS0 value should be entered on the DMR.
for that test species.
c. (1) All “routing” tests shall be conducted using a control (0% effluent) and one test concentration of 106%
final effluent.

{2) Mortalities of greater than 50% in any sample of 100% effluent in any “routine” test or an LC30 of less
than 100% effluent in any additional definitive test will constitute a violation of these permit conditions
and Rule 62-4.244(3)(2), F.A.C.

d. (1) If unacceptable acute toxicity (greater than 20% mortality in any grab sample of 100% effluent) is
determined in a “routine” test, the permittee shall conduct three additional tests on each species
indicating acute toxicity. The first additional test will inchude four grab samples taken as described in
a.1. and run as four separate definitive analyses. The second and third additionel definitive tests will be
run on a single grab sarmple collected on the day and time when the greatest toxicity was identified in
the “routine” test. Results for each additional test will include the determination of LC50 values with
95% confidence limits.

(2) Lach additional test shall be conducted using a control (0% efiluent) and a minimum of five dilutions:
100%, 50%, 25%, 12.5% and 6.25% effluent and a control (0% effluent). The dilution series may be
modified in the second and third test to more accurately identify the toxicity, such that at least two
dilutions above and two dilutions below the target toxicity and a control (0% effluent) are run,

{3) For each additional test, the sample collection requirements and the test acceptability criteria specified
n section a. above must be met for the test to be copsidered valid. The first test shall begin within two
weeks of the end of the “routine” tests, and shall be conducted weekly thereafter until three additional,
valid tests are completed. The additional tests will be used to determine if the foxicity found in the
“routine” test i still present. ,

{4y Results from additional tests, required due to unacceptable toxicity in the “routine” tests, shall be
submitted in a single report prepared according to EPA-821-R-02-012, Section 12, or the most current
edition and submitted within 45 days of completion of the third additional, valid test. If the additional
tests demonstrate unacceptable toxicity, the permittee will meet with the Department within 30 days of
the Teport submittal to identify cotrective actions necessary to remedy the unacceptable toxicity,

10
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20. During the period beginning on the issuance date and lasting through the expiration date of this permit, the

permittee is authorized to discharge process wastewater fom Internal Outfall I-0FG to Outfall D-00F

Regeneration Waste Neutralization Tank. Such discharge shall be limited and monitored by the permittee as

specified below:
Discharge Limitations Monitoring Requirements
Parameters (units) Daily Average Daily Daily Monitoring Sampie Yype Sample
Maximum Minimam Frequeney Point
Flow, (MGD) Report Report - 1/Bdteh Caleulaind EFF-8
Copper, Total - 8.345 - 1/Batch Grab BEF-8
Recoverable hs/MG
{ronm, Total Recoverable - 8.345 g WBaich Grab EFE.8
IbsiMG
Oit and Grease, (MG/L) 154 20.0 - 1/Batch Grab EFE-8
Total Suspended Solids, 30.0 100.0 - 1/Batch Grab EFF-3
MG/L
PH, Standard Units - 9.0 5.0 {Batch Grab BFF-8

21. Effluent samples shall be taken at the monitoring site locations Hsted in permit condition 1.A.20 and as described

below:

Sample Point

Description of Monitering Location

EFF-8

Atoutfall I-FG prier to mixing with outfall D-00OF

22. During the period beginning onthe effective date of this permit and lasting through the expiration, the permittee
is authorized to discharge stormwater froin Outfall D-00H- Coal Pile Runoff (Units 1 and 2 to the marshy area
(wetlands) west of the coal pile storage area. Such discharge shall be limited and monitored by the permittes as

specified below:
Discharge Limitations Meonitoring Requirements
Pacameters {units) Monthiy Daily Daily Monitoring Samiple Type Sample
Average Maximum Minimum Fregueacy Point
Flow (MGD} - Report - Daily, when Calculnted EFF-9
discharging
‘Solids, Total . 0.0 - Daily, when Grab EFE9
Suspended (MG, Hscharging:
pended (¥ ) See cond. 24 gischarging
Arsenic, Total - 50. - Daily, when Grab EFF-9
Recoverable (UG/L) JHecharging
Cadmium, Tetal e 9.30 - Daily, when Grab EFF-9
Rexoverable (UGIL) discharging
Chromium, Total - 30.0 - Dby, when Grab EFF-9
Recoverable (UG/L) discharging

The limitetion is applicable only when metal cleaning waste is discharged through outhall -OFG

11



PERMITTEE:

Progress Energy Florida
Crystal River Units 1,2, and 3
P.0. Box 14042

St. Petersburg, FIL 34428

PERMIT NUMBER:

Tssuance date:

Expiration date:

DocKet No. You102-K1

Progress Energy Florida

Witness: Thomas Lawery

FLO000159 Exhibit No. __ (TL-2)
May 9, 2005 Page 15 of 34

May 8, 2010

Discharge Limitations Monitoring Requirements
Parameters {units) Maonthly Daily Daily Mounitoring Sample Type Sarx}ple
Average Maximum Minimum Frequency Point
Copper, Total - 37 - Daily, when Grab EFF9
Recoverable (UG} dischurging
Iren, Total Recoverable - 0.3 - Daily, when Grab EFE.9
(MG discharging
Lead, Total - 8.5 - Daily, when Grab EFF-$
Recoverable (UG/L) discharging )
Mercury, Total - 0.025 - Daily, when Grab EFF-9
Recoverable (UG discharging
Nigkel, Total e 830 - Diaily, when Grab EFEQ
Recoverable (UGIALY discharging
Selenium, Total - 710 - Daily, when Grsb EFE-B
Recoverable (UG/L) discharging
Zine, Total Recoverable - §6.0 - Deily, when Grab EFF-9
UG/ discharging
Vanadium, Total - Report - Daily, when Grab EFF-9
Recoverable (PPM) discharging
PH SO 8.5 6.5 Tiaily, when Grab INT-3B
discharging
PH (SU}) 8.5 6.5 Daily, when Grab EFF-9
: digcharging

23. Effluent samples shall be taken at the monitoring site locations listed in permit condition LA.22 and as deseribed

below:
Sample Point Description of Monitoring Location
E¥FE-9 Point of discharge from the treatment system prior to entering wetlands area.
IMT-38 Itake at Unit 2 .

24, T}}e treatment system (coal pile storage area) shall be capable of containing a 10 year, 24-hour (10Y 24H)
rainfall event. The limitation for total suspended solids of 50 mg/l shall apply only to discharges resulting from
ramfall less than a 10-year 24 —hour rainfall event.

o
b



Docket No. U60162-E1
Progress Energy Florida
Witness: Thomas Lawery

PERMITTEE: PERMIT NUMBER:  FLO000159 Exhibit No. __(TL-2)
Progress Energy Florida lssuance date: May 9, 2005 Page 16 of 34
Crystal River Units 1,2, and 3

P.O. Box 14042 Expiration date: May 8, 2010

St. Petersburg, FL 34428

25. During the period beginning on the issuance date and lasting through the expiration date of this permut, the

permittee is anthorized to discharge once-through non-contact cooling water from Cutfalls D-071 and D-872
Helper Cooling Tower to the site discharge canal and thence to the Gulf of Mexico. Such discharge shall be
limited and monitored by the permittee as specifled below:

Diseharge Limitations Monitoring Requirements
Parameters (units) Daily Daily Average Daily Monitoring Sampte Type Sample
Maximum ] Minimum Frequency Foint

Intake Flow (MGD) Report Report - Contiauous Pumyp logs INT-104

Oxidants, Total oot Report - Contiruous Recorder EFE-10B
Residuat (MGAD

TRO-Discharge Time 0.0, see cond. - - Contirwous Recorder EFF-108

{MIN/DAY) LAZS.
pH (8U) Report - Report, Quarterly Grab INT-10A
PH S 3.5 - 8.5 Quarterly Grab EFF-108B

26. Effluent samples shall be taken at the monitoring site locations listed in permit condition 1.A.25 and as described

helow:

Sampie Point

Description of Moritaring Location

INT-10A Common Intake for aff helper cooling tower intake pumps
BFE-10A At Qutfall D071 from helper cooling towers 1 and 2 1o the site discharge canal.
EFF-10B At Outfall D-072 from helper cooling towers 3 and 4 to the site discharge canal.

27. Cooling towers shall be operated as necessary 1o ensure that the discharge teroperature at Sampling Locatign

28.

3 3
[o T 2

EFF-3D does not exceed 96.5 F as a three-hour rolling average.

TRO may be discharged from either or both Outfalls D-071 and D-072 at the same time TRO is discharged from
Outfalls D-011, D-012, and D-013, provided that TRO discharge {rom either D-071 or D-072 does notexceed a
maximn instantdneous concentration of 0.01 mg/fl.

. Monitoring requirements are only applicable during periods of discharge.

. During the period beginning on the issuance date and lasting through the expiration date of this permit, the

permiitee is authorized to discharge intake screen wash waste water from Quifall D-094 to the site discharge
canal thence the Gulf of Mexico without lirmitation or monitoring requirements.

. During the period beginning on the issuance date and lasting through the expiration date of this permit, the

permittee is authorized to discharge stormwater from Qutfalls D-100, D-200, D-300, D-400, and D-500 to the
site discharge canal and thence to the Gulf of Mexico without Hinftation or mondtoring requirements.

. Diring the period beginning on the issuance date and lasting through the expiration date of this permit, the

permittee is authorized to discharge storm water from Outfall D-600 Plant Area to the site intake canal and
thence to the Guif of Mexico. Such discharge shall be limited and monitored by the permitiee as speciffed

below:

1
Limitations end manitoring requirements for TRO and e of TR discharge for outfall D-071 and outfall D072 are not applicable for any
calendar day in which cliforine s not added.
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Discharge Limitations

Monitoring Requirements

Parameters {units) Daily Daily Daily Monitoring Sample Type Sample
Maximum Minimum Freguency Point
Average :
Flow (MGD) - Report - Morthly, when Calculated EFF-600
discharging
Total recoverable iron - Regiort - Monthly, when Grab EFF-600
(UG discharging

L
[#%

below:

Effluent samples shall be taken at the monitoring site locations listed in permit condition LA.32 and as described

Sample Point

Description of Maonitering Location

EFF-GR0

Prior to dischargé fom Outfail D-600 to the intake canal,

34, Stormwater from No. 2 Fuel Oil Tank Diked Petroleum Stordge or Handling Area

a. Penmiitee is authorized to discharge stormtwater from diked petroleum storage or handling areas, provided

the following conditions are roet:

b. Such discharges shall be limited and monitored by the permittee as specified below:

1. The facility shall have a valid SPCC Plan pursuant to 40 CFR 112.

]

2. In draining the diked area, a portable oil skimmer or similar device or absorbent material shall be used

to remove oil and grease (as indicated by the presence of a sheen) immediately prior to draining.

L2

informpation, as a minbmum;
Date and time of discharge,

Estimated volume of discharge,

a.)
b.)
c.}
d.}

Monitoring records shall be maintained in the form of 2 log and shall coutain the following

Initials of person making visual inspection and authorizing discharge, and

Observed conditions of storm water discharged.

4. There shall be no discharge of fléating solids or visible foam m other than trace amounts and no
discharge of a visible oil sheen at any time.

35, As specified above, sampling for the storm water discharge shall be conducted once per discharge event.

36. There shall be no discharge of floating solids or visible foam in other than trace amounts.

37. The discharge shall not cause a visible sheen on the receiving water.

B. Underground Injection Control Svstems

This section is not applicable to this facility.

C. Land &pplication Svsterms

The land application system for this facility is regulated under separate Deparmient Penmit FLAG169660

14
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. QOther Mecthods of Disposal or Recycling

There shall be no discharge of industrial wastewater from this facility to ground or surface waters, except as
authorized by this permit,

Other Limitations and Monitorine and Reporting Requirements

1.

{5

The sample collection, analytical test methods and method detection limits (MDLs) applicable to this permit shall
be in accordance with Rule 62-4.246, Chapters 62-160 and 62-601, F.A.C., and 40.CFR 136, as appropriate. The
list of Department established analytical methods, and corresponding MDLs (method detection limits) and PQLs

{practical quantification limits), which is titled “Florida Devartment of Environmental Protection Table as

S

available from the Department on request. The MDLs and PQLs as described in this list shall constitute the
minimum acceptable MDL/PQL values and the Department shall not aceept results for which the laboratory's
MDLs or PQLs are greater than those described above unless alternate MDLs and/or PQLs have been specifically
approved by the Department for this permdt. Any method included in the list may be used for reporting as loog as
it meets the following requirerments:

The laboratory’s reported MDL and PQL values for the particular method must be equal or less than the
corresponding method values specifiéd in the Department’s approved MDL and PQL list;

b. The laboratory reported PQL for the specific parameter is less than or equal to the permit limit or the
applicable water quality criteria, if any, stated in Chapter 62-302, F.A.C. Parameters that are listed as
“report only” {n the perruit shall use methods that provide a PQL, which is equal to or less than the
applicable water guality criteria stated in 62-302 FAC, and

c. Ifthe PQLs for all methods available in the approved list are above the stated permit limit or applicable
water quality criteria for that parameter, then the method with the lowest stated PQL shall be used.

Where the analytical results are below method detection or practical quantification limits, the permittee shall
report the actual laboratory MDL and/or PQL values for the analyses that were performed foliowing the
Instructions on the applicable discharge monitoring report. Approval of alternate laboratory MDLs or PQLs ate
not necessary if the laboratory reported MDLs and PQLs are less than or equal to the pexmit limit or the
spplicable water quality criteria, if any, stated in Chapter 62-302, F.A.C. However, where necessary, the
permities may request approval for alternative methods or for alternative MDILs and PQLs for any approved
analytical method, in accordance with the criteria of Rules 62-160.520 and 62-160.530, F.A.C.

Parameters which must be monitored as a result of a suiface water digcharge shall be analyzed nsing a
sufficiently sensitive method in accordance with 40 CFR. Part 136.

Monitoring requirements under this permit are effective on the first day of the second month following permit
jssuance. Until such tine, the permittee shall continue to monitor and report in'accordance with previously
effective permit requirements, if any. During the period of operation authorized by this permit, the permittee
shall complete and submuit to the Southwest Dismict Office Discharge Monitoring Reports {DMRs) in
accordance with the frequencies specified by the REPORT type (i.e., monthly, toxicity, quarterly, semiannual,
annual, efe.) indicated on the DMR forms attached to this permit. Monitoring results for each monitoring period
shall be submitted in accordance with the associated DMR due dates below.
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REPORT Type Monitoring Pertod DMR Due Date
On DMR
Monthly or Toxicity | First day of month — last day of month 28" day of following menth
Quarterly January 1~ March 31 April 28
April 1 — June 30 July 28
July 1 — September 30 October 28
October 1 ~ December 31 January 28
Semi Annual January 1-June 30 July 28
July 1- December 31 Jammary 28
Annual January 1-December31 January 28

DMRs shall be submitted for each required monitoring period including months of no discharge.

The permittee shall make copies of the attached DMR form(sy and shall submit the completed DMR form(s) to
the Department at the address specified below:

Florida Department of Envirommental Protection
Wastewater Compliance Evaluation Section, Mail Station 3550
Twin Towers Office Building
2600 Blair Stone Road
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2400

4. Unless specified otherwise in this permit, all reports and notifications required by this perit, including twenty-
four hour notifications, shall be submitted 10 or reported to the Southwest District Office at the address specified

below:

Southwest District Office
3804 Coconut Palm Drive.
Tampa, Florida 33619-8378

Phone Number - (813) 744-6100
FAX Number - (813)744-8198 (All FAX copies shall be followed by original copies.)

5. Allreports and other information shall be signed in accordance with requirements of Rule 62-620.305, F.A.C

6. The permittee shall provide safe access points for obtaining representative samples which are required by this

parm,it.

7. If thers is no discharge from the facility on a day scheduled for sampling, the sarple shall be collected on the
day of the next discharge

8. There shall be no discharge of polychlorinated biphenyl compounds.

9. Discharge of any product registered under the Federal Insecticide, Pungicide, and Rodenticide Act to any waste
stream which ultimately may be released to waters of the State is prohibited unless specifically authorized
elsewhere in this permit. This requirement is not applicable to products used for lawn and agricultural purposes
or to the use of herbicides if used in accordance with labeled instructions and any applicable State permit.

A penmit revision from the Department shall be required prior to the use of any biccide or chemical additive
used in the cooling syster or any other portion of the treatment system which may be toxic to aquatic life. The
pert revision request shall include:

16
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10.

11

13.

14.

16.

17.

Nagnie and general composition of biocide or chemical

Frequencies of use

Quantities to be used

Proposed sffluent concentrations

Acute and/or chronic toxicity data (laboratory reports shall be prepared according to Section 12 of EPA
document no. EPA/600/4-90/027 entitled, Methods For Measuring the Acute Toxicity of Effinents and
Recetving Waters for Freshwater and Maripe Organisms, or most current addition. )

£ Product data sheet

g. Product label

poap o

The Department shall review the above information to determine if a substantial or minor permit revision is
necessary. IMscharge associated with the use of such biocide or chernical is not authorized without a permit
revision by the Departrnent. Permit revisions shall be processed in accordance with the requirements of
Chapter 62-620, F.A.C.

Discharge of any waste tesulting from the combustion of toxd¢, hazardous, or metal cleaning wastes to any waste
siream which ulfirately dischargss to waters of the State is prohibited, unless specifically autborized elsewhere
in this pemmt.

Any bypass of the treatment facility which is not included in the monitoring specified in LA, 1B, 1.C, or 1D, is
to be monitored for flow and all other required parameters. For parameters other than flow, at least one grab
sample per day shall be monitored. Daily flow shall be monitored or estimated, as appropriate , to obtain
reportable-data. All monitoring results shall be reported on the appropriate DMR.

. The Penmittee shall continue compliance with the facility's Manatee Protection Plan approved by the

Departraent on May 15, 2002,
~Combined Waste Streams

In the event that waste streamns fom various sources are combined for treatmment or discharge, the quantity of
each pollutant or pollutant property attributable to each controlled waste source shall not exceed the specified
Hmitaton for that waste sourcs (zef. 40 CFR Section 423.15(k);1974).

Condenser Maintenance Program

2.} 'The permittee is authorized to use SIDTEC, a mecharical on-line condenser maintenance service program
at Units 1 and 2.

b.}) The permittes s authorized to use the existing Amertap Condenser Cleaning Systers at Unit 3, or an
equivalent systeny. However, any substantive change to the cleaning ball devices or ball retrieval system is
subject to approval by the Department..

. The permittee shall develop a Plan of Study (POS) for seagrass monitoring pursuant to the schedule in Item

V1.2, incledmg a proposed Implementation schedule, for continued monitoring of seagrass recovery. The
Department will review the evaluation plan and implementation schedule for revision, as needed

The Permittee shall develop an evaluation plan in accordance with Rule 62-302.520(1), F.A.C,, pursuant to the
schedule in item V1. 3, including a proposed implementation schedule, designed to determine any effects on
biological commmmities from the heated water discharge to Crystal Bay. The plan shall address monitoring of
submerged grasses, benthic macroinvertebrates, and other aquatic species as appropriate, and shall include
1eporting requirements. The evaluation plan shall incorporate existing data developed by the Permittes and
available data other sources as well as any additional monitoring to be conducted by the Permittes, if necessary.
The Departinent will review the evaluation plan and implementation schedule for revision, as needed.

The Permittee is authorized to use the following previously approved chemical additives and biocides: Spectrus
CT-1300, Dianodic DN2140, Spectrug NX1103, Spectrus NX1100, and Foamtrol AF1440.
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1L

L.

V.

Industrial Sludge Management Requirements
This section not applicable to this facility:

Ground Water Monitoring Requirements
This section is not applicable to this facility,

Other Land Application Requirements
Land application requirements for this facility are regulated by separate Department permit FLAC16960.

Operation and Maintenance Requirements

Operation of Treatment and Disposal Facilities

The permittee shall ensure that the operation of this facility is as described in the application and supporting
documents.

The operation of the pollution control facilities described in this permit shall be under the supervision of a person
who is qualified by formal training and/er practical experience in the ficld of water pollution control.

B. Record keeping Requirements:

1.

The permittee shall maintain the following records on the site of the permitted facility and make them available
for inspectiom:

Ricords of all complance monitoring information, meludin g, al} calibration and maintenance records and all
original strip chart recordings for continuous monitoring mstrumentation, including, if applicable, a copy of the
laboratory certification showing the certification number of the laboratory, for at least three years from the dats
the sarnple or measurement was taken;

Copies of all reports, other than those required in itexns a. and £. of this section, required by the permit for at least
three years from the date the report was prepared, unless otherwise specified by Departrent rule;

Records of all data, including reports and documents used to complete the application for the permit for at least
three years from the date the application was filed, unless otherwise specified by Department rule;

A copy of the current permit;
A copy of any required record drawings;

Copies of the logs and schedules showing plant operations and equipment maintenance for three years from the
date on the logs or schedule.

18
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V1.
1.

[ S8

Schedules

A Best Management Practices Pollution Prevention (BMP3) Plan shall be prepared 2ud implemented in
accordance with Part VI of this permit and the following schedule:

Action Item Scheduled Completion Date
1 | Continue Implersenting Existing BMP3 Plan Tssuance Date of Permut

Within three months after issuance of this permit, the Permittee shall meet with the Department to discuss the
content of a Plan of Study {POS) for a seagrass study in accordance with the requirements of tem LE. 135, and
shall submit the POS within six months of issuance of this permit.

Within six months after issuance of this permit, the Permittee shall mset with the Department to discuss the
content of a Plan of Study {(POS) for biological monitoring in accordance with the regnitements of Itern LE. 16,
and shall submit the POS within twelve months of issuance of this permit.

The permittee shall achieve compliance with the other conditions of this permit as follows:
Operstional level attained Issuance Date of permit

No later than 14 calendar days following a date identified in the above schedule(s) of compliance, the pemmittes
shall submit either 2 report of progress o, in the case of specific actions being required by an identified date, a
written notice of compliance or noncompliance. In the latter case, the notice shall include the cause of
noncompliance, any remedial actions taken, and the probability of meeting the next scheduled requirerent

The permittee shall comply with the requirersents of 40 CFR part 125.9(a)(1} and (2} no later than upon
submittal of a timely application for permit renewal, submitted pursuant to the requirements of condition VILC.
of this permit.

ViI. Other Specific Conditions

Drawings, plans, documents or specifications submitted by the permittee, not attached hereto, but retained on file

Where required by Chapter 471 (P.E.) or Chapter 492 (P.G.} Florida Statntes, applicable portious of reports to
be submitied under this permit, shall be signed and sealed by the professional{s) who prepared them.

This permit satisfies Industrial Wastewater program permitting requirements only and does not authorize
operation of this facility prior to obtaining any other permits required by local, state or federal agencies.

A, Specific Conditions Applicable to All Permits
1.

at the Southwest District Gffice, are made a part hereof,
2.
3.
B.  Specific Conditions Related to Construction

This section is not applivable to this facility.

C.  Duty to Reapply
1.

The permittee shall subrnit an application to renew this permit at least 180 days before the expiration date of this
permit.

19



PERMITTEE: PERMIT NUMBER: FLOO0D1S9
Progress Energy Florida Issuance date: May 9, 2005

Progress Energy Florida

Witness: Thomas Lawery
Exhibit No. __(TL-2)
Page 23 of 34

Crystal River Units 1,2, and 3
P.0O. Box 14042 Expiration date: May 8, 2010
St. Petersburg, F1. 34428

[

GJ

The permittee shall apply for renewal of this permit on the appropriate form listed in Rule 62-620.910, F.AC,
and in the manner established in Chapter 62-620, F.A.C., and the Department of Environmental Frotection Guide
1o Wastewater Permnitting including submittal of the appropriate processing fee set forth in Rule 62-4.050, F A.C.

An application filed in accordance with subseéctions 1. and 2. of this part shall be considered timely and
sufficient. When an application for renewal of a perruit is timely and sufficient, the existing permit shall not
expire until the Department has taken final action on the application for renewal or nntil the last day for seeking
judicial review of the agency order or a later date fixed by order of the reviewing court,

The late submittal of a renewal application shall be considered timely and sufficient for the purpose of extending
the effectiveness of the expiring permmit only if it is submitted and made complete before the expiration date.

Specific Conditions Related to Best Manavement Practices/Pollution Prevention Conditions

General Conditions

In accordance with Section 304(e) and 402(a)}(2) of the Clean Water Act (CWA) as amended; 33 U.S.C. §§
1251 et seq., and the Pollution Prevention Act of 1990, 42 U.S.C. §§ 13101-13109, the permittee must develop
and implement a plan for utilizing practices incorporating pollution prevention measures, References to be
considered in developing the plan are "Criteria and Standards for Best Management Practices Authorized Under
Section 304(e) of the Act," found at 40 CFR 122.44 Subpart K and the Waste Minimization Opportunity
Assessment Manual, EPA/G25/7-88/003.

a. Definitions
{1) The texm "pollutants” refers to conventional, non-conventional and toxic pollutants.

(2) Conventional pollutants are: biochemical oxygen demand (BOD), suspended solids, pH, fecal coliform
bacteria and o1l & grease,

(3) Non-conventional pollutants are those which are not defined as conventional or toxic.

{4) Toxic pollutants include, but are not limited to: (a) any toxic substance listed in Section 307(a)(1) of
the CWA, any hazardous substance listed in Section 311 of the CWA, or chemical listed in Section
313(c) of the Superfund Amendments and Reauthorization Act of 1986; and (b} any substance (that is
not also a conventional or non-conventional pollutant except ammonia) for which EPA has published
an acute or chronic toxicity criterion.

(5) "Pollution prevention" znd "waste minimization” refer to the first two categories of EPA's preferred
hazardous waste management strategy: first; source reduction and then, recycling,

(6) "Recycle/Rense" is defined as the minimization of waste generation by recovering and reprocessing
usable products that might ofherwise become waste; or the reuse or reprocessing of usable waste
products in place of the original stock, or for other purposes such as material recovery, material
regeneration or energy production.

(7) "Sowrce reduction” means any practice which: (2) reduces the amount of any pollutant entering a waste
stream or otherwise released into the environinent {including fugitive emissions) prior to recycling,
treatment or disposal; and (b) reduces the hazards to public health and the environment associated with
the release of such pollutant. The term includes equipment or technology modifications, process or
procedure modifications, reforrmulation or redesign of products, substitution of raw materials, and
improvements in housekeeping, maintenance, training, or inventory control. It does not include any
practice which aliers the physical, chemical, or biological characteristics or the volume of a pollutant
through a process or activity which ftseif is not integral to, or previously considsred necessary for, the
production of a procuct ot the providing of a service.
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(8) "BMP3" means a Best Management Plan incorporating the requirements of 40 CFR § 122.44, Subpart
¥, plus pollution prevention techniques associated with 2 Waste Minimization Assessment.

{9) "Waste Minimization Assessment" means a systematic planned procedure with the objective of
identifying ways to reduce or eliminate waste.

2. Best Management Practices/Pollution Prevention Plan

The permittee shall develop and implement a BMP3 plan for the facility which i¢ the source of wastewater and
storm water discharges covered by this perradt. The plan shall be directed toward reducing those pollutants of
concern which discharge to surface waters and shall be prepared in accorduance with good engineering and good
housekeeping practices. For the purposes of this permit, pollutants of concern shall be limited to toxic
pollutants, as defined above, known to the discharger. The plan shell address all activities which could or do
contribute these pollutants to the surface water discharge, including process, ireatment, and ancillary activities.
The BMP3 plan shall contain the following components;

a. Signatory Authority & Management Responsibilities

The BMP3 plan shall be signed by the permittee or their duly authorized representative i accordance with nile
62-620:305(2)(a) and (b). The BMP3 plan shall be reviewed by the plant environmental/engineering staff and
plant manager. Where required by Chapter 471 (P.E.) or Chapter 492 (P.G.} Florida Statutes, applicable
portions of the BMP3 plan shall be signed and sealed by the professional(s) who prepared them,

A copy of the plan shall be retained at the facility and shall be made available to the Department tpon
request.

The BMP3 plan shall contain a written statement fom corporate or plant management indicating
management's cormmitment to the goals of the BMP3 prograrm. Such statements shall be publicized or made
known to all facility employees. Management shall also provide waining for the individuals responsible for
implementing the BMP3 plan.

b. BMP3 Plan Requirements

{1} Name & description of facility, a map {llustrating the location of the facility & adjacent receiving
waters, and other maps, plot plans or drawings, as necessary;

{2) Overall objectives (both short-term and long-term)-and scope of the plan, specific reduction goals for
pollutants, anticipated dates of achievement of reduction, and a description of means for achigving cach
reduction goal;

(3} A description of procedures relative to spill prevention, control & countermeasures and a description of
measures employed to prevent storm water contamination;
{4} A description of practices involving preventive maintenance, housekeeping, recordkesping,
inspections, and plant security; and
¢. Waste Minimization Assessment
The permittee i3 encouraged but not required to conduct a waste minimization assessment (WMA} for this

facility to determing actions that could be taken to reduce waste loadings and chemical losses to all
wastewater and/or storm water streams as described in Part VIID.3 of this permit.

If the Permittee elects to develop and implement a WMA, informnation on plan components can be obtained
from the Department's Industrial] Wastewater website, or fromu
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Florida Department of Environmental Protection
Industrial Wastewater Section, Mail Station 3545
Twin Towers Office Building

2600 Blair Stone Road

Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2400

(850) 245-8589
(850) 245-8669 -- Fax

Best Management Practices & Pollution Prevention Comrmittee Recommended:

A Best Management Practices Commitiee (Cormmittee) should be established to direct or assist in the
implementation of the BMP3 plan. The Commirttes should be comprised of individuals within the plant
organization who are responsible for developing the BMP3 plan and assisting the plant manager in its
immplementation, monitoring of success, and revision. The activities and responsibilities of the Committee
should address all aspects of the facility's BMP3 plan, The scope of responsibilities of the Committes
should be described in the plan.

Employes Training

Employee training programs shall inform personnel at all levels of responsibility of the components & goals
of the BMP3 plan and shall describe employee responsibilities for implementing the plan. Traiming shall
address topics such as good housekeeping, materials management, record kesping & reporting, spill
prevention & response, as well as specific-waste reduction practices to be smployed: Training shall also
disclose bow individual employees may contribute suggestions concerning the BMP3 plan or suggestions
regarding Pollution Prevention. The plan shall identify periodic dates for such training.

Plan Development & Implementation

The BMP3 plan shall be implemented upon the effective date of this permit, unless any later dates are

specified in this permit. If a WMA is ongoing at the timue of development or implementation it may be
described in the plan. Any waste reductién practice which is recommended for implementation over a
period of time may also be identified in the plan, including a schedule for its implementation.

Submission of Plan Summary & Progress/Update Reports

(1) Plan Summnary: Not later than 2 years after the effective date of the permit, a summary of the BMP3
plan shall be developed and maintained at the facility and made available to the Departrment upon
request. The sunmnary shall include the following: a brief description of the plan, its implementation
process, schedules for implementing identified waste reduction practices, and a list of all waste
reduction practices being employed at the facility. The results of WMA studies, as well as scheduled
WMA activities may be discussed.

(2} Progress/Update Reports: Annually thereafter for the duration of the permit progress/update reports
documenting implementation of the plan shall be maintained at the facility and made available (o the
Department upon request. The reports shell discuss whether or not implementation schedules were met
and revise any schedules, as necessary. The plan shall also be updated as necessary and the attainment
or progress made toward specific pollutant reduction targets documented. Results of any ongomg
WMA studies as well as any additional schedules for implementation of waste reduction practices may
be inchuded.

N
[ \]
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(3) A recommended timetable for the various plan requirements follows:

Timetable for BMP3 Plan:
ELEMENT IME FROM EFFECTIVE DATE OF THIS PERMIT
Complete WMA (f & months
appropriate)
Progress/Update Reports 3 years, and then annually thereafter

The penmittes shall maintain the plan and subsequent reports at the facility and shall make the plan
available to the Department upon reguest.

Plan Review & Meodification

If following review by the Department, the BMP3 plan is determined insufficient, the permittee will be
notified that the BMP3 plan does not meet one or mote of the minimum requirerments of this Part. Upon
such notification from the Department, the permittee shall amend the plan and shall submit to the
Department a written certification that the requested changes have been made. Unless otherwise provided
by the Department, the perruittee shall have 30 days after such notification to make the changes necessary.

The permittee shall modify the BMP3 plan whenever thers is a change in dasign, construction, operation, oz
maintenance, which has a significant effect on the potential for the discharge of polhutants to waters of the
State or if the plan proves to be ineffective in achieving the general objéctives of reducing pollutants in
wastewater or stormn water discharges. Modifications fo the plan may be reviewed by the Department in the:
same manner as described above.

ecific Conditions Related to Existine Manufacturing, Commercial, Mining, and ‘Sxmmkure

Wastewater Facilities or Activities

Existing mamtfacturing, commercial, mining, and silvicultural wastewater facilities or activities that discharge
into swrizce waters shall notify the Department as soon as they know or have reason o beliove:

a. That any activity has occurred or will oceur which would result in the discharge, on a routine or frequent

basis, of any toxic pollutarit which is not limited in the permit, if that discharge will exceed the highest of the
following levels

{1} One bundred micrograms per liter,

(2) Two hundred micrograms per liter for acrolein and acrylonitrile; five hundred micrograms per liter for
2,4-dinjtrophenol and for Z-methyl-4,6-dinitrophenol; and one rmlligram per liter for antimony, or

(3) Five times the maximum concentration value reported for that poilutant in the permit application.

b, That any activity has occurred or will occur which would result in any discharge, on a pon-routine of

infrequent basis, of a toxic pollutant which is not Bmited in the p&mt if that discharge will exceed the
highest of the following levels

{1y Eive hundred micrograms per Lter,
(2} One milligram per liter for antimony, or
{3} Ten times the maximum concentrafion value reported for that pollutant in the permit application.

o]
(VX
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The permit shall be revised, or alternatively, revoked and reissued in accordance with the provisions contained
in Rules 62-620.325 and 62-620.345 F.A C, if applicable, or to comply with any applicable effhient standard or
limitation issued or approved under Sections 301(b)(2)(CY and (D), 304(b)(2) and 307(2)(2) of the Clean Water
Act (the Act), as amended, if the effluent standards, limitations, or water quality standards so issued or

a. Contains different conditions or is otherwise more stringent than any condition in the penmmt/or;
b. Controls any pollutant not addressed in the permat.

The permit as revised or reissued under this paragraph shall contain any other requirements then applicable.

F. Reopeper Clause
1.

approved:
2

L

The penmit may be reopened to adjust effluent limitations or monitoring requirements should future Water
Quality Based Effluent Limitation determinations, water quality studies, DEP approved changes i water quality
standards, or other information shiow 2 need for a different limitation or monitoring requirement,

The Department may develop a Total Maxiinum Daily Load (TMDL) during the Iife of the permit. Oncea

TMDL has been established and adopted by rule, the Department shall revise this permit to incorporate the final
findings of the TMDI..

vO1. General Conditions

L.

n

The terms, conditions, requirements, limitations and restrictions set forth in this permit are binding and
enforceable pursuant to Chapter 403, F.S. Any permit noncompliance constitutes a violation of Chapter 403,
F.S., and is grounds for enforcement action, permit termination, permit revocation and reissuance, or permit
revision. [62-520.610(1), FA.C]

This permit is valid only for the specific processes and operations applied for and indicated in the approved
drawings or exhibits, Any unauthorized deviation from the approved drawings, exhibits, specifications or
conditions of this permit constitutes grounds for reveocation and enforcement action by the Department. /62-
620.610(2), FACJ :

Ags provided in Subsection 403,087(6), ¥.8., the issuance of this permit does not convey any vested rights or any
exclusive privileges. Neither does it authorize any injury to public or private property or any invasion of
personal rights, nor authorize any infringements of federal, state, or local laws or regulations. This permit i8 not
a waiver of or approval of any other Department permit or authorization that may be required for offier aspests
of the total project which are rot addressed in this permit [62-620.610(3), F.ACJ

This permit conveys no title 10 Tand or water, does not constitute state recognition or acknowledgment of title,
and does not constitute authority for the vge of submerged lands unless herein provided and the neeessary title or
leasehold interests have been obtained from the State. Only the Trustees of the Internal Improvement Trust
Fund may express State opinion as to title. /62-620.610(4), F.A.C}

This permit does not relieve the permittee from Hability and penalties for harm or injury to hugan health or
welfare, animal or plant life, or property caused by the construction or operation of this permitted source; nor
does it allow the permittee to cause pollution in contravention of Florida Statutes and Department rules, unless
specifically mithorized by an order from the Department. The permittee shall take all reasonable steps to
niinimmize or prevent any discharge, reuse of reclairned water, or residuals use or disposal in viclation of this
permit which has a reasonable likelihood of adversely affecting hurman health or the environment. It shall not be
a defense for a permittes in an enforcement action that it would have been necessary to balt or reduce the
permitted activity in order to maintain compliance with the conditions of this penmit. [62-620.610(5), F.A.C]

If the permnitiee wishes to continue an activity regulated by this permit after its expiration date, the permitise
shall apply for and obtain 2 new permit. /62-620.610(6), F.A.C]
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10.

1.

13,

4.

The permittee shall at all times properly operate and maintain the facility and systems of treatment and control,
and related appurtenances, that are installed and used by the perruittee to zchieve compliance with the conditions
of this permit. This provision includes the operation of backup or auxiliary facilities or similar systems when
necessary to maintain or achieve compliance with the conditions of the permit. {62-620.610(7), FA.C]

This permit may be modified, revoked and reissued, or terminated for cause. The filing of a request by the
permittee for a perrnit revision, revocation and reissuance, or termination, or a notification of planned changes
or anticipated nondompliance does ot stay any permit condition. [62-620.610(8), F.A.C.}

The permittee, by accepting this permit, specifically agrees to allow authorized Department persongel, inchuding
an authorized representative of the Department and authorized EPA personnel, whea applicable, upon
presentation of credentials or other documents as may be required by law, and at reasonable times, depending
upon the nature of the concern being Investigated, to

a. Enter upon the permittee’s premises where a regulated facility, system, or activity is Jocated or conducted,
or where records shall be kept under the conditions of thds perrait;
Have access to and copy any records that shall be kept under the conditions of this permit;
Inspect the facilities, equipment, practices, or operations regulated or required under this permit; and
d. Sarmple or monitor any substances or parameters at any location necessary to assure compliance with this
permit or Departiment rules.

[62-620.610(9), F.A.C]
In-accepting this permit, the permittee understands-and agrees that all records, notes, monitoring data, and other
information relating to the construction or operation of this permitted source which are submitted to the
Department may be used by the Department as evidence in any enforcement case ivolving the permitted source
arising under the Florida Statutes or Departroent rules, except as such use is proscribed by Section 403,111,
Florida Statutes, or Rule 62-620.302, F.A.C. Such evidence shall only be used to the extent that it is consistent
with the Florida Rules of Civil Procedure and applicable evidentiary rules. /62-620.610(10), F.A.C]

When requested by the Department, the permittes shall within a reasonable time provide any information
required by law which is needed to deternine whether there is cause for revising, revoking and reissuing, or
terminating this permit, or to determine compliance with the permit. The permittee shall also provide to the

o o

-Department upon reqaest copies of records required by this permit to be kept. If the permittee becomes aware

of relevant facts that were not submitted or were incorrect in the permit application or in any report o the
Department, such facts or infornation shall be promptly submitied or corrections promptly reported to the
Department. [62-620.610(11), FA.CJ

. Unless specifically stated otherwise in Department rules, the permittee, in accepting this permit, agrees to

comply with changes in Department rles and Florida Statutes after a reasonable time for compliance; provided
however, the permittee does not waive any other rights granted by Florida Statutes or Department rules. A
reasomable time for compliznce with a new or amended sicface water guality standard, other than those
standards addressed in Rule 62-302.500, F.A.C., shall include a reasonable time to obtain or be denied a mixing
zone for the new or amended standard. /62-620.610(12), F. 4.C]

The permittee, in accepting this pémﬁt, agrees to pay the applicable regulatory program énd surveillance fee in
accordance with Rule 62-4.052, F.A.C, [62-620.610(13), F.A.C]

This permit is transferable only upon Deparunent approval in accorddnce with Rule §2-620.340, F.A.C. The
permittee shall be lable for any noncompliance of the permitted activity until the Department approves the
ransfer. [62-620.610(14), FA.C]J

The permittes shall give the Department written notice at least 60 days before inactivation or abandonment cfa
wastewater facility and shall specify what steps will be taken to safeguard public health and safety during and
following inactivation or abandonment. [62-620.610(13), FA.CJ



DocKet No,_UoULOZ-E1
Progress Energy Florida
Witness: Thomas Lawery

PERMITTEE: PERMIT NUMBER: FLOOOO159 .

Progress Energy Florida Igsuance date: May 9, 2005 Exhibit No.__(TL-2)
Crystal River Units 1,2, and 3 Page 29 of 34
P.O. Box 14042 Expiration date: May 8, 2010

St. Petersburg, FL 34428

16. The permitiee shall apply for a revision to the Department permit in accordance with Rule 62-620.300, F.A.C,

17.

19.

and the Department of Environmental Protection Guide to Wastewater Permitting at least 90 days before
construction of any planned substantal modifications to the permitted facility is to commence or with Rule 62-
620.325(2), F.A.C., for oinor modifications to the permitted facility. A revised perrmit shall be obtained before
comstriuction begins except ag provided in Rule 62-620.300, F.A.C. [62-620.610(16), FA.CJ

The permittee shall give advance notice to the Depariment of any planned changes in the permitted facility or
activity which may result in noncompliance with permit requirements. The permittee shall be responsible for any
and all damages which may resnlt from the changes and may be subject to enforcement action by the
Department for penalties or revocation of this permit. The notice shall include the following information:

a. A description of the anticipated noncomplisnce;

b, The period of the anticipated noncompliance, ncluding dates and times; and
¢. Stops being taken to prevent fiture occurrence of the noncompliance.
[62-620.610(17), FA.C]

. Sampling and menitoring data shall be collected and analyzed in accordance with Rule 62-4.246, Chapters 62~

160 and 62-601, F A.C., and 40 CFR 136, as appropriate,

a Monitoring results shall be reported at the intervals specified elsewhere in this permit and shall be reported
on a Discharge Monitoring Report (DMR}, DEP Form 62-620.910(10).

b. If the permittee monitors any contaminate more frequently than required by the permit, using Department
approved test procedures, the results of this monitoring shall be included in the calculation and reporting of
the data submiited in the DMR.

¢. Calculations for all limirations which require averaging of measurements shall use an arithmetic mean unless
otherwise specified in this permmt.

d. Any laboratory test required by this permit shall be performed by a laboratory that has been certified by the

Department of Health (DOH) under Chapter 64E-1, F.A.C,, where such certification is required by Rule 62-

160.300(4), F.A.C. The laboratory must be certified for any spesific method and analyte combination that is

used to comply with this permit. For domestic wastowater facilities, the on-site test procedures specified in

Rule 62-160.300(4), F.A.C,, shall be performed by a laboratory certified test for those parameters or under

the direction of an opérator certified under Chapter 62-602, F.A.C.

Fields activities including on-site tests and sample collection, whether performed by a laboratory ora

certified operator, mmst follow the applicablé procedures described in DEP-SOP-001/01 (Jamiary 2002).

Alternate field procedures and laboratory methods may be used where they have been approved according to

the requirernents of Rules 62-160.220, 62-160.330, and 62-160.600, F.A.C.

[62-620.610018), F.4.C]

Reports of compliance or dontompliance with, or any progress reports on, interim and final requirernents
contained in any compliance schednle detailed elsewhere in this permit shall be submitted no later than 14 days
following each schedule date. [52-620.610(18), FA.CJ

The permitie shall report to the Department’s Southwest District Cffice any noncompliance which may
endanger health or the environment. Any information shall be provided orally within 24 howrs from the time the
permittes becomes aware of the circumstances. A written submission shall also be provided within five days of
the time the permittee becomes aware of the circumstances. The written submission shall contain: a description
of the noncompliance and its cause; the period of noncompliance including exact dates and time, and if the
noncompliance has not been corrected, the anticipated timme it is expected to continue; and steps taken or planned
to reduce, eliminate, and prevent recurrence of the noncompliance.

o

a. The following shall be included as information which must be reported withia 24 hours under this condition:
{1) Any unanticipated bypass which causes any reclaimed water or effluent to exceed any permit lmitation
or results i an unpermitted discharge,
(2) Any upset which causes any reclaimed water or the effluent to exceed any lispitation in the permit,

P
L)
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{3} Violation of a maximurn daily discharge limitation for any of the pollutants specifically listed in the
permit for such notice, and

{4} Any unavthorized discharge to suxface or ground waters.

b. Oral reports as required by this subsection shall be provided as follows:

(13 For unauthorized releases or spills of untreated or treated wastewater reported pursuant to
subparagraph 4.4 that are in excess of 1,000 gallons per incident, or where information indicates that
public health or the environment will be endangered, oral reports shall be provided to the Department
by calling the STATE WARNING POINT TOLL FREE NUMBER (800} 320-0519, as soon as
practical, but no later than 24 hours from the time the permittee becomes aware of the discharge. The
permittee, to the extent known, shall provide the following inforrmation to the State Warning Point:
{2) Name, address, and telephone number of person reporting;

(b} Name, address, and telephone number of pemmittes or responsible person for the discharge;

{c) Date and timme of the discharge and status of discharge {ongoing or ceased);

(d) Characteristics of the wastewater spilled or released (untreated or treated, industrial or domestic
wastewatar);

{e) Bstinmted amount of the discharge;

{f) Location or address of the discharge;

{g)} Source and cause of the discharge;

(hy Whether the discharge was contained on-site, and cleanup actions taken to date;

(i) Description of area affected by the discharge, mcluding name of water body affected, if any; and

{j) Other persons or agencies contacted.

{2} Oral reports, not otherwise required to be provided pursuant to subparagraph b(1) above, shall be
provided to Department's Southiwest District Office within 24 hours from the time the permittee
becomes.aware of the circumstances. .

¢. 1fthe oral report has been received within 24 hours, the noncompliance has been corrected, and the
noncompliance did not endanger health ox the environment, the Department™s Southwest District Office shall
waive the writtert report.

[62-620.610¢20), FA.CJ

21. The permittee shall report all instances of noncompliance not reported under Conditions VIIIL 18 and 19 of this
permit at the time monitoring reports are submitted. This report shall contain the same information required by
Condition VIIL. 20. of this permit. /62-620.610(21), FA.CJ

22. Bypass Provisions.

a. Bypass is prohibited, and the Department may take enforcement action against a permittee for bypass, unless
the permitiee affirmatively demonstrates that:
(1) Bypass was unavoidable to prevent loss of life, persopal injury, or severe property damage; and
(2} There were no feasible alternatives o the bypass, such as the use of awxiliary treatment facilities,
retention of untreated wastes, or ruaintenance during normal periods of equipment downtime. This
condition is not satisfied if adequate back-up equipment should have been installed in the exercise of
reasonable epgineering judgment to prevent a bypass which ocenrred during normal periods of
equipment downtime or preventative meintenance; and _
(3) The permittee submitted notices as required under Condition VI1.22.b. of this permit.

p. If the permittee knows in advance of the need for a bypass, it shall subinit prior notice to the Department, if
possible at least 10 days before the date of the bypass. The permittee shall submit notice of an unanticipated
bypass within 24 hours of learning about the bypass as required in Condition VII.20. of this permit. A notice
shall include a description of the bypass and its cause; the period of the bypass, including exact dates and
times; if the bypass has not been corrected, the anticipated time it is expected to continue; and the steps take
or planned to reduce, eliminate, and prevent recurrence of the bypass.

27
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¢. The Department shall approve an anticipated bypass, afier considering its adverse affect, if the permitice
demonstrates that it will meet the three conditions listed in Condition VIIL.22 a. (1) through (3) of this
permit.

d. A permittee may allow any bipass to ocour which does not caugse reclaimed water or efffuent limitations to
be exceeded if it is for essential maintenance to assure efficient operation. These bypasses are not subject to
the provision of Condition VIII.22.a. through ¢. of this perrmt
[62-620.610022}, F4.C}

23. Upset Provisions
a. A permittee who wishes to establish the affirroative defense of upset shall demonstrate, through properly
signed contermnporaneous operating logs, or other relevant evidence that:
(1) Anupset occurred and that the permittee can identify the cause(s) of the upset;
(2) The permitted facility was at the time being properly operated;
{3) The permiftes submitted notice of the upset as required in Condition VIIL20. of this permit; and
{4) The permittee complied with any remedial measures required under Condition VIILS. of this permit,
b. In any enforcement proceeding, the permittee seeking to establish the occurrence of an upset has the burden
of proof.
¢. Before an enforcement proceeding is instituted, no representation made during the Department review of a
clyim that noncompliance was catsed by an upset is final agency action subject to judicial review.
[62-620.610(23), FA.C]

Executed in Tallohasses, Florida.

STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Q@{nfv\ Bd oc)[@ o
il A Dreby
Duecto:
Division of Water Resource Management
2600 Blair Stone Road
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-2400
{850) 245-8336
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Environmental Protection =,
Twin Towers Office Building frices
Sorermer Talabastee, Flor 4a 32399-2400 el
May 11, 2006
BY CERTIFIED MAITL

RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED

Mr. Michael Shrader

Progress Energy Florida, Inc.

100 Central Avenue, MAC CX1B
St. Petersburg, Florida 33701

RE: Progress Energy
DEP File FLO000159-010-IWB/MR
Crystal River Units 1, 2, and 3

Dear Mr. Shirader:

The Department has received Progress Energy’s application dated April 28, 2006 for a minor revision of wastewater
permit FLO000159. The minor revision requests the installation of 67 modular cooling towers at the Crystal River plant
that will be used to augment the cooling capacity of the existing helper cooling towers.

The Department has determined that this activity qualifies as a minor modification of the operations at the Crystal River
Plant pursuant to Rule 62-620.200(24), Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.), and can be authorized by a minor permit

revision pursuant to Rule 62-620.325(2), F.A.C. This letter and attachment constitute a minor revision to the referenced
wastewater permit.

This letter and attachment shall be attached to Permit FLO000159. All other conditions of this permit shall remain in
effect. If Florida Progress objects to this permit revision it may petition for an administrative hearing in accordance with
the enclosed Notice of Rights, Although not required, Florida Progress may elect to provide publication of appropriate
Public Notice of Rights language in a local newspaper, If so, please contact the Department for appropriate public notice
language.

If a petition is filed, then this permit revision does not become effective. If you have any questions about this permit
revision, please contact Allen Hubbard of the Industrial Wastewater Section at (850) 245-8592.

Sincerely,

Mimi A, Drew
Director
Division of Water Resource Management

MAD/wir/mh

¢e: Bernie Cumbie, Progress Encigy
Yanisa Angulo ~ FDEP Tampa

URhgre Protection, Less Procesy”

Printed an recycled paper.
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NOTICE OF RIGHTS

A person whose substantial interests are affected by this permit revision may petition for an administrative
proceeding (hearing) in accordance with Section120.57, Florida Statutes. The petition must contain the information set
forth below and must be filed (received) in the Office of General Counsel of the Department at 3900 Commonwealth
Boulevard, Mail Station 35, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-3000; within 14 days of receipt of this Permit. A petitioner,
other than the applicant, shall mail a copy of the petition to the applicant at the address indicated in the attached letter at
the time of filing. Failure to file a petition within this time period shall constitute a waiver of any tight such person may
have to request an administrative determination (hearing) under Section 120.57, Florida Statutes.

'The Petition shall contain the followiag information:

(a) The name, address, and telephone number of each petitioner; the name, address, and telephone number of the
petitioner’s representative, if any; the Department case identification number and the county in which the subject matter
or activity is located;

(b} A statement of how and when each petitioner received notice of the Department action;

(c} A statement of how each petitioner's substantial interests are affected by the Department action;

(d) A statement of all disputed issues of material fact. If there are none, the petition must so indicate;

(e} A statement of facts that the petitioner contends warrant reversal or modification of the Department action;

{fy A concise statement of the ultimate facts alleged; as well 4s the rules and statutes which entitle the petitioner to
relief; and

(g} A statement of the relief sought by the petitioner, stating preciscly the action that the petitioner wants the
Department to take.

If a petition is filed, the administrative hearing process is designed to formulate agency action. Accordingly, the
Department's final action may be different from the position taken by it in this intent. Persons whose substantial interests
will be affected by any decision of the Department with regard to the application have the right to petition to become a
party to the proceeding. The petition must conform to the requirements specified above and be filed {received} within 14
days of receipt of this intent in the Office of General Counsel at the sbove address of the Department. Failure to petition
within the allowed time frame constitutes a waiver of any right such person has to request a hearing under Section 120.57,
F.S., and to participate as a party to this proceeding. Any subsequent intervention will only be at the approval of the
presiding officer upon motion filed pursuant to Rule 28-5.207, FA.C.
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For
Minor Permit Revision

Permit Number: FLO0C00159 Application Date:  April 28, 2006
Application No: FL0000159-010-IWB/MR

Name and Address of Applicant:

Progress Energy Florida, Inc, Crystal River Units 1, 2, and 3
15760 West Powerline St.
Crystal River, FL 34428

The Department received a minor revision application dated April 28, 2006 for the installation
of 67 modular cooling towers at the Crystal River plant that will be used to augment the
cooling capacity of the existing helper cooling towers. The helper cooling towers are located
adjacent to the plant discharge canal and are used to reduce the temperature of the discharge.
The modular cooling towers were selected as a means of providing additional cooling capacity
in order to meet discharge thermal limits without the need to de-rate power generating units.

The modular cooling towers will be located adjacent to the existing Helper Cooling Towers
(HCT). Intake water will be supplied from the existing HCT inlet structure. New pumps
located at the existing HCT inlet structure along with added flow from the existing pumps will
provide an additional 140,000 gpm to the modular cooling towers. Water from the modular
cooling towers will be discharged back to the discharge canal via the existing HCT discharge
structures. Four existing pumps located at the HCT inlet structure provide a total flow of
687,000 gpm to the existing HCTs. The installation and operation of the new pumps and
modular cooling towers will not have any effect on the intake cooling water flow rate to the
plant and, therefore, will not have any effect on impingment and entrainment losses at the plant
intake. The discharge flow rate at the end of the discharge canal will also not be changed as a
result of the modular cooling tower installation and operation.

The expected canal temperature decrease will be 1.5 to 2.0 degrees F when all modular tower
cells are operating. The modular cooling towers will be only be operated as needed normaily
during the summer months of the year.
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Expected CR-1&2 Derates w/o Modular Cooling Towers
MCT Aux Power =(1,969
Totals
Unit Loads (MW) 26,338 414 25,924
Inlet Total Expected Gross
Temp. Derate w/o Modular |Actual Derate| Avoided
Date & Time (deg F) CR 1 CR2 CR 3 |Towers (MW) (MW) Derate (MW)

01-May-06 00:00:00 74.8 120 337 863 0 0 0
01-May-06 01:00:00 74.6 122 228 863 0 0 0
01-May-06 02:00:00 74.5 120 263 863 0 0 0
01-May-06 03:00:00 74.4 121 137 863 0 0 0
01-May-06 04:00:00 74.4 122 142 863 0 0 0
01-May-06 05:00:00 74.3 156 183 862 0 0 0
01-May-06 06:00:00 73.7 278 255 862 0 0 0
01-May-06 07:00:00 73.3 281 375 862 0 0 0
01-May-06 08:00:00 73.2 309 465 863 0 0 0
01-May-06 09:00:00 73.5 281 436 867 0 0 0
01-May-06 10:00:00 73.3 284 417 866 0 0 0
01-May-06 11:00:00 73.3 283 458 864 0 0 0
01-May-06 12:00:00 73.4 330 463 863 0 0 0
01-May-06 13:00:00 73.5 306 508 865 0 0 0
01-May-06 14:00:00 73.7 373 508 865 0 0 0
01-May-06 15:00:00 74.1 384 515 864 0 0 0
01-May-06 16:00:00 74.4 392 513 864 0 0 0
01-May-06 17:00:00 74.6 392 513 865 0 0 0
01-May-06 18:00:00 74.8 390 531 865 0 0 0
01-May-06 19:00:00 74.8 388 518 866 0 0 0
01-May-06 20:00:00 74.7 392 518 866 0 0 0
01-May-06 21:00:00 74.7 391 519 862 0 0 0
01-May-06 22:00:00 74.6 359 513 862 0 0 0
01-May-06 23:00:00 74.4 207 487 863 0 0 0
02-May-06 00:00:00 74.3 120 391 862 0 0 0
02-May-06 01:00:00 74.2 132 193 862 0 0 0
02-May-06 02:00:00 74.1 148 214 862 0 0 0
02-May-06 03:00:00 74.2 121 141 862 0 0 0
02-May-06 04:00:00 74.2 121 141 863 0 0 0
02-May-06 05:00:00 74.1 129 211 863 0 0 0
02-May-06 06:00:00 74.0 200 237 864 0 0 0
02-May-06 07:00:00 73.9 177 348 864 0 0 0
02-May-06 08:00:00 73.8 148 395 864 0 0 0
02-May-06 09:00:00 73.8 140 421 864 0 0 0
02-May-06 10:00:00 73.9 138 444 864 0 0 0
02-May-06 11:00:00 73.9 120 413 863 0 0 0
02-May-06 12:00:00 74.1 165 444 864 0 0 0
02-May-06 13:00:00 74.4 268 497 864 0 0 0
02-May-06 14:00:00 74.7 309 507 864 0 0 0
02-May-06 15:00:00 74.9 370 505 861 0 0 0
02-May-06 16:00:00 75.2 382 510 864 0 0 0
02-May-06 17:00:00 75.1 389 507 865 0 0 0
02-May-06 18:00:00 75.0 381 515 864 0 0 0
02-May-06 19:00:00 75.2 389 512 864 0 0 0
02-May-06 20:00:00 75.1 387 509 863 0 0 0
02-May-06 21:00:00 74.9 383 506 863 0 0 0
02-May-06 22:00:00 74.6 386 505 862 0 0 0
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Page 2 of 47
Expected CR-1&2 Derates w/o Modular Cooling Towers
MCT Aux Power =|1,969
Totals
Unit Loads (MW) 26,338 414 25,924
Inlet Total Expected Gross
Temp. Derate w/o Modular [Actual Derate Avoided
Date & Time deg F) CR 1 CR2 CR3 |Towers (MW) (MW) Derate (MW)

02-May-06 23:00:00 74.7 313 493 862 0 0 0
03-May-06 00:00:00 74.6 187 390 861 0 0 0
03-May-06 01:00:00 74.4 130 297 863 0 0 0
03-May-06 02:00:00 744 135 160 863 0 0 0
03-May-06 03:00:00 74.4 134 146 860 0 0 0
03-May-06 04:00:00 74.4 138 173 862 0 0 0
03-May-06 05:00:00 74.4 177 238 862 0 0 0
03-May-06 06:00:00 74.5 202 278 862 0 0 0
03-May-06 07:00:00 74.4 309 487 863 0 0 0
03-May-06 08:00:00 74.3 258 474 863 0 0 0
03-May-06 09:00:00 74.5 326 478 864 0 0 0
03-May-06 10:00:00 74.6 355 507 864 0 0 0
03-May-06 11:00:00 74.7 291 507 872 0 0 0
03-May-06 12:00:00 74.8 323 505 865 0 0 0
03-May-06 13:00:00 75.1 352 504 865 0 0 0
03-May-06 14:00:00 75.5 354 508 863 0 0 0
03-May-06 15:00:00 75.8 380 502 863 0 0 0
03-May-06 16:00:00 76.3 382 506 864 0 0 0
03-May-06 17:00:00 76.2 389 520 863 0 0 0
03-May-06 18:00:00 76.1 390 504 863 0 0 0
03-May-06 19:00:00 75.9 394 507 864 0 0 0
03-May-06 20:00:00 76.1 337 511 862 0 0 0
03-May-06 21:00:00 76.2 292 509 862 0 0 0
03-May-06 22:00:00 76.0 245 488 862 0 0 0
03-May-06 23:00:00 75.9 262 491 862 0 0 0
04-May-06 00:00:00 75.8 230 444 862 0 0 0
04-May-06 01:00:00 75.7 148 333 863 0 0 0
04-May-06 02:00:00 75.6 120 229 864 0 0 0
04-May-06 03:00:00 75.4 122 141 864 0 0 0
04-May-06 04:00:00 75.3 140 142 865 0 0 0
04-May-06 05:00:00 75.2 141 1587 865 0 0 0
04-May-06 06:00:00 75.5 194 263 865 0 0 0
04-May-06 07:00:00 75.6 242 341 864 0 0 0
04-May-06 08:00:00 75.6 286 390 865 0 0 0
04-May-06 09:00:00 75.5 320 447 862 0 0 0
04-May-06 10:00:00 75.7 369 485 861 0 0 0
04-May-06 11:00:00 75.8 341 455 859 0 0 0
04-May-06 12:00:00 76.2 380 512 859 0 0 0
04-May-06 13:00:00 76.4 383 513 861 0 0 0
04-May-06 14:00:00 76.9 328 497 864 0 0 0
04-May-06 15:00:00 77.4 382 509 862 0 0 0
04-May-06 16:00:00 77.5 394 508 863 0 0 0
04-May-06 17:00:00 77.4 389 507 864 0 0 0
04-May-06 18:00:00 77.7 394 509 865 0 0 0
04-May-06 19:00:00 77.5 388 511 864 0 0 0
04-May-06 20:00:00 77.4 392 529 865 0 0 0
04-May-06 21:00:00 77.5 387 510 863 0 0 0
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Expected CR-1&2 Derates w/o Modular Cooling Towers
MCT Aux Power ={1,969
Totals
Unit Loads (MW) 26,338 414 25,924
Inlet Total Expected Gross
Temp. Derate w/o Modular |Actual Derate| Avoided
Date & Time (deg F) CR1 CR2 CR 3 |Towers (MW) (MW) Derate (MW)
04-May-06 22:00:00 77.4 390 511 863 0 0 0
04-May-06 23:00:00 77.4 367 492 862 0 0 0
05-May-06 00:00:00 77.3 285 393 862 0 0 0
05-May-06 01:00:00 77.3 189 319 863 0 0 0
05-May-06 02:00:00 77.2 144 317 861 0 0 0
05-May-06 03:00:00 774 120 269 861 0 0 0
05-May-06 04:00:00 77.0 120 158 862 0 0 0
05-May-06 05:00:00 77.0 123 141 861 0 0 0
05-May-06 06:00:00 771 196 257 862 0 0 0
05-May-06 07:00:00 77.0 222 277 864 0 0 0
05-May-06 08:00:00 771 212 180 863 0 0 0
05-May-06 09:00:00 77.2 262 309 864 0 0 0
05-May-06 10:00:00 77.3 374 467 864 0 0 0
05-May-06 11:00:00 77.3 359 477 864 0 0 0
05-May-06 12:00:00 77.5 372 511 863 0 0 0
05-May-06 13:00:00 77.6 390 512 864 0 0 0
05-May-06 14:00:00 77.6 386 510 864 0 0 0
05-May-06 15:00:00 78.0 388 509 864 0 0 0
05-May-06 16:00:00 78.2 388 515 863 0 0 0
05-May-06 17:00:00 78.6 387 511 863 0 0 0
05-May-06 18:00:00 78.5 387 509 863 0 0 0
05-May-06 19:00:00 78.5 385 513 863 0 0 0
05-May-06 20:00:00 78.4 402 509 863 0 0 0
05-May-06 21:00:00 78.4 356 510 863 0 0 0
05-May-06 22:00:00 78.5 327 505 862 0 0 0
05-May-06 23:00:00 78.7 367 516 862 0 0] 0
06-May-06 00:00:00 78.8 286 516 862 0 0 0
06-May-06 01:00:00 78.8 281 378 861 0 0 0
06-May-06 02:00:00 78.8 282 378 861 0 0 0
06-May-06 03:00:00 78.9 237 353 861 0 0 0
06-May-06 04:00:00 78.9 220 258 861 0 0 0
06-May-06 05:00:00 78.9 221 222 861 0 0 0
06-May-06 06:00:00 78.9 239 274 860 0 0 0
06-May-06 07:00:00 78.8 226 253 861 0 0 0
06-May-06 08:00:00 78.6 302 379 861 0 0 0
06-May-06 09:00:00 78.5 314 450 861 0 0 0
06-May-06 10:00:00 78.5 390 481 861 0 0 0
06-May-06 11:00:00 78.5 306 471 862 0 0 0
06-May-06 12:00:00 78.4 298 485 862 0 0 0
06-May-06 13:00:00 78.4 391 511 863 0 0 0
06-May-06 14:00:00 78.5 390 520 862 0 0 0
06-May-06 15:00:00 79.0 395 508 863 0 0 0
06-May-06 16:00:00 79.2 3N 513 863 0 0 0
06-May-06 17:00:00 79.5 389 513 863 0 0 0
06-May-06 18:00:00 79.6 392 512 862 0 0 0
06-May-06 19:00:00 79.7 379 509 861 0 0 0
06-May-06 20:00:00 79.7 386 518 860 0 0 0
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Expected CR-1&2 Derates w/o Modular Cooling Towers
MCT Aux Power =|1,969
Totals
Unit Loads (MW) 26,338 414 25,924
Inlet Total Expected Gross
Temp. Derate w/o Modular |Actual Derate| Avoided
Date & Time (deg F) CR 1 CR2 CR3 [Towers (MW) (MW) Derate (MW)
06-May-06 21:00:00 79.5 395 514 860 0 0 0
06-May-06 22:00:00 79.5 388 506 860 0 0 0
06-May-06 23:00:00 79.5 371 511 860 0 0 0
07-May-06 00:00:00 79.6 311 513 860 0 0 0
07-May-06 01:00:00 79.5 297 440 860 0 0 0
07-May-06 02:00:00 79.5 250 404 860 0 0 0
07-May-06 03:00:00 79.7 174 348 860 0 0 0
07-May-06 04:00:00 79.7 120 238 860 0 0 0
07-May-06 05:00:00 79.6 144 263 860/ 0 0 0
07-May-06 06:00:00 79.6 121 257 859 0 0 0
07-May-06 07:00:00 79.5 123 291 859 0 0 0
07-May-06 08:00:00 79.5 201 355 860 0 0 0
07-May-06 09:00:00 79.4 319 442 863 0 0 0
07-May-06 10:00:00 79.5 359 463 862 0 0 0
07-May-06 11:00:00 79.5 359 462 862 0 0 0
07-May-06 12:00:00 79.7 380 510 860 0 0 0
07-May-06 13:00:00 79.9 379 511 860 0 0 0
07-May-06 14.00:00 80.1 390 512 860 0 0 0
07-May-06 15:00:00 80.3 382 512 861 0 0 0
07-May-06 16:00:00 80.6 395 506 861 0 0 0
07-May-06 17:00:00 80.9 386 506 860 0 0 0
07-May-06 18:00:00 80.9 387 509 861 0 0 0
07-May-06 19:00:00 80.6 391 509 860 0 0 0
07-May-06 20:00:00 80.8 385 510 860 0 0 0
07-May-06 21:00:00 81.0 386 513 860 0 0 0
07-May-06 22:00:00 80.6 364 514 860 0 0 0
07-May-06 23:00:00 80.5 149 475 861 0 0 0
08-May-06 00:00:00 80.8 133 396 860 0 0 0
08-May-06 01:00:00 80.8 121 391 859 0 0 0
08-May-06 02:00:00 80.9 121 255 859 0 0 0
08-May-06 03:00:00 81.0 121 170 859 0 0 0
08-May-06 04:00:00 80.9 121 139 859 0 0 0
08-May-06 05:00:00 80.8 131 155 859 0 0 0
08-May-06 06:00:00 80.9 221 272 858 0 0 0
08-May-06 07:00:00 80.8 179 433 858 0 0 0
08-May-06 08:00:00 80.8 221 507 858 0 0 0
08-May-06 09:00:00 80.8 221 507 858 0 0 0
08-May-06 10:00:00 80.8 222 508 857 0 0 0
08-May-06 11.00:00 80.8 387 508 855 0 0 0
08-May-06 12:00:00 80.8 389 510 858 0 0 0
08-May-06 13:00:00 81.1 385 506 860 0 0 0
08-May-06 14:00:00 81.2 392 510 861 0 0 0
08-May-06 15:00:00 81.4 388 509 860 0 0 0
08-May-06 16:00:00 81.6 387 509 858 0 0 0
08-May-06 17:00:00 81.8 390 508 858 0 0 0
08-May-06 18:00:00 82.1 387 509 858 0 0 0
08-May-06 19:00:00 82.1 393 511 859 0 0 0
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Expected CR-1&2 Derates w/o Modular Cooling Towers
MCT Aux Power =/1,969
Totals
Unit Loads (MW) _26,338 414 25,924
Inlet Total Expected Gross
Temp. Derate w/o Modular |Actual Derate| Avoided
Date & Time (deg F) CR 1 CR2 CR 3 |Towers (MW) (MW) Derate (MW)
08-May-06 20:00:00 81.6 389 506 859 0 0 0
08-May-06 21:00:00 81.9 392 511 858 0 0 0
08-May-06 22:00:00 81.8 357 460 858 0 0 0
08-May-06 23:00:00 82.1 293 418 858 0 0 0
09-May-06 00:00:00 82.2 310 404 857 0 0 0
09-May-06 01:00:00 82.4 283 375 857 0 0 0
09-May-06 02:00:00 82.4 223 330 858 0 0 0
09-May-06 03:00:00 82.4 213 235 858 0 0 0
09-May-06 04:00:00 82.2 183 219 857 0 0 0
09-May-06 05:00:00 82.1 175 234 855 0 0 0
09-May-06 06:00:00 82.0 268 337 844 0 0 0
09-May-06 07:00:00 81.6 304 477 856 0 0 0
09-May-06 08:00:00 81.7 306 449 856 0 0 0
09-May-06 09:00:00 81.8 295 465 857 0 0 0
09-May-06 10:00:00 81.7 291 481 857 0 0 0
09-May-06 11:00:00 81.7 306 502 855 0 0 0
09-May-06 12:00:00 81.7 384 520 855 0 0 0
09-May-06 13:00:00 82.0 386 495 855 0 0 0
09-May-06 14:00:00 82.1 381 500 857 0 0 0
09-May-06 15:00:00 82.5 393 499 857 0 0 0
09-May-06 16:00:00 82.6 387 514 856 0 0 0
09-May-06 17:00:00 82.6 387 502 856 0 0 0]
09-May-06 18:00:00 82.5 387 506 857 0 0 0
09-May-06 19:00:00 82.6 386 508 856 0 0 0
09-May-06 20:00:00 82.6 388 513 859 0 0 0
09-May-06 21:00:00 82.7 393 497 857 0 0 0
09-May-06 22:00:00 82.7 374 511 857 0 0 0
09-May-06 23:00:00 82.5 313 505 856 0 0 0
10-May-06 00:00:00 82.6 232 395 856 0 0 0
10-May-06 01:00:00 82.7 124 267 856 0 0 0
10-May-06 02:00:00 82.6 121 156 856 0 0 0
10-May-06 03:00:00 82.7 122 140 857 0 0 0
10-May-06 04:00:00 82.7 121 141 857 0 0 0
10-May-06 05:00:00 82.5 125 167 859 0 0 0
10-May-06 06:00:00 82.4 191 235 856 0 0 0
10-May-06 07:00:00 82.3 211 217 854 0 0 0
10-May-06 08:00:00 82.3 203 273 856 0 0 0
10-May-06 09:00:00 82.2 319 338 858 0 0 0
10-May-06 10:00:00 82.1 378 370 859 0 0 0
10-May-06 11:00:00 82.0 387 395 860 0 0 0
10-May-06 12:00:00 82.2 373 468 860 0 0 0
10-May-06 13:00:00 82.3 389 506 860 0 0 0
10-May-06 14:00:00 82.4 389 508 860 0 0 0
10-May-06 15:00:00 82.6 391 506 859 0 0 0
10-May-06 16:00:00 82.7 386 511 859 0 0 0
10-May-06 17:00:00 83.1 384 514 859 0 0 0
10-May-06 18:00:00 83.2 389 509 859 0 0 0
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Expected CR-1&2 Derates w/o Modular Cooling Towers
MCT Aux Power =|1,969
Totals
Unit Loads (MW) 26,338 414 25,924
Inlet Total Expected Gross
Temp. Derate w/o Modular |Actual Derate Avoided
Date & Time (deg F) CR 1 CR2 CR 3 |[Towers (MW) (MW) Derate (MW)

10-May-06 19:00:00 82.8 389 512 859 0 0 0
10-May-06 20:00:00 82.7 388 516 860 0 0 0
10-May-06 21:00:00 82.6 390 514 859 0 0 0
10-May-06 22:00:00 82.5 387 512 859 0 0 0
10-May-06 23:00:00 82.4 388 497 859 0 0 0
11-May-06 00:00:00 82.8 336 438 860 0 0 0
11-May-06 01:00:00 82.9 260 352 858 0 0 0
11-May-06 02:00:00 83.0 215 289 857 0 0 0
11-May-06 03:00:00 82.9 142 188 858 0 0 0
11-May-06 04:00:00 83.0 121 142 858 0 0 0
11-May-06 05:00:00 82.9 131 152 858 0 0 0
11-May-06 06:00:00 82.8 240 282 857 0 0 0
11-May-06 07:00:00 82.7 285 351 858 0 0 0
11-May-06 08:00:00 82.5 289 364 860 0 0 0
11-May-06 09:00:00 82.5 374 460 858 0 0 0
11-May-06 10:00:00 82.5 374 509 856 0 0 0
11-May-06 11:00:00 82.2 344 4N 855 0 0 0
11-May-06 12:00:00 81.9 345 491 856 0 0 0
11-May-06 13:00:00 81.8 335 478 859 0 0 0
11-May-06 14:00:00 82.0 283 427 859 0 0 0
11-May-06 15:00:00 82.0 264 420 858 0 0 0
11-May-06 16:00:00 82.1 374 508 858 0 0 0
11-May-06 17:00:00 82.2 389 502 859 0 0 0
11-May-06 18:00:00 82.2 383 503 883 0 0 0
11-May-06 19:00:00 82.1 388 501 859 0 0 0
11-May-06 20:00:00 82.0 385 511 861 0 0 0
11-May-06 21:00:00 81.9 384 509 859 0 0 0
11-May-06 22:00:00 81.6 384 513 860 0 0 0
11-May-06 23:00:00 81.2 338 462 861 0 0 0
12-May-06 00:00:00 81.1 350 479 859 0 0 0
12-May-06 01:00:00 81.2 225 340 858 0 0 0
12-May-06 02:00:00 81.1 121 139 859 0 0 0
12-May-06 03:00:00 81.1 123 141 858 0 0 0
12-May-06 04:00:00 81.1 119 140 858 0 0 0
12-May-06 05:00:00 81.0 119 141 859 0 0 0
12-May-06 06:00:00 80.8 226 251 860 0 0 0
12-May-06 07:00:00 80.6 275 293 861 0 0 0
12-May-06 08:00:00 80.6 282 387 862 0 0 0
12-May-06 09:00:00 80.6 352 484 861 0 0 0
12-May-06 10:00:00 80.5 382 485 861 0 0 0
12-May-06 11:00:00 80.3 316 418 861 0 0 0
12-May-06 12:00:00 79.8 342 466 862 0 0 0
12-May-06 13:00:00 79.4 389 495 861 0 0 0
12-May-06 14:00:00 79.7 344 509 862 0 0 0
12-May-06 15:00:00 80.0 389 508 862 0 0 0
12-May-06 16:00:00 80.0 393 507 861 0 ] 0
12-May-06 17:00:00 80.2 390 512 861 0 0 0
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Expected CR-1&2 Derates w/o Modular Cooling Towers
MCT Aux Power ={1,969
Totals
Unit Loads (MW) 26,338 414 25,924
Inlet Total Expected Gross
Temp. Derate w/o Modular |Actual Derate| Avoided
Date & Time (deg F) CR1 CR2 CR 3 |Towers (MW) (MW) Derate (MW)
12-May-06 18:00:00 80.2 379 508 840 0 0 0
12-May-06 19:00:00 80.0/ - 382 511 861 0 0 0
12-May-06 20:00:00 79.8 348 508 860 0 0 0
12-May-06 21:00:00 79.7 320 466 860 0 0 0
12-May-06 22:00:00 79.4 243 348 862 0 0 0
12-May-06 23:00:00 79.4 123 349 868 0 0 0
13-May-06 00:00:00 79.3 122 347 862 0 0 0
13-May-06 01:00:00 79.0 120 244 861 0 0 0
13-May-06 02:00:00 78.9 120 139 862 0 0 0
13-May-06 03:00:00 78.6 120 155 860 0 0 0
13-May-06 04:00:00 78.4 121 155 862 0 0 0
13-May-06 05:00:00 78.5 120 148 863 0 0 0
13-May-06 06:00:00 78.5 120 153 861 0 0 0
13-May-06 07:00:00 78.5 120 144 861 0 0 0
13-May-06 08:00:00 78.5 116 258 862 0 0 0
13-May-06 09:00:00 78.4 124 373 860 0 0 0
13-May-06 10:00:00 78.7 231 490 808 0 0 0
13-May-06 11:00:00 78.6 283 400 767 0 0 0
13-May-06 12:00:00 78.6 385 484 774 0 0 0
13-May-06 13:00:00 78.8 334 434 773 0 0 0
13-May-06 14:00:00 79.1 383 492 772 0 0 0
13-May-06 15:00:00 79.3 382 516 771 0 0 0
13-May-06 16:00:00 79.2 381 518 770 0 0 0
13-May-06 17:00:00 79.1 385 510 769 0 0 0
13-May-06 18:00:00 79.1 387 507 770 0 0 0
13-May-06 19:00:00 78.9 386 512 770 0 0 0
13-May-06 20:00:00 78.7 385 510 770 0 0 0
13-May-06 21:00:00 78.7 384 510 769 0 0 0
13-May-06 22:00:00 78.7 237 442 769 0 0 0
13-May-06 23:00:00 78.6 299 477 783 0 0 0
14-May-06 00:00:00 78.5 219 384 806 0 0 0
14-May-06 01:00:00 78.5 131 338 830 0 0 0
14-May-06 02:00:00 78.6 122 166 847 0 0 0
14-May-06 03:00:00 78.5 137 159 858 0 0 0
14-May-06 04:00:00 78.4 137 197 862 0 0 0
14-May-06 05:00:00 78.2 146 189 863 0 0 0
14-May-06 06:00:00 78.1 135 180 863 0 0 0
14-May-06 07:00:00 78.2 120 140 863 0 0 0
14-May-06 08:00:00 78.3 222 248 863 0 0 0
14-May-06 09:00:00 78.2 321 332 863 0 0 0
14-May-06 10:00:00 78.2 286 374 862 0 0 0
14-May-06 11:00:00 78.3 299 401 861 0 0 0
14-May-06 12:00:00 78.4 379 484 861 0 0 0
14-May-06 13:00:00 78.5 382 487 854 0 0 0
14-May-06 14:00:00 78.9 387 493 860 0 0 0
14-May-06 15:00:00 79.1 384 495 861 0 0 0
14-May-06 16:00:00 79.1 384 513 862 0 0 0
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Expected CR-1&2 Derates w/o Modular Cooling Towers
MCT Aux Power =|1,969
Totals
Unit Loads (MW) 26,338 414 25,924
Inlet Total Expected Gross
Temp. Derate w/o Modular |Actual Derate Avoided
Date & Time (deg F) CR 1 CR2 CR 3 |Towers (MW) (MW) Derate (MW)

14-May-06 17:00:00 78.9 383 514 868 0 0 0
14-May-06 18:00:00 79.0 387 511 865 0 0 0
14-May-06 19:00:00 78.7 382 515 863 0 0 0
14-May-06 20:00:00 78.6 385 512 863 0 0 0
14-May-06 21:00:00 78.5 385 508 863 0 0 0
14-May-06 22:00:00 78.1 382 508 863 0 0 0
14-May-06 23:00:00 78.4 248 368 862 0 0 0
15-May-06 00:00:00 78.6 193 182 861 0 0 0
15-May-06 01:00:00 78.4 119 140 860 0 0 0
15-May-06 02:00:00 78.4 142 166 860 0 0 0
15-May-06 03:00:00 78.4 120 141 861 0 0 0
15-May-06 04:00:00 78.4 143 160 861 0 0 0
15-May-06 05:00:00 78.3 186 204 860 0 0 0
15-May-06 06:00:00 78.5 221 219 860 0 0 0
15-May-06 07:00:00 78.5 305 291 860 0 0 0
15-May-06 08:00:00 78.4 298 466 862 0 0 0
15-May-06 09:00:00 78.5 322 485 862 0 0 0
15-May-086 10:00:00 78.6 370 498 863 0 0 0
15-May-06 11:00:00 78.7 335 487 863 0 0 0
15-May-06 12:00:00 79.0 376 507 863 0 0 0
15-May-06 13:00:00 79.1 388 508 862 0 0 0
15-May-06 14:00:00 79.3 386 514 860 0 0 0
15-May-06 15:00:00 79.5 386 510 862 0 0 0
15-May-06 16:00:00 79.8 388 516 860 0 0 0
15-May-06 17:00:00 79.9 390 514 862 0 0 0
15-May-06 18:00:00 80.0 385 507 861 0 0 0
15-May-06 19:00:00 80.0 386 507 861 0 0 0
15-May-06 20:00:00 79.9 385 509 861 0 0 0
15-May-06 21:00:00 79.6 387 504 861 0 0 0
15-May-06 22:00:00 79.4 387 505 860 0 0 0
15-May-06 23:00:00 79.3 388 392 860 0 0 0
16-May-06 00:00:00 79.3 375 256 860 0 0 0
16-May-06 01:00:00 79.3 255 139 861 0 0 0
16-May-06 02:00:00 79.4 181 166 862 0 0 0
16-May-06 03:00:00 79.4 169 148 860 0 0 0
16-May-06 04:00:00 79.4 158 157 859 0 0 0
16-May-06 05:00:00 79.3 186 179 858 0 0 0
16-May-06 06:00:00 79.1 243 272 861 0 0 0
16-May-06 07:00:00 79.2 283 406 863 0 0 0
16-May-06 08:00:00 79.1 243 492 859 0 0 0
16-May-06 09:00:00 79.1 230 413 859 0 0 0
16-May-06 10:00:00 79.1 262 405 860 0 0 0
16-May-06 11:00:00 79.0 221 334 861 0 0 0
16-May-06 12:00:00 79.0 120 221 861 0 0 0
16-May-06 13:00:00 78.9 135 231 861 0 0 0
16-May-06 14:00:00 78.6 133 229 860 0 0 0
16-May-06 15:00:00 78.3 127 334 859 0 0 0
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Expected CR-1&2 Derates w/o Modular Cooling Towers
MCT Aux Power =|1,969
Totals
Unit Loads (MW) 26,338 414 25,924
Inlet Total Expected Gross
Temp. Derate w/o Modular {Actual Derate| Avoided
Date & Time (deg F) CR 1 CR2 CR 3 |Towers (MW) (MW) Derate (MW)

16-May-06 16:00:00 78.2 193 405 860 0 0 0
16-May-06 17:00:00 78.0 175 457 860 0 0 0
16-May-06 18:00:00 78.0 170 445 860 0 0 0
16-May-06 19:00:00 78.1 185 463 861 0 0 0
16-May-06 20:00:00 78.0 212 425 862 0 0 0
16-May-06 21:00:00 77.9 259 451 862 0 0 0
16-May-06 22:00:00 77.8 242 401 862 0 0 0
16-May-06 23:00:00 77.6 265 270 860 0 0 0
17-May-06 00:00:00 77.6 118 181 860 0 0 0
17-May-06 01:00:00 77.3 120 142 861 0 0 0
17-May-06 02:00:00 77.3 143 141 861 0 0 0
17-May-06 03:00:00 76.7 129 139 861 0 0 0
17-May-06 04:00:00 76.3 146 140 861 0 0 0
17-May-06 05:00:00 76.2 131 141 863 0 0 0
17-May-06 06:00:00 76.2 120 245 863 0 0 0
17-May-06 07:00:00 76.3 249 389 863 0 0 0
17-May-06 08:00:00 76.3 251 431 864 0 0 0
17-May-06 09:00:00 76.4 222 470 864 0 0 0
17-May-06 10:00:00 76.4 229 492 865 0 0 0
17-May-06 11:00:00 76.6 220 512 864 0 0 0
17-May-06 12:00:00 76.5 292 504 863 0 0 0
17-May-06 13:00:00 76.5 364 509 862 0 0 0
17-May-06 14:00:00 76.7 349 481 863 0 0 0
17-May-06 15:00:00 77.0 371 502 862 0 0 0
17-May-06 16:00:00 76.8 379 507 862 0 0 0
17-May-06 17:00:00 77.2 382 504 862 0 0 0
17-May-06 18:00:00 77.1 343 507 863 0 0 0
17-May-06 19:00:00 77.1 301 503 863 0 0 0
17-May-06 20:00:00 76.9 343 501 863 0 0 0
17-May-06 21:00:00 76.7 381 506 863 0 0 0
17-May-06 22:00:00 76.5 216 455 866 0 0 0
17-May-06 23:00:00 76.4 224 273 866 0 0 0
18-May-06 00:00:00 76.2 118 178 865 0 0 0
18-May-06 01:00:00 76.1 122 139 864 0 0 0
18-May-06 02:00:00 76.1 122 181 864 0 0 0
18-May-06 03:00:00 76.1 121 189 863 0 0 0
18-May-06 04:00:00 76.1 122 181 863 0 0 0
18-May-06 05:00:00 76.0 120 239 863 0 0 0
18-May-06 06:00:00 75.8 167 271 863 0 0 0
18-May-06 07:00:00 75.7 167 414 863 0 0 0
18-May-06 08:00:00 75.5 218 480 864 0 0 0
18-May-06 09:00:00 75.5 302 470 865 0 0 0
18-May-06 10:00:00 75.7 371 484 864 0 0 0
18-May-06 11:00:00 75.9 259 382 864 0 0 0
18-May-06 12:00:00 76.1 322 472 864 0 0 0
18-May-06 13:00:00 76.2 352 502 864 0 0 0
18-May-06 14:00:00 76.5 372 513 864 0 0 0
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Expected CR-1&2 Derates w/o Modular Cooling Towers
MCT Aux Power ={1,969
Totals
Unit Loads (MW) 26,338 414 25,924
Inlet Total Expected Gross
Temp. Derate w/o Modular |Actual Derate Avoided
Date & Time (deg F) CR 1 CR2 CR 3 |Towers (MW) (MW) Derate (MW)
18-May-06 15:00:00 76.6 388 507 863 0 0 0
18-May-06 16:00:00 76.9 390 492 865 0 0 0
18-May-06 17:00:00 77.2 389 503 865 0 0 0
18-May-06 18:00:00 77.2 389 499 864 0 0 0
18-May-06 19:00:00 77.1 389 508 863 0 0 0
18-May-06 20:00:00 77.0 387 504 863 0 0 0
18-May-06 21:00:00 76.9 388 511 862 0 0 0
18-May-06 22:00:00 76.6 383 509 862 0 0 0
18-May-06 23:00:00 76.7 352 416 861 0 0 0
19-May-06 00:00:00 76.5 230 272 861 0 0 0
19-May-06 01:00:00 76.4 123 199 863 0 0 0
19-May-06 02:00:00 76.3 122 164 862 0 0 0
19-May-06 03:00:00 76.1 122 190 860 0 0 0
19-May-06 04:00:00 76.1 121 171 859 0 0 0
19-May-06 05:00:00 76.1 121 193 862 0 0 0
19-May-06 06:00:00 76.2 137 231 863 0 0 0
19-May-06 07:00:00 76.1 224 314 863 0 0 0
19-May-06 08:00:00 76.0 258 384 864 0 0 0
19-May-06 09:00:00 75.9 304 436 864 0 0 0
19-May-06 10:00:00 75.8 371 514 863 0 0 0
19-May-06 11:00:00 75.9 392 507 863 0 0 0
19-May-06 12:00:00 76.0 394 513 864 0 0 0
19-May-06 13:00:00 76.2 394 500 864 0 0 0
19-May-06 14.00:00 76.6 395 501 864 0 0 0
19-May-06 15:00:00 76.7 392 503 864 0 0 0
19-May-06 16:00:00 77.2 397 508 864 0 0 0
19-May-06 17:00:00 77.4 394 507 864 0 0 0
19-May-06 18:00:00 77.7 392 508 862 0 0 0
19-May-06 19:00:00 77.7 296 494 863 0 0 0
19-May-06 20:00:00 77.4 329 458 865 0 0 0
19-May-06 21:00:00 77.3 342 464 861 0 0 0
19-May-06 22:00:00 77.4 284 377 862 0 0 0
19-May-06 23:00:00 77.5 323 426 863 0 0 0
20-May-06 00:00:00 77.8 249 336 861 0 0 0
20-May-06 01:00:00 77.9 144 228 860 0 0 0
20-May-06 02:00:00 77.9 134 154 861 0 0 0
20-May-06 03:00.00 77.8 121 141 862 0 0 0
20-May-06 04:00:00 77.8 121 139 861 0 0 0
20-May-06 05:00:00 77.7 121 140 860 0 0 0
20-May-06 06:00:00 77.6 138 158 860 0 0 0
20-May-06 07:00:00 77.6 133 150 861 0 0 0
20-May-06 08:00:00 77.6 231 251 861 0 0 0
20-May-06 09:00:00 77.7 305 322 863 0 0 0
20-May-06 10:00:00 77.8 385 432 864 0 0 0
20-May-06 11:00:00 77.9 385 462 862 0 0 0
20-May-06 12:00:00 78.1 389 505 861 0 0 0
20-May-06 13:00:00 78.2 394 506 861 0 0 0
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Expected CR-1&2 Derates w/o Modular Cooling Towers
MCT Aux Power =|1,969
Totals
Unit Loads (MW) 26,338 414 25,924
Inlet Total Expected Gross
Temp. Derate w/o Modular |Actual Derate| Avoided
Date & Time (deg F) CR 1 CR2 CR3 |Towers (MW) (MW) Derate (MW)
20-May-06 14:00:00 78.6 390 506 864 0 0 0
20-May-06 15:00:00 78.8 391 493 863 0 0 0
20-May-06 16:00:00 79.2 389 498 862 0 0 0
20-May-06 17:00:00 79.5 389 508 861 0 0 0
20-May-06 18:00:00 79.8 390 506 861 0 0 0
20-May-06 19:00:00 79.7 387 501 860 0 0 0
20-May-06 20:00:00 79.3 384 495 861 0 0 0
20-May-06 21:00:00 79.6 380 493 862 0 0 0
20-May-06 22:00:00 79.7 301 392 861 0 0 0
20-May-06 23:00:00 79.8 342 475 860 0 0 0
21-May-06 00:00:00 79.8 251 338 861 0 0 0
21-May-06 01:00:00 79.8 165 237 859 0 0 0
21-May-06 02:00:00 79.7 124 140 860 0 0 0
21-May-06 03:00:00 79.6 122 141 860 0 0 0
21-May-06 04:00:00 79.5 120 140 860 0 0 0
21-May-06 05:00:00 79.5 121 140 861 0 0 0
21-May-06 06:00:00 79.1 121 140 861 0 0 0
21-May-06 07:00:00 78.9 134 163 861 0 0 0
21-May-06 08:00:00 78.8 220 238 861 0 0 0
21-May-06 09:00.00 78.9 320 323 861 0 0 0
21-May-06 10:00:00 79.3 365 441 860 0 0 0
21-May-06 11:00:00 79.3 377 468 860 0 0 0
21-May-06 12:00:00 79.7 388 504 860 0 0 0
21-May-06 13:00:00 80.0 389 504 861 0 0 0
21-May-06 14:00:00 80.3 385 503 861 0 0 0
21-May-06 15:00:00 80.6 383 504 861 0 0 0
21-May-06 16:00:00 80.8 383 502 861 0 0 0
21-May-06 17:00:00 81.3 384 503 860 0 0 0
21-May-06 18:00:00 81.1 386 503 861 0 0 0
21-May-06 19:00:00 80.9 382 502 860 0 0 0
21-May-06 20:00:00 80.6 382 502 860 0 0 0
21-May-06 21:00:00 80.5 388 504 861 0 0 0
21-May-06 22:00:00 80.6 284 504 862 0 0 0
21-May-06 23:00:00 80.8 262 431 861 0 0 0
22-May-06 00:00:00 80.9 198 344 860 0 0 0
22-May-06 01:00:00 80.9 120 173 859 0 0 0
22-May-06 02:00:00 80.8 121 141 857 0 0 0
22-May-06 03:00:00 80.8 121 141 857 0 0 0
22-May-06 04:00:00 80.7 120 140 856 0 0 0
22-May-06 05:00:00 80.7 144 167 861 0 0 0
22-May-06 06:00:00 80.9 216 284 861 0 0 0
22-May-06 07:00:00 80.8 222 381 862 0 0 0
22-May-06 08:00:00 80.3 316 476 861 0 0 0
22-May-06 09:00:00 80.1 383 503 861 0 0 0
22-May-06 10:00:00 80.1 385 510 862 0 0 0
22-May-06 11:00:00 80.1 315 505 860 0 0 0
22-May-06 12:00:00 80.3 368 511 861 0 0 0
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Expected CR-1&2 Derates w/o Modular Cooling Towers
MCT Aux Power =|1,969
Totals
Unit Loads (MW) 26,338 414 25,924
Iniet Total Expected Gross
Temp. Derate w/o Moduiar |Actual Derate Avoided
Date & Time (deg F) CR 1 CR2 CR 3 |Towers (MW) (MW) Derate (MW)

22-May-06 13:00:00 80.4 375 507 862 0 0 0
22-May-06 14:00:00 80.6 372 499 862 0 0 0
22-May-06 15:00:00 80.7 382 503 862 0 0 0
22-May-06 16:00:00 80.9 383 496 861 0 0 0
22-May-06 17:00:00 81.3 391 500 860 0 0 0
22-May-06 18:00:00 81.2 383 506 861 0 0 0
22-May-06 19:00:00 81.0 363 508 859 0 0 0
22-May-06 20:00:00 80.9 384 505 860 0 0 0
22-May-06 21:00:00 80.8 364 505 861 0 0 0
22-May-06 22:00:00 80.7 311 502 860 0 0 0
22-May-06 23:00:00 80.5 282 368 860 0 0 0
23-May-06 00:00:00 80.9 238 234 859 0 0 0
23-May-06 01:00:00 81.1 294 295 859 0 0 0
23-May-06 02:00:00 81.3 197 154 859 0 0 0
23-May-06 03:00:00 81.2 120 225 859 0 0 0
23-May-06 04:00:00 81.0 121 238 859 0 0 0
23-May-06 05:00:00 81.1 130 272 859 0 0 0
23-May-06 06:00:00 81.0 281 298 857 0 0 0
23-May-06 07:00:00 81.0 347 303 858 0 0 0
23-May-06 08:00:00 80.8 294 376 858 0 0 0
23-May-06 09:00:00 80.7 387 409 859 0 0 0
23-May-06 10:00:00 80.6 391 413 861 0 0 0
23-May-06 11:00:00 80.6 369 417 860 0 0 0
23-May-06 12:00:00 80.6 384 499 859 0 0 0
23-May-06 13:00:00 80.5 389 512 860 0 0 0
23-May-06 14:00:00 80.5 387 513 860 0 0 0
23-May-06 15:00:00 80.5 389 514 859 0 0 0
23-May-06 16:00:00 80.6 385 511 861 0 0 0
23-May-06 17:00:00 80.7 388 510 860 0 0 0
23-May-06 18:00:00 80.7 391 507 860 0 0 0
23-May-06 19:00:00 80.7 387 504 860 0 0 0
23-May-06 20:00:00 80.6 385 503 861 0 0 0
23-May-06 21:00:00 80.6 386 503 862 0 0 0
23-May-06 22:00:00 80.5 383 506 862 0 0 0
23-May-06 23:00:00 80.5 305 402 862 0 0 0
24-May-06 00:00:00 80.4 210 374 861 0 0 0
24-May-06 01:00:00 80.4 123 253 860 0 0 0
24-May-06 02:00:00 80.3 132 153 860 0 0 0
24-May-06 03:00:00 80.3 122 141 860 0 0 0
24-May-06 04:00:00 80.2 121 142 861 0 0 0
24-May-06 05:00:00 80.1 152 171 861 0 0 0
24-May-06 06:00:00 80.1 200 267 859 0 0 0
24-May-06 07:00:00 80.0 198 362 861 0 0 0
24-May-06 08:00:00 79.9 228 447 864 0 0 0
24-May-06 09:00:00 79.9 222 411 863 0 0 0
24-May-06 10:00:00 80.1 283 421 861 0 0 0
24-May-06 11:00:00 80.0 295 506 862 0 0 0
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Expected CR-1&2 Derates w/o Modular Cooling Towers
MCT Aux Power =[1,969
Totals
Unit Loads (MW) 26,338 414 25,924
Inlet Total Expected Gross
Temp. Derate w/o Modular |Actual Derate Avoided
Date & Time (deg F)_ CR1 CR2 CR 3 |Towers (MW) (MW) Derate (MW)

24-May-06 12:00:00 80.2 383 509 861

24-May-06 13:00:00 80.4 390 509 861

24-May-06 14:00:00 80.4 391 513 861

24-May-06 15:00:00 80.6 390 507 858

24-May-06 16:00:00 80.8 390 508 856

24-May-06 17:00:00 81.3 389 506 860

24-May-06 18:00:00 81.5 389 511 861

24-May-06 19:00:00 81.5 390 514 860

24-May-06 20:00:00 81.1 388 508 860

24-May-06 21:00:00 80.6 382 511 860

24-May-06 22:00:00 80.6 390 506 859

24-May-06 23:00:00 80.5 255 511 860

25-May-06 00:00:00 80.7 253 508 845

25-May-06 01:00:00 81.1 159 389 861

25-May-06 02:00:00 81.2 122 274 860

25-May-06 03:00:00 81.3 122 139 859

25-May-06 04:00:00 81.2 120 141 859

25-May-06 05:00:00 814 122 141 858

25-May-06 06:00:00 81.3 183 238 858

25-May-06 07:00:00 814 266 347 858

25-May-06 08:00:00 81.3 339 456 858

25-May-06 09:00:00 814 367 501 860

25-May-06 10:00:00 81.3 385 513 860

25-May-06 11:00:00 81.3 388 512 861

25-May-06 12:00:00 81.5 388 505 861

25-May-06 13:00:00 81.6 392 516 861

25-May-06 14:00:00 81.9 379 510 860

25-May-06 15:00:00 82.0 394 508 860

25-May-06 16:00:00 82.4 393 508 860

25-May-06 17:00:00 82.2 393 507 860

25-May-06 18:00:00 81.9 393 508 859

25-May-06 19:00:00 82.1 389 503 858

25-May-06 20:00:00 82.0 392 509 858

25-May-06 21:00:00 82.2 392 509 876

25-May-06 22:00:00 82.3 384 510 859

25-May-06 23:00:00 82.1 308 510 860

26-May-06 00:00:00 82.5 302 294 859

26-May-06 01:00:00 82.9 291 144 860

26-May-06 02:00:00 83.2 227 141 859

26-May-06 03:00:00 83.1 150 141 858

26-May-06 04:00:00 82.9 124 140 857

26-May-06 05:00:00 82.8 135 140 857

26-May-06 06:00:00 82.9 292 140 857

26-May-06 07:00:00 82.9 275 138 858

26-May-06 08:00:00 83.0 393 141 859

26-May-06 09:00:00 83.0 388 152 859

ololololojojolojo|olo|o|o|o|ololololololo|ojojo|o|ojo]o[o|o]|0|0|0|0|0[0|0]|0|0|0|0|0|00|0]|0|O
OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO
ol|olojo|ololo|ololo|lo|o|o|olojo|lololololo|o|o]olojolo|loio|olo|ojolojolololo|o|o|o(ojo|o|o[o| O

26-May-06 10:00:00 83.0 386 428 840
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Expected CR-1&2 Derates w/o Modular Cooling Towers
MCT Aux Power =/1,969
Totals
Unit Loads (MW) 26,338 414 25,924
Inlet Total Expected Gross
Temp. Derate w/o Modular |Actual Derate| Avoided
Date & Time (deg F) CR 1 CR2 CR 3 |Towers (MW) (MW) Derate (MW)

26-May-06 11:00:00 82.9 387 485 859 0 0 0
26-May-06 12:00:00 82.9 388 503 859 0 0 0
26-May-06 13:00:00 83.2 379 507 859 0 0 0
26-May-06 14:00:00 83.2 389 513 859 0 0 0
26-May-06 15:00:00 83.2 388 508 859 0 0 0
26-May-06 16:00:00 83.4 383 510 859 0 0 0
26-May-06 17:00:00 83.5 384 503 858 0 0 0
26-May-06 18:00:00 83.4 385 503 858 0 0 0
26-May-06 19:00:00 83.8 335 449 858 0 0 0
26-May-06 20:00:00 83.6 335 449 857 0 0 0
26-May-06 21:00:00 83.4 358 473 857 0 0 0
26-May-06 22:00:00 83.4 358 475 858 0 0 0
26-May-06 23:00:00 83.1 330 449 858 0 0 0
27-May-06 00:00:00 83.3 285 379 857 0 0 0
27-May-06 01:00:00 83.6 244 349 855 0 0 0
27-May-06 02:00:00 83.9 129 181 854 0 0 0
27-May-06 03:00:00 83.9 149 201 854 0 0 0
27-May-06 04:00:00 84.0 121 140 856 0 0 0
27-May-06 05:00:00 83.9 125 146 858 0 0 0
27-May-06 06:00:00 83.8 135 158 856 0 0 0
27-May-06 07:00:00 83.8 143 161 854 0 0 0
27-May-06 08:00:00 83.8 218 280 856 0 0 0
27-May-06 09:00:00 83.7 263 336 858 0 0 0
27-May-06 10:00:00 83.8 370 466 858 0 0 0
27-May-06 11:00:00 83.9 382 484 860 0 0 0
27-May-06 12:00:00 83.8 389 505 856 0 0 0
27-May-06 13:00:00 83.8 391 503 857 0 0 0
27-May-06 14:00:00 84.1 389 509 857 0 0 0
27-May-06 15:00:00 84.2 392 511 857 0 0 0
27-May-06 16:00:00 84.3 390 507 856 0 0 0
27-May-06 17:00:00 84.5 387 504 856 0 0 0
27-May-06 18:00:00 84.6 379 503 856 0 0 0
27-May-06 19:00:00 84.7 379 507 856 0 0 0
27-May-06 20:00:00 84.6 378 508 856 0 0 0
27-May-06 21:00:00 84.3 378 509 856 0 0 0
27-May-06 22:00:00 84.0 384 507 856 0 0 0
27-May-06 23:00:00 83.9 331 507 857 0 0 0
28-May-06 00:00:00 83.9 282 466 856 0 0 0
28-May-06 01:00:00 84.1 226 379 855 0 0 0
28-May-06 02:00:00 84.6 168 275 853 0 0 0
28-May-06 03:00:00 84.6 122 145 853 0 0 0
28-May-06 04:00:00 84.6 121 140 854 0 0 0
28-May-06 05:00:00 84.6 121 140 855 0 0 0
28-May-06 06:00:00 84.5 125 145 856 0 0 0
28-May-06 07:00:00 84.5 121 140 857 0 0 0
28-May-06 08:00:00 84.4 212 239 856 0 0 0
28-May-06 09:00:00 84.3 323 372 856 0 0 0
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Expected CR-1&2 Derates w/o Modular Cooling Towers
MCT Aux Power =|1,969
Totals
Unit Loads (MW) 26,338 414 25,924
Inlet Total Expected Gross
Temp. Derate w/o Modular |Actual Derate Avoided
Date & Time (deg F) CR 1 CR2 CR 3 |[Towers (MW) (MW) Derate (MW)

28-May-06 10:00:00 84.3 312 519 856 0 0 0
28-May-06 11:00:00 84.5 284 508 856 0 0 0
28-May-06 12:00:00 84.5 382 515 856 0 0 0
28-May-06 13:00:00 84.7 365 507 855 0 0 0
28-May-06 14:00:00 85.2 379 511 855 0 0 0
28-May-06 15:00:00 85.2 376 506 855 0 0 0
28-May-06 16:00:00 85.2 380 510 856 0 0 0
28-May-06 17:00:00 85.6 391 508 856 0 0 0
28-May-06 18:00:00 85.4 383 510 856 0 0 0
28-May-06 19:00:00 85.3 388 508 856 0 0 0
28-May-06 20:00:00 84.8 388 504 857 0 0 0
28-May-06 21:00:00 84.7 385 506 855 0 0 0
28-May-06 22:00:00 84.5 386 507 854 0 0 0
28-May-06 23:00:00 84.4 344 470 855 0 0 0
29-May-06 00:00:00 84.4 289 383 855 0 0 0
29-May-06 01:00:00 84.4 225 292 854 0 0 0
29-May-06 02:00:00 84.5 214 207 855 0 0 0
29-May-06 03:00:00 84.5 132 145 855 0 0 0
29-May-06 04:00:00 84.6 121 141 855 0 0 0
29-May-06 05:00:00 84.8 121 141 855 0 0 0
29-May-06 06:00:00 84.9 127 139 855 0 0 0
29-May-06 07:00:00 84.9 121 139 856 0 0 0
29-May-06 08:00:00 84.8 122 145 857 0 0 0
29-May-06 09:00:00 84.8 225 393 858 0 0 0
29-May-06 10:00:00 84.8 370 471 856 0 0 0
29-May-06 11:00:00 84.6 388 507 855 0 0 0
29-May-06 12:00:00 84.7 385 498 856 0 0 0
29-May-06 13:00:00 84.8 388 502 857 0 0 0
29-May-06 14:00:00 85.1 386 500 856 0 0 0
29-May-06 15:00:00 85.2 390 506 856 0 0 0
29-May-06 16:00:00 85.3 390 504 856 0 0 0
29-May-06 17:00:00 85.3 388 507 857 0 0 0
29-May-06 18:00:00 85.4 391 513 857 0 0 0
29-May-06 19:00:00 85.2 389 508 854 0 0 0
29-May-06 20:00:00 85.0 388 504 856 0 0 0
29-May-06 21:00:00 84.8 391 511 856 0 0 0
29-May-06 22:00:00 84.7 389 511 856 0 0 0
29-May-06 23:00:00 84.6 388 507 856 0 0 0
30-May-06 00:00:00 84.6 208 450 855 0 0 0
30-May-06 01:00:00 84.5 121 321 855 0 0 0
30-May-06 02:00:00 84.4 123 233 855 0 0 0
30-May-06 03:00:00 84.2 122 157 855 0 0 0
30-May-06 04:00:00 84.1 122 139 855 0 0 0
30-May-06 05:00:00 84.1 122 141 855 0 0 0
30-May-06 06:00:00 84.0 167 194 856 0 0 0
30-May-06 07:00:00 84.0 213 249 857 0 0 0
30-May-06 08:00:00 84.0 232 300 856 0 0 0
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Expected CR-1&2 Derates w/o Modular Cooling Towers
MCT Aux Power =/1,969
Totals
Unit Loads (MW) 26,338 414 25,924
Inlet Total Expected Gross
Temp. Derate w/o Modular |Actual Derate Avoided
Date & Time (degF) CR 1 CR2 CR 3 |Towers (MW) (MW) Derate (MW)

30-May-06 09:00:00 84.1 332 444 855 0 0 0
30-May-06 10:00:00 84.2 384 500 854 0 0 0
30-May-06 11:00:00 84.2 384 509 855 0 0 0
30-May-06 12:00:00 84.1 393 501 858 0 0 0
30-May-06 13:00:00 84.0 390 502 857 0 0 0
30-May-06 14:00:00 84.1 389 506 857 0 0 0
30-May-06 15:00:00 84.3 390 504 857 0 0 0
30-May-06 16:00:00 84.6 389 501 856 0 0 0
30-May-06 17:00:00 84.8 394 503 857 0 0 0
30-May-06 18:00:00 84.4 391 504 856 0 0 0
30-May-06 19:00:00 84.4 395 506 856 0 0 0
30-May-06 20:00:00 84.5 387 506 857 0 0 0
30-May-06 21:00:00 84.4 389 505 856 0 0 0
30-May-06 22:00:00 84.2 391 508 856 0 0 0
30-May-06 23:00:00 84.1 285 405 855 0 0 0
31-May-06 00:00:00 83.9 204 299 855 0 0 0
31-May-06 01:00:00 83.8 202 301 856 0 0 0
31-May-06 02:00:00 83.5 136 230 855 0 0 0
31-May-06 03:00:00 83.6 120 144 855 0 0 0
31-May-06 04:00:00 83.5 121 146 855 0 0 0
31-May-06 05:00:00 83.6 121 146 855 0 0 0
31-May-06 06:00:00 83.7 125 194 855 0 0 0
31-May-06 07:00:00 83.7 135 277 856 0 0 0
31-May-06 08:00:00 83.7 225 362 858 0 0 0
31-May-06 09:00:00 83.8 322 474 857 0 0 0
31-May-06 10:00:00 83.9 314 494 856 0 0 0
31-May-06 11:00:00 84.0 388 507 855 0 0 0
31-May-06 12:00:00 83.9 385 501 855 0 0 0
31-May-06 13:00:00 83.9 387 509 856 0 0 0
31-May-06 14:00:00 83.9 386 502 856 0 0 0
31-May-06 15:00:00 83.9 390 503 856 0 0 0
31-May-06 16:00:00 83.9 390 513 853 0 0 0
31-May-06 17:00:00 84.4 394 514 854 0 0 0
31-May-06 18:00:00 84.4 395 504 856 0 0 0
31-May-06 19:00:00 84.2 391 507 857 0 0 0
31-May-06 20:00:00 84.3 390 509 855 0 0 0
31-May-06 21:00:00 84.2 388 497 857 0 0 0
31-May-06 22:00:00 84.0 382 499 856 0 0 0
31-May-06 23:00:00 84.0 259 358 857 0 0 0
01-Jun-06 00:00:00 84.0 203 298 855 0 0 0
01-Jun-06 01:00:00 83.9 200 299 856 0 0 0
01-Jun-06 02:00:00 83.9 119 254 856 0 0 0
01-Jun-06 03:00:00 83.7 122 207 855 0 0 0
01-Jun-06 04:00:00 83.6 121 138 855 0 0 0
01-Jun-06 05:00:00 83.7 120 141 856 0 0 0
01-Jun-06 06:00:00 83.6 136 192 857 0 0 0
01-Jun-06 07:00:00 83.5 140 204 856 0 0 0
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Expected CR-1&2 Derates w/o Modular Cooling Towers

MCT Aux Power ={1,969
Totals
Unit Loads (MW) 26,338 414 25,924
Inlet Total Expected Gross
Temp. Derate w/o Modular |Actual Derate Avoided
Date & Time (deg F) CR 1 CR2 CR3 |Towers (MW) (MW) Derate (MW)
01-Jun-06 08:00:00 83.4 199 261 857 0 0 0
01-Jun-06 09:00:00 83.5 286 367 856 0 0 0
01-Jun-06 10:00:00 83.6 296 491 855 0 0 0
01-Jun-06 11:00:00 83.5 384 491 856 0 0 0
01-Jun-06 12:00:00 83.5 376 503 857 0 0 0
01-Jun-06 13:00:00 83.6 384 496 857 0 0 0
01-Jun-06 14:00:00 83.7 382 500 858 0 0 0
01-Jun-06 15:00:00 83.8 384 492 857 0 0 0
01-Jun-06 16:00:00 83.9 386 492 856 0 0 0
01-Jun-06 17:00:00 84.0 386 496 856 0 0 0
01-Jun-06 18:00:00 84.0 384 500 857 0 0 0
01-Jun-06 19:00:00 84.0 384 499 857 0 0 0
01-Jun-06 20:00:00 83.9 385 506 857 0 0 0
01-Jun-06 21:00:00 83.9 384 503 857 0 0 0
01-Jun-06 22:00:00 83.8 383 500 857 0 0 0
01-Jun-06 23:00:00 83.8 266 400 857 0 0 0
02-Jun-06 00:00:00 83.8 150 388 857 0 0 0
02-Jun-06 01:00:00 83.7 120 325 856 0 0 0
02-Jun-06 02:00:00 83.6 121 145 856 0 0 0
02-Jun-06 03:00:00 83.7 121 141 857 0 0 0
02-Jun-06 04:00:00 83.4 121 185 857 0 0 0
02-Jun-06 05:00:00 83.2 122 164 857 0 0 0
02-Jun-06 06:00:00 83.2 149 239 858 0 0 0
02-Jun-06 07:00:00 83.3 188 281 857 0 0 0
02-Jun-06 08:00:00 83.2 196 380 856 0 0 0
02-Jun-06 09:00:00 83.3 275 492 855 0 0 0
02-Jun-06 10:00:00 83.4 375 499 854 0 0 0
02-Jun-06 11:00:00 83.5 384 500 856 0 0 0
02-Jun-06 12:00:00 83.7 381 502 856 0 0 0
02-Jun-06 13:00:00 83.8 383 503 857 0 0 0
02-Jun-06 14:00:00 84.1 384 501 858 0 0 0
02-Jun-06 15:00:00 84.5 384 500 856 0 0 0
02-Jun-06 16:00:00 84.9 384 498 857 0 0 0
02-Jun-06 17:00:00 84.9 385 512 856 0 0 0
02-Jun-06 18:00:00 84.7 385 499 856 0 0 0
02-Jun-06 19:00:00 84.2 384 507 856 0 0 0
02-Jun-06 20:00:00 84.3 384 506 856 0 0 0
02-Jun-06 21:00:00 84.2 383 511 856 0 0 0
02-Jun-06 22:00:00 84.2 383 503 856 0 0 0
02-Jun-06 23:00:00 84.1 377 475 856 0 0 0
03-Jun-06 00:00:00 84.0 379 480 856 0 0 0
03-Jun-06 01:00:00 83.7 315 430 856 0 0 0
03-Jun-06 02:00:00 83.7 238 335 856 0 0 0
03-Jun-06 03:00:00 83.5 167 215 855 0 0 0
03-Jun-06 04:00:00 83.5 129 146 856 0 0 0
03-Jun-06 05:00:00 83.6 126 141 855 0 0 0
03-Jun-06 06:00:00 83.7 136 150 855 0 0 0
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Expected CR-1&2 Derates w/o Modular Cooling Towers
MCT Aux Power =|{1,969
Totals
Unit Loads (MW) 26,338 414 25,924
Inlet Total Expected Gross
Temp. Derate w/o Modular [Actual Derate Avoided
Date & Time (deg F) CR 1 CR2 CR 3 |[Towers (MW) (MW) Derate (MW)

03-Jun-06 07:00:00 83.8 140 154 857 0 0 0
03-Jun-06 08:00:00 83.8 220 246 855 0 0 0
03-Jun-06 09:00:00 84.0 319 354 854 0 0 0
03-Jun-06 10:00:00 84.0 378 500 855 0 0 0
03-Jun-06 11:00:00 84.2 382 504 855 0 0 0
03-Jun-06 12:00:00 84.4 390 504 855 0 0 0
03-Jun-06 13:00:00 84.4 384 504 856 0 0 0
03-Jun-06 14:00:00 84.4 389 503 857 0 0 0
03-Jun-06 15:00:00 84.2 388 510 857 0 0 0
03-Jun-06 16:00:00 84.3 387 513 856 0 0 0
03-Jun-06 17:00:00 84.4 389 503 856 0 0 0
03-Jun-06 18:00:00 84.2 389 510 856 0 0 0
03-Jun-06 19:00:00 84.2 389 513 857 0 0 0
03-Jun-06 20:00:00 84.2 386 502 857 0 0 0
03-Jun-06 21:00:00 84.3 389 504 857 0 0 0
03-Jun-06 22:00:00 84.2 390 510 855 0 0 0
03-Jun-06 23:00:00 84.0 349 396 856 0 0 0
04-Jun-06 00:00:00 83.9 361 457 857 0 0 0
04-Jun-06 01:00:00 83.7 304 402 856 0 0 0
04-Jun-06 02:00:00 83.7 243 337 856 0 0 0
04-Jun-06 03:00:00 83.6 210 216 857 0 0 0
04-Jun-06 04:00:00 83.7 178 190 857 0 0 0
04-Jun-06 05:00:00 83.6 144 158 856 0 0 0
04-Jun-06 06:00:00 83.1 157 175 856 0 0 0
04-Jun-06 07:00:00 82.9 160 174 857 0 0 0
04-Jun-06 08:00:00 82.9 263 300 856 0 0 0
04-Jun-06 09:00:00 82.8 322 375 854 0 0 0
04-Jun-06 10:00:00 83.0 356 481 857 0 0 0
04-Jun-06 11:00:00 83.1 391 508 858 0 0 0
04-Jun-06 12:00:00 83.4 387 502 859 0 0 0
04-Jun-06 13:00:00 83.7 389 502 858 0 0 0
04-Jun-06 14:00:00 84.1 383 505 857 0 0 0
04-Jun-06 15:00:00 84.5 383 502 857 0 0 0
04-Jun-06 16:00:00 84.7 384 504 856 0 0 0
04-Jun-06 17:00:00 84.9 382 502 857 0 0 0
04-Jun-06 18:00:00 85.0 382 507 857 0 0 0
04-Jun-06 19:00:00 85.3 384 501 856 0 0 0
04-Jun-06 20:00:00 85.1 386 509 855 0 0 0
04-Jun-06 21:00:00 84.9 384 498 855 0 0 0
04-Jun-06 22:00:00 84.7 381 505 856 0 0 0
04-Jun-06 23:00:00 84.6 332 296 857 0 0 0
05-Jun-06 00:00:00 84.5 306 255 856 0 0 0
05-Jun-06 01:00:00 84.3 217 238 856 0 0 0
05-Jun-06 02:00:00 84.1 125 220 855 0 0 0
05-Jun-06 03:00:00 83.9 121 220 855 0 0 0
05-Jun-06 04:00:00 83.7 121 140 855 0 0 0
05-Jun-06 05:00:00 83.6 121 140 855 0 0 0




Docket No. 060162-E1
Progress Energy Florida
Witness: Thomas Lawery
Exhibit No. _ (TL-3)

Page 19 of 47
Expected CR-1&2 Derates w/o Modular Cooling Towers
MCT Aux Power =]1,969
Totals
Unit Loads (MW) 26,338 414 25,924
Inlet Total Expected Gross
Temp. Derate w/o Modular |Actual Derate Avoided
Date & Time (deg F) CR 1 CR2 CR 3 |Towers (MW) (MW) Derate (MW)

05-Jun-06 06:00:00 83.4 238 245 856 . 0 0 0
05-Jun-06 07:00:00 83.4 311 287 858 0 0 0
05-Jun-06 08:00:00 83.4 380 320 858 0 0 0
05-Jun-06 09:00:00 83.5 373 279 856 0 0 0
05-Jun-06 10:00:00 83.5 382 253 855 0 0 0
05-Jun-06 11:00:00 83.6 381 255 856 0 0 0
05-Jun-06 12:00:00 83.8 379 307 857 0 0 0
05-Jun-06 13:00:00 84.2 379 275 857 0 0 0
05-Jun-06 14:00:00 84.6 379 361 857 0 0 0
05-Jun-06 15:00:00 85.0 384 482 857 0 0 0
05-Jun-06 16:00:00 85.3 385 500 856 0 0 0
05-Jun-06 17:00:00 85.5 381 502 854 0 0 0
05-Jun-06 18:00:00 85.1 386 490 856 0 0 0
05-Jun-06 19:00:00 85.0 384 496 855 0 0 0
05-Jun-06 20:00:00 85.1 388 506 855 0 0 0
05-Jun-06 21:00:00 85.3 379 499 855 0 0 0
05-Jun-06 22:00:00 85.2 385 500 855 0 0 0
05-Jun-06 23:00:00 85.1 383 454 855 0 0 0
06-Jun-06 00:00:00 85.1 377 296 855 0 0 0
06-Jun-06 01:00:00 84.8 292 281 855 0 0 0
06-Jun-06 02:00:00 84.7 215 195 855 0 0 0
06-Jun-06 03:00:00 84.6 156 141 855 0 0 0
06-Jun-06 04:00:00 84.4 122 142 853 0 0 0
06-Jun-06 05:00:00 84.3 151 171 857 0 0 0
06-Jun-06 06:00:00 84.3 208 232 856 0 0 0
06-Jun-06 07:00:00 84.2 219 219 858 0 0 0
06-Jun-06 08:00:00 84.2 290 290 859 0 0 0
06-Jun-06 09:00:00 84.1 321 295 855 0 0 0
06-Jun-06 10:00:00 84.0 392 297 851 0 0 0
06-Jun-06 11:00:00 84.1 392 297 851 0 0 0
06-Jun-06 12:00:00 84.3 390 295 856 0 0 0
06-Jun-06 13:00:00 84.4 394 301 855 0 0 0
06-Jun-06 14:00:00 84.5 387 317 858 0 0 0
06-Jun-06 15:00:00 84.8 390 454 858 0 0 0
06-Jun-06 16:00:00 85.0 389 500 856 0 0 0
06-Jun-06 17:00:00 85.1 391 500 855 0 0 0
06-Jun-06 18:00:00 85.2 390 509 855 0 0 0
06-Jun-06 19:00:00 85.1 390 496 857 0 0 0
06-Jun-06 20:00:00 85.2 391 500 856 0 0 0
06-Jun-06 21:00:00 84.8 388 508 854 0 0 0
06-Jun-06 22:00:00 84.9 385 521 854 0 0 0
06-Jun-06 23:00:00 84.8 380 502 855 0 0 0
07-Jun-06 00:00:00 84.6 200 500 856 0 0 0
07-Jun-06 01:00:00 84.4 203 448 857 0 0 0
07-Jun-06 02:00:00 84.3 142 366 856 0 0 0
07-Jun-06 03:00:00 84.1 126 312 855 0 0 0
07-Jun-06 04:00:00 84.1 125 278 854 0 0 0
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Expected CR-1&2 Derates w/o Modular Cooling Towers
MCT Aux Power =[1,969
Totals
Unit Loads (MW) 26,338 414 25,924
Iniet Total Expected Gross
Temp. Derate w/o Modular |Actual Derate| Avoided
Date & Time (deg F) CR 1 CR2 CR 3 |Towers (MW) (MW) Derate (MW)

07-Jun-06 05:00:00 84.0 127 239 855 0 0 0
07-Jun-06 06:00:00 83.9 127 231 854 0 0 0
07-Jun-06 07:00:00 83.7 143 244 856 0 0 0
07-Jun-06 08:00:00 83.5 237 400 857 0 0 0
07-Jun-06 09:00:00 834 332 490 857 0 0 0
07-Jun-06 10:00:00 83.3 379 493 858 0 0 0
07-Jun-06 11:00:00 83.3 382 497 858 0 0 0
07-Jun-06 12:00:00 83.2 381 495 857 0 0 0
07-Jun-06 13:00:00 83.3 380 499 857 0 0 0
07-Jun-06 14:00:00 83.4 385 494 857 0 0 0
07-Jun-06 15:00:00 83.7 381 498 857 0 0 0
07-Jun-06 16:00:00 83.9 385 492 857 0 0 0
07-Jun-06 17:00:00 84.2 387 495 857 0 0 0
07-Jun-06 18:00:00 84.5 383 490 856 0 0 0
07-Jun-06 19:00:00 84.7 379 494 858 0 0 0
07-Jun-06 20:00:00 84.6 385 497 858 0 0 0
07-Jun-06 21:00:00 84.4 382 496 856 0 0 0
07-Jun-06 22:00:00 84.4 382 496 855 0 0 0
07-Jun-06 23:00:00 84.5 315 494 854 0 0 0
08-Jun-06 00:00:00 84.3 203 494 855 0 0 0
08-Jun-06 01:00:00 84.2 258 199 856 0 0 0
08-Jun-06 02:00:00 84.1 293 201 855 0 0 0
08-Jun-06 03:00:00 84.0 279 201 855 0 0 0
08-Jun-06 04:00:00 84.0 268 200 855 0 0 0
08-Jun-06 05:00:00 83.9 202 199 855 0 0 0
08-Jun-06 06:00:00 83.9 226 200 857 0 0 0
08-Jun-06 07:00:00 83.9 221 200 856 0 0 0
08-Jun-06 08:00:00 83.7 298 200 857 0 0 0
08-Jun-06 09:00:00 83.8 384 199 857 0 0 0
08-Jun-06 10:00:00 83.9 388 200 857 0 0 0
08-Jun-06 11:00:00 83.9 388 200 857 0 0 0
08-Jun-06 12:00:00 84.2 390 200 857 0 0 0
08-Jun-06 13:00:00 84.1 389 199 857 0 0 0
08-Jun-06 14.00:00 84.0 394 200 857 0 0 0
08-Jun-06 15:00:00 84.0 384 200 856 0 0 0
08-Jun-06 16:00:00 84.1 388 199 855 0 0 0
08-Jun-06 17:00:00 84.3 389 200 855 0 0 0
08-Jun-06 18:00:00 84.4 388 201 856 0 0 0
08-Jun-06 19:00.00 84.6 388 198 858 0 0 0
08-Jun-06 20:00.00 84.6 389 199 859 0 0 0
08-Jun-06 21:00:00 84.6 387 199 855 0 0 0
08-Jun-06 22:00:00 84.4 389 199 856 0 0 0
08-Jun-06 23:00:00 84.7 352 201 856 0 0 0
09-Jun-06 00:00:00 84.7 199 201 857 0 0 0
09-Jun-06 01:00:00 84.6 202 200 856 0 0 0
09-Jun-06 02:00:00 84.4 203 200 855 0 0 0
09-Jun-06 03:00:00 84.4 202 203 854 0 0 0
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Expected CR-1&2 Derates w/o Modular Cooling Towers
MCT Aux Power ={1,969
Totals

Unit Loads (MW) _26,338 414 25,924
Inlet Total Expected Gross
Temp. Derate w/o Modular {Actual Derate | Avoided

Date & Time (degF) CR 1 CR2 CR 3 [Towers (MW) (MW) Derate (MW

09-Jun-06 04:00:00 84.4 121 139 856

09-Jun-06 05:00:00 84.3 121 142 858

09-Jun-06 06:00:00 84.2 204 207 857

09-Jun-06 07:00:00 84.1 202 200 856

09-Jun-06 08:00:00 84.2 202 201 856

09-Jun-06 09:00:00 84.3 202 200 857

09-Jun-06 10:00:00 84.3 316 200 857

09-Jun-06 11:00:00 84.4 383 198 854

09-Jun-06 12:00:00 84.4 384 202 859

09-Jun-06 13:00:00 84.7 383 199 857

09-Jun-06 14:00:00 84.7 383 201 856

09-Jun-06 15:00:00 85.0 383 . 199 857

09-Jun-06 16:00:00 85.2 385 189 857

09-Jun-06 17:00:00 85.7 384 195 856

09-Jun-06 18:00:00 85.5 384 434 855

09-Jun-06 19:00:00 85.6 383 498 855

09-Jun-06 20:00:00 85.5 387 502 855

09-Jun-06 21:00:00 85.4 384 502 855

09-Jun-06 22:00:00 85.3 382 501 841

09-Jun-06 23:00:00 85.4 385 498 854

10-Jun-06 00:00:00 85.5 383 501 853

10-Jun-06 01:00:00 85.4 353 442 852

10-Jun-06 02:00:00 85.4 243 336 852

10-Jun-06 03:00:00 85.4 174 209 852

10-Jun-06 04:00:00 85.4 128 148 852

10-Jun-06 05:00:00 85.2 130 150 853

10-Jun-06 06:00:00 85.1 137 155 853

10-Jun-06 07:00:00 85.0 131 148 853

10-Jun-06 08:00:00 85.0 209 237 852

10-Jun-06 09:00:00 85.1 306 299 853

10-Jun-06 10:00:00 85.3 383 486 854

10-Jun-06 11:00:00 85.3 387 496 855

10-Jun-06 12:00:00 85.4 388 495 854

10-Jun-06 13:00:00 85.7 383 495 855

10-Jun-06 14.00:00 86.8 388 493 856

10-Jun-06 15:00:00 85.9 392 494 855

10-Jun-06 16:00:00 86.2 390 498 854

10-Jun-06 17:00:00 86.0 389 495 854

- 10-Jun-06 18:00:00 86.5 389 494 853

10-Jun-06 19:00:00 86.5 390 488 852

10-Jun-06 20:00:00 86.3 390 498 852

10-Jun-06 21:00:00 86.2 390 496 853

10-Jun-06 22:00:00 86.0 384 496 853

10-Jun-06 23:00:00 85.8 389 497 853

11-Jun-06 00:00:00 86.1 390 493 854

11-Jun-06 01:00:00 86.5 289 388 854

)

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

olo|o|o|olo|ojojojo|olo|o|o|o|o|ololo|o|olo|o|o]o|o|0|O|0jo{o|0|o]|0|0]|0|0|0|o|0|0|o(o|o|ol0|Oo
olololololojo|o|o|lo|ololo|ojo|o|ojo|ojojolojo|o|o]o|o|ojo|o|[o|o|o|o|0|0[0|0|0|0|0|0|0|00|0(o

11-Jun-06 02:00:00 86.6 185 203 853
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Expected CR-1&2 Derates w/o Modular Cooling Towers
MCT Aux Power ={1,969
Totals
Unit Loads (MW) 26,338 414 25,924
Inlet Total Expected Gross
Temp. Derate w/o Modular |Actual Derate Avoided
Date & Time (deg F) CR 1 CR2 CR 3 jTowers (MW) (MW) Derate (MW)

11-Jun-06 03:00:00 86.7 152 173 852 0 0 0
11-Jun-06 04:00:00 86.7 120 139 852 0 0 0
11-Jun-06 05:00:00 86.5 132 140 853 0 0 0
11-Jun-086 06:00:00 86.4 121 110 853 0 0 0
11-Jun-06 07:00:00 86.3 121 91 852 0 0 0
11-Jun-06 08:00:00 86.2 240 0 852 0 0 0
11-Jun-06 09:00:00 86.2 288 0 851 0 0 0
11-Jun-06 10:00:00 86.3 376 0 851 0 0 0
11-Jun-06 11:00:00 86.4 386 0 851 0 0 0}
11-Jun-06 12:00:00 86.3 393 0 853 0 0 0
11-Jun-06 13:00:00 86.3 388 0 854 0 0 0
11-Jun-06 14:00:00 86.7 384 0 854 0 0 0
11-Jun-06 15:00:00 86.6 383 0 854 0 0 0
11-Jun-06 16:00:00 86.1 387 0 854 0 0 0
11-Jun-06 17:00:00 86.1 383 0 854 0 0 0
11-Jun-06 18:00:00 86.0 384 0 854 0 0 0
11-Jun-06 19:00:00 86.0 386 0 854 0 0 0
11-Jun-06 20:00:00 85.9 383 0 854 0 0 0
11-Jun-06 21:00:00 85.9 386 0 854 0 0 0
11-Jun-06 22:00:00 85.8 248 0 855 0 0 0
11-Jun-06 23:00:00 85.7 263 0 855 0 0 0
12-Jun-06 00:00:00 85.7 198 0 853 0 0 0
12-Jun-06 01:00:00 85.6 121 0 854 0 0 0
12-Jun-06 02:00:00 85.4 122 0} 854 0 0 0
12-Jun-06 03:00:00 85.2 121 0 852 0 0 0
12-Jun-06 04:00:00 85.4 122 0 852 0 0 0
12-Jun-06 05:00:00 85.4 121 0 852 0 0 0
12-Jun-06 06:00:00 85.4 137 0 852 0 0 0
12-Jun-06 07:00:00 85.5 218 0 853 0 0 0
12-Jun-06 08:00:00 85.5 344 0 852 0 0 0
12-Jun-06 09:00:00 85.5 286 0 853 0 0 0
12-Jun-06 10:00:00 85.8 333 0 853 0 0 0
12-Jun-06 11:00:00 85.7 351 0 854 0 0 0
12-Jun-06 12:00:00 85.4 333 0 855 0 0 0
12-Jun-06 13:00:00 85.1 276 0 855 0 0 0
12-Jun-06 14:00:00 84.9 225 0 854 0 0 0
12-Jun-06 15:00:00 84.6 222 0 854 0 0 0
12-Jun-06 16:00:00 84.3 237 0 854 0 0 0
12-Jun-06 17:00:00 84.3 308 0 854 0 0 0
12-Jun-06 18:00:00 84.2 304 0 856 0 0 0
12-Jun-06 19:00:00 84.1 304 0 857 0 0 0
12-Jun-06 20:00:00 84.0 269 0 856 0 0 0
12-Jun-06 21:00:00 83.8 341 0 858 0 0 0
12-Jun-06 22:00:00 83.5 282 0 857 0 0 0
12-Jun-06 23:00:00 83.1 385 0 857 0 0 0
13-Jun-06 00:00:00 83.0 328 0 857 0 0 0
13-Jun-06 01:00:00 82.8 242 0 856 0 0 0
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Expected CR-1&2 Derates w/o Modular Cooling Towers
MCT Aux Power =|1,969
Totals
Unit Loads (MW) 26,338 414 25,924
Inlet Total Expected Gross
Temp. Derate w/o Modular |Actual Derate| Avoided
Date & Time (deg F) CR 1 CR2 CR 3 |Towers (MW) (MW) Derate (MW)
13-Jun-06 02:00:00 82.6 171 0 857 0 0 0
13-Jun-06 03:00:00 82.1 126 0 859 0 0 0
13-Jun-06 04:00:00 81.5 149 0 859 0 0 0
13-Jun-06 05:00:00 81.3 260 0 858 0 0 0
13-Jun-06 06:00:00 81.0 348 0 858 0 0 0
13-Jun-06 07:00.00 80.9 337 0 857 0 0 0
13-Jun-06 08:00:00 80.9 372 0 859 0 0 0
13-Jun-06 09:00:00 80.9 374 0 860 0 0 0
13-Jun-06 10:00:00 81.1 370 0 861 0 0 0
13-Jun-06 11:00:00 81.1 367 0 861 0 0 0
13-Jun-06 12:00:00 81.3 371 0 860 0 0 0
13-Jun-06 13:00:00 81.5 373 0 860 0 0 0
13-Jun-06 14:00:00 81.7 376 0 861 0 0 0
13-Jun-06 15:00:00 81.8 378 0 861 0 0 0
13-Jun-06 16:00:00 81.4 360 0 860 0 0 0
13-Jun-06 17:00:00 80.7 375 0 862 0 0 0
13-Jun-06 18:00:00 80.5 372 0 861 0 0 0
13-Jun-06 19:00:00 80.9 372 0 862 0 0 0
13-Jun-06 20:00:00 80.6 378 0 861 0 0 0
13-Jun-06 21:00:00 80.5 375 0 861 0 0 0
13-Jun-06 22:00:00 80.4 357 0 863 0 0 0
13-Jun-06 23:00:00 80.2 359 0 862 0 0 0
14-Jun-06 00:00:00 80.2 364 0 861 0 0 0
14-Jun-06 01:00:00 79.9 364 0 861 0 0 0
14-Jun-06 02:00:00 79.6 328 0 860 0 0 0
14-Jun-06 03:00:00 79.3 306 0 860 0 0 0
14-Jun-06 04:00:00 79.3 344 0 861 0 0 0
14-Jun-06 05:00:00 79.2 337 0 861 0 0 0
14-Jun-06 06:00:00 79.3 369 0 863 0 0 0
14-Jun-06 07:00:00 79.7 361 0 862 0 0 0
14-Jun-06 08:00:00 79.8 363 0 862 0 0 0
14-Jun-06 09:00:00 79.8 362 0 862 0 0 0
14-Jun-06 10:00:00 80.1 370 0 862 0 0 0
14-Jun-06 11:00:00 80.5 370 0 862 0 0 0
14-Jun-06 12:00:00 80.7 327 0 862 0 0 0
14-Jun-06 13:00:00 81.0 369 0 860 0 0 0
14-Jun-06 14:00.00 81.1 367 0 861 0 0 0
14-Jun-06 15:00:00 81.1 304 0 862 0 0 0
14-Jun-06 16:00:00 81.2 304 0 862 0 0 0
14-Jun-06 17:00:00 81.2 363 0 861 0 0 0
14-Jun-06 18:00:00 81.3 361 0 861 0 0 0
14-Jun-06 19:00:00 81.4 376 0 860 0 0 0
14-Jun-06 20:00:00 81.4 386 0 860 0 0 0
14-Jun-06 21:00:00 81.1 387 0 861 0 0 0
14-Jun-06 22:00:00 81.2 362 0 859 0 0 0
14-Jun-06 23:00:00 80.9 363 0 859 0 0 0
15-Jun-06 00:00:00 80.5 357 0 859 0 0 0
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Expected CR-1&2 Derates w/o Modular Cooling Towers
MCT Aux Power ={1,969
Totals
Unit Loads (MW) 26,338 414 25,924
Inlet Total Expected Gross
Temp. Derate w/o Modular |Actual Derate Avoided
Date & Time (deg F) CR 1 CR2 CR 3 |Towers (MW) (MW) Derate (MW)

15-Jun-06 01:00:00 80.7 356 0 860 0 0 0
15-Jun-06 02:00:00 81.1 359 0 859 0 0 0
15-Jun-06 03:00:00 81.4 338 0 858 0 0 0
15-Jun-06 04:00:00 81.1 275 0 859 0 0 0
15-Jun-06 05:00:00 81.1 223 0 858 0 0 0
15-Jun-06 06:00:00 81.1 320 0 858 0 0 0
15-Jun-06 07:00:00 80.9 285 0 859 0 0 0
15-Jun-06 08:00:00 80.8 331 0 860 0 0 0
15-Jun-06 09:00:00 80.8 358 0 861 0 0 0
15-Jun-06 10:00:00 81.0 358 0 860 0 0 0
15-Jun-06 11:00:00 81.1 353 0 862 0 0 0
15-Jun-06 12:00:00 81.5 355 0 861 0 0 0
15-Jun-06 13:00:00 81.7 361 0 861 0 0 0
15-Jun-06 14:00:00 82.4 367 0 860 0 0 0
15-Jun-06 15:00:00 82.6 368 0 860 0 0 0
15-Jun-06 16:00:00 82.7 369 0 860 0 0 0
15-Jun-06 17:00:00 82.6 358 32 860 0 0 0
15-Jun-06 18:00:00 82.7 356 80 860 0 0 0
15-Jun-06 19:00:00 82.8 359 230 860 0 0 0
15-Jun-06 20:00:00 82.7 358 301 860 0 0 0
15-Jun-06 21:00:00 82.8 360 363 859 0 0 0
15-Jun-06 22:00:00 82.7 358 321 859 0 0 0
15-Jun-06 23:00:00 82.6 356 336 860 0 0 0
16-Jun-06 00:00:00 82.1 358 301 860 0 0 0
16-Jun-06 01:00:00 82.0 363 379 859 0 0 0
16-Jun-06 02:00:00 82.1 317 343 857 0 0 0
16-Jun-06 03:00:00 82.5 201 204 858 0 0 0
16-Jun-06 04:00:00 82.8 129 157 858 0 0 0
-16-Jun-06 05:00:00 83.1 121 142 856 0 0 0
16-Jun-06 06:00:00 83.2 200 218 857 0 0 0
16-Jun-06 07:00:00 83.3 225 253 857 0 0 0
16-Jun-06 08:00:00 83.0 321 412 858 0 0 0
16-Jun-06 09:00:00 82.9 338 463 858 0 0 0
16-Jun-06 10:00:00 83.0 352 479 857 0 0 0
16-Jun-06 11:00:00 83.1 358 483 858 0 0 0
16-Jun-06 12:00:00 83.0 358 479 858 0 0 0
16-Jun-06 13:00:00 83.1 362 371 858 0 0 0
16-Jun-06 14:00:00 83.2 365 366 856 0 0 0
16-Jun-06 15:00:00 83.5] 364 368 854 0 0 0
16-Jun-06 16:00:00 84.0 363 362 857 0 0 0
16-Jun-06 17:00:00 84.0 364 370 857 0 0 0
16-Jun-06 18:00:00 83.6 366 368 858 0 0 0
16-Jun-06 19:00:00 83.7 365 377 859 0 0 0
16-Jun-06 20:00:00 83.7 369 382 857 0 0 0
16-Jun-06 21:00:00 83.6 369 375 857 0 0 0
16-Jun-06 22:00:00 83.5 368 376 857 0 0 0
16-Jun-06 23:00:00 83.2 369 375 858 0 0 0




Docket No. 060162-11
Progress Energy Florida
Witness: Thomas Lawery
Exhibit No. _ (TL-3)

Page 25 of 47
Expected CR-1&2 Derates w/o Modular Cooling Towers
MCT Aux Power ={1,969
Totals
Unit Loads (MW) 26,338 414 25,924
Inlet Total Expected Gross
Temp. Derate w/o Modular {Actual Derate Avoided
Date & Time (deg F) CR 1 CR2 CR 3 |Towers (MW) (MW) Derate (MW)
17-Jun-06 00:00:00 83.2 370 377 857 0 0 0
17-Jun-06 01:00:00 83.1 368 378 855 0 0 0
17-Jun-06 02:00:00 83.1 300 299 857 0 0 0
17-Jun-06 03:00:00 83.1 207 289 857 0 0 0
17-Jun-06 04:00:00 83.2 136 273 857 0 0 0
17-Jun-06 05:00:00 83.1 136 142 842 0 0 0
17-Jun-06 06:00:00 83.0 123 167 858 0 0 0
17-Jun-06 07:00:00 83.0 122 156 857 0 0 0
17-Jun-06 08:00:00 83.2 184 213 856 0 0 0
17-Jun-06 09:00:00 83.2 261 291 856 0 0 0
17-Jun-06 10:00:00 83.2 351 304 857 0 0 0
17-Jun-06 11:00:00 83.3 378 299 858 0 0 0
17-Jun-06 12:00:00 83.4 379 300 858 0 0 0
17-Jun-06 13:00:00 83.5 379 299 858 0 0 0
17-Jun-06 14:00:00 83.4 375 298 859 0 ) 0
17-Jun-06 15:00:00 83.5 377 301 858 0 0 0
17-Jun-06 16:00:00 83.6 376 299 858 0 0 0
17-Jun-06 17:00:00 83.7 378 301 859 0 0 0
17-Jun-06 18:00:00 83.5 376 299 859 0 0 0
17-Jun-06 19:00:00 83.6 380 300 859 0 0 0
17-Jun-06 20:00:00 83.5 380 301 859 0 0 0
17-Jun-06 21:00:00 83.5 380 300 858 0 0 0
17-Jun-06 22:00:00 83.3 371 296 858 0 0 0
17-Jun-06 23:00:00 83.2 328 237 859 0 0 0
18-Jun-06 00:00:00 83.1 259 227 856 0 0 0
18-Jun-06 01:00:00 83.1 215 142 855 0 0 0
18-Jun-06 02:00:00 83.1 121 142 855 0 0 0
18-Jun-06 03:00:00 83.0 121 142 855 0 0 0
18-Jun-06 04:00:00 83.0 121 142 855 0 0 0
18-Jun-06 05:00:00 82.7 138 156 856 0 0 0
18-Jun-06 06:00:00 82.7 129 147 856 0 0 0
18-Jun-06 07:00:00 82.6 137 156 856 0 0 0
18-Jun-06 08:00:00 82.2 196 213 856 0 0 0
18-Jun-06 09:00:00 82.3 280 264 857 0 0 0
18-Jun-06 10:00:00 82.4 293 271 858 0 0 0
18-Jun-06 11:00:00 82.5 319 314 858 0 0 0
18-Jun-06 12:00:00 82.6 375 410 857 0 0 0
18-Jun-06 13:00:00 82.7 375 467 858 0 0 0
18-Jun-06 14:00:00 82.7 284 507 858 0 0 0
18-Jun-06 15:00:00 82.7 324 506 859 0 0 0
18-Jun-06 16:00:00 82.7 343 511 859 0 0 0
18-Jun-06 17:00:00 82.8 362 502 858 0 0 0
18-Jun-06 18:00:00 82.8 286 507 858 0 0 0
18-Jun-06 19:00:00 82.7 387 507 859 0 0 0
18-Jun-06 20:00:00 82.8 380 505 858 0 0 0
18-Jun-06 21:00:00 82.8 385 490 859 0 0 0
18-Jun-06 22:00:00 82.7 310 394 856 0 0 0
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Expected CR-1&2 Derates w/o Modular Cooling Towers
MCT Aux Power =|1,969
Totais
Unit Loads (MW) 26,338 414 25,924
Inlet Total Expected Gross
Temp. Derate w/o Modular |Actual Derate | Avoided
Date & Time (deg F) CR 1 CR2 CR 3 |Towers (MW) (MW) Derate (MW)

18-Jun-06 23:00:00 82.6 283 386 856 0 0 0
19-Jun-06 00:00:00 82.5 209 378 856 0 0 0
19-Jun-06 01:00:00 82.4 120 150 856 0 0 0
19-Jun-06 02:00:00 82.4 123 0 856 0 0 0
19-Jun-06 03:00:00 82.5 157 0 855 0 0 0
19-Jun-06 04:00:00 82.4 197 0 855 0 0 0
19-Jun-06 05:00:00 82.3 122 22 856 0 0 0
19-Jun-06 06:00:00 82.0 178 47 857 0 0 0
19-Jun-06 07:00:00 81.9 188 92 857 0 0 0
19-Jun-06 08:00:00 81.8 285 140 860 0 0 0
19-Jun-06 09:00:00 81.9 385 212 860 0 0 0
19-Jun-06 10:00:00 81.9 386 256 861 0 0 0
19-Jun-06 11:00:00 82.0 384 394 858 0 0 0
19-Jun-06 12:00:00 82.3 387 492 859 0 0 0
19-Jun-06 13:00:00 82.8 388 501 859 0 0 0
19-Jun-06 14:00:00 82.9 383 499 859 0 0 0
19-Jun-06 15:00:00 83.2 385 490 858 ¢ 0 0
19-Jun-06 16:00:00 83.6 385 491 857 0 0 0
19-Jun-06 17:00:00 83.9 385 505 856 0 0 0
19-Jun-06 18:00:00 84.5 383 501 856 0 0 0
19-Jun-06 19:00:00 84.4 384 504 856 0 0 0
19-Jun-06 20:00:00 84.3 386 504 856 0 0 0
19-Jun-06 21:00:00 84.3 384 505 856 0 0 0
19-Jun-06 22:00:00 83.9 381 502 856 0 0 0
19-Jun-06 23:00:00 83.5 253 489 857 0 0 0
20-Jun-06 00:00:00 83.3 220 433 856 0 0 0
20-Jun-06 01:00:00 83.2 167 299 856 0 0 0
20-Jun-06 02:00:00 83.2 126 152 856 0 0 0
20-Jun-06 03:00:00 83.1 134 166 856 0 0 0
20-Jun-06 04:00:00 83.1 128 156 855 0 0 0
20-Jun-06 05:00:00 83.1 120 234 855 0 0 0
20-Jun-06 06:00:00 83.1 156 237 855 0 0 0
20-Jun-06 07:00:00 83.2 121 319 855 0 0 0
20-Jun-06 08:00:00 83.0 224 382 856 0 0 0
20-Jun-06 09:00:00 83.1 304 499 856 0 0 0
20-Jun-06 10:00:00 83.4 382 499 857 0 0 0
20-Jun-06 11:00:00 83.9 372 500 857 0 0 0
20-Jun-06 12:00:00 83.9 378 502 858 0 0 0
20-Jun-06 13:00:00 - 841 380 500 857 0 0 0
20-Jun-06 14:00:00 84.7 378 500 856 0 0 0
20-Jun-06 15:00:00 84.8 380 499 855 0 0 0
20-Jun-06 16:00:00 85.1 378 498 855 0 0 0
20-Jun-06 17:00:00 85.3 378 498 855 0 0 0
20-Jun-06 18:00:00 85.6 382 499 854 0 0 0
20-Jun-06 19:00:00 85.9 377 503 854 0 0 0
20-Jun-06 20:00:00 85.9 381 501 855 0 0 0
20-Jun-06 21:00:00 86.1 378 503 855 0 0 0
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Expected CR-1&2 Derates w/o Modular Cooling Towers
MCT Aux Power =|1,969
Totals
Unit Loads (MW) 26,338 414 25,924
Inlet Total Expected Gross
Temp. Derate w/o Modular |Actual Derate Avoided
Date & Time (deg F) CR1 CR2 CR3 |[Towers (MW) (MW) Derate (MW)

20-Jun-06 22:00:00 86.1 378 498 855 0 0 0
20-Jun-06 23:00:00 85.8 380 427 855 0 0 0
21-Jun-06 00:00:00 85.6 378 380 856 0 0 0
21-Jun-06 01:00:00 85.3 343 380 856 0 0 0
21-Jun-06 02:00:00 85.1 249 225 854 0 0 0
21-Jun-06 03:00:00 85.0 170 155 855 0 0 0
21-Jun-06 04:00:00 84.9 127 153 855 0 0 0
21-Jun-06 05:00:00 84.9 165 190 855 0 0 0
21-Jun-06 06:00:00 84.9 221 239 856 0 0 0
21-Jun-06 07:00:00 85.0 236 244 854 0 0 0
21-Jun-06 08:00:00 85.0 358 374 855 0 0 0
21-Jun-06 09:00:00 84.9 382 380 855 0 0 0
21-Jun-06 10:00:00 85.1 383 380 853 0 0 0
21-Jun-06 11:00:00 85.3 384 381 854 0 0 0
21-Jun-06 12:00:00 85.4 380 382 855 0 0 0
21-Jun-06 13:00:00 85.7 382 39 855 0 0 0
21-Jun-06 14:00:00 85.8 383 385 855 0 0 0
21-Jun-06 15:00:00 86.0 382 410 855 0 0 0
21-Jun-06 16:00:00 86.4 382 496 855 0 0 0
21-Jun-06 17:00:00 86.8 383 507 853 0 0 0
21-Jun-06 18:00:00 87.1 385 504 853 0 0 0
21-Jun-06 19:00:00 87.1 382 507 853 0 0 0
21-Jun-06 20:00:00 87.1 384 504 853 0 0 0
21-Jun-06 21:00:00 87.0 382 504 865 0 0 0
21-Jun-06 22:00:00 87.3 382 500 852 0 0 0
21-Jun-06 23:00:00 87.2 261 499 852 0 0 0
22-Jun-06 00:00:00 86.9 251 504 852 0 0 0
22-Jun-06 01:00:00 86.8 254 508 852 0 0 0
22-Jun-06 02:00:00 86.8 223 495 852 0 0 0
22-Jun-06 03:00:00 86.7 121 369 853 0 0 0
22-Jun-06 04:00:00 86.6 123 190 853 0 0 0
22-Jun-06 05:00:00 86.6 133 161 851 0 0 0
22-Jun-06 06:00:00 86.5 240 257 832 0 0 0
22-Jun-06 07:00:00 86.5 252 326 852 0 0 0
22-Jun-06 08:00:00 86.6 285 394 852 0 0 0
22-Jun-06 09:00:00 86.5 376 488 853 0 0 0
22-Jun-06 10:00:00 86.4 381 513 853 0 0 0
22-Jun-06 11:00:00 86.6 386 504 854 0 0 0
22-Jun-06 12:00:00 86.8 384 509 854 0 0 0
22-Jun-06 13:00:00 86.8 385 509 853 0 0 0
22-Jun-06 14:00:00 86.9 383 523 852 0 0 0
22-Jun-06 15:00:00 86.9 385 512 854 0 0 0
22-Jun-06 16:00:00 87.0 382 507 852 0 0 0
22-Jun-06 17:00:00 87.3 386 509 852 0 0 0
22-Jun-06 18:00:00 87.4 383 508 852 0 0 0
22-Jun-06 19:00:00 87.5 385 489 850 0 0 0
22-Jun-06 20:00:00 87.6 385 512 851 0 0 0
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Expected CR-1&2 Derates w/o Modular Cooling Towers
MCT Aux Power =|1,969
Totals
Unit Loads (MW) 26,338 414 25,924
Inlet Total Expected Gross
Temp. Derate w/o Modular |Actual Derate Avoided
Date & Time (deg F) CR 1 CR2 CR3 [Towers (MW) (MW) Derate (MW)

22-Jun-06 21:00:00 87.8 377 503 852 0 0 0
22-Jun-06 22:00:00 87.8 377 507 851 0 0 0
22-Jun-06 23:00:00 87.9 254 498 848 0 0 0
23-Jun-06 00:00:00 88.0 230 508 849 0 0 0
23-Jun-06 01:00:00 88.0 229 502 851 0 0 0
23-Jun-06 02:00:00 87.9 226 452 850 0 0 0
23-Jun-06 03:00:00 87.7 2271 251 851 0 0 0
23-Jun-06 04:00:00 87.3 227 142 851 0 0 0
23-Jun-06 05:00:00 87.3 227 142 851 0 0 0
23-Jun-06 06:00:00 87.3 227 168 852 0 0 0
23-Jun-06 07:00:00 87.4 225 180 852 0 0 0
23-Jun-06 08:00:00 87.4 333 263 850 0 0 0
23-Jun-06 09:00:00 87.4 381 448 850 0 0 0
23-Jun-06 10:00:00 87.4 384 505 853 0 0 0
23-Jun-06 11:00:00 87.5 369 510 854 0 0 0
23-Jun-06 12:00:00 87.3 384 505 853 2 0 2
23-Jun-06 13:00:00 87.4 385 507 853 18 0 18
23-Jun-06 14:00:00 87.5 381 512 847 34 0 34
23-Jun-06 15:00:00 87.7 385 510 852 51 0 51
23-Jun-06 16:00:00 87.7 385 510 852 51 0 51
23-Jun-06 17:00:00 88.3 388 501 851 52 0 52
23-Jun-06 18:00:00 88.5 386 497 851 44 0 44
23-Jun-06 19:00:00 88.3 385 497 850 35 0 35
23-Jun-06 20:00:00 88.0 383 500 849 26 0 26
23-Jun-06 21:00:00 87.7 363 501 850 16 0 16
23-Jun-06 22:00:00 87.8 377 498 851 0 0 0
23-Jun-06 23:00:00 87.9 382 501 851 0 0 0
24-Jun-06 00:00:00 88.1 360 495 851 0 0 0
24-Jun-06 01:00:00 88.1 337 449 850 0 0 0
24-Jun-06 02:00:00 88.3 202 308 850 0 0 0
24-Jun-06 03:00:00 88.3 121 272 850 0 0 0
24-Jun-06 04:00:00 87.9 120 145 849 0 0 0
24-Jun-06 05:00:00 87.8 120 147 846 0 0 0
24-Jun-06 06:00:00 87.8 121 157 852 0 0 0
24-Jun-06 07:00:00 87.7 123 146 852 0 0 0
24-Jun-06 08:00:00 87.6 275 247 852 0 0 0
24-Jun-06 09:00:00 87.7 367 413 852 0 0 0
24-Jun-06 10:00:00 87.7 383 492 851 0 0 0
24-Jun-06 11:00:00 87.7 383 503 851 0 0 0
24-Jun-06 12:00:00 87.6 390 507 851 0 0 0
24-Jun-06 13:00:00 87.5 389 505 851 0 0 0
24-Jun-06 14:00:00 87.5 391 501 851 4 0 4
24-Jun-06 15:00:00 87.7 39 505 852 13 0 13
24-Jun-06 16:00:00 87.4 388 504 853 22 0 22
24-Jun-06 17:00:00 87.5 388 505 854 31 0 31
24-Jun-06 18:00:00 87.5 388 507 852 40 0 40
24-Jun-06 19:00:00 87.3 380 503 850 27 0 27
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Expected CR-1&2 Derates w/o Modular Cooling Towers
MCT Aux Power =|1,969
Totals
Unit Loads (MW) 26,338 414 25,924
Inlet Total Expected Gross
Temp. Derate w/o Modular |Actual Derate Avoided
Date & Time (deg F) CR 1 CR2 CR 3 |[Towers (MW) (MW) Derate (MW)

24-Jun-06 20:00:00 87.3 353 507 851 8 0 8
24-Jun-06 21:00:00 87.4 378 508 851 0 0 0
24-Jun-06 22:00:00 87.3 364 504 851 0 0 0
24-Jun-06 23:00:00 87.2 321 482 851 0 0 0
25-Jun-06 00:00:00 87.2 284 381 851 0 0 0
25-Jun-06 01:00:00 87.0 197 278 850 0 0 0
25-Jun-06 02:00:00 86.9 120 226 850 0 0 0
25-Jun-06 03:00:00 86.8 126 172 851 0 0 0
25-Jun-06 04:00:00 86.7 123 142 851 0 0 0
25-Jun-06 05:00:00 86.7 124 147 852} 0 0 0
25-Jun-06 06:00:00 86.7 136 159 850 0 0 0
25-Jun-06 07:00:00 86.6 130 150 851 0 0 0
25-Jun-06 08:00:00 86.6 219 223 852 0 0 0
25-Jun-06 09:00:00 86.6 301 301 852 0 0 0
25-Jun-06 10:00:00 86.6 378 343 853 0 0 0
25-Jun-06 11:00:00 86.6 382 509 853 0 0 0
25-Jun-06 12:00:00 86.5 383 502 853 0 0 0
25-Jun-06 13:00:00 86.4 379 503 853 0 0 0
25-Jun-06 14:00:00 86.3 387 506 853 0 0 0
25-Jun-06 15:00:00 86.5 385 511 853 0 0 0
25-Jun-06 16:00:00 86.4 384 501 854 0 0 0
25-Jun-06 17:00:00 86.5 370 510 848 0 0 0
25-Jun-06 18:00:00 86.5 292 434 853 0 0 0
25-Jun-06 19:00:00 86.5 223 310 852 0 0 0
25-Jun-06 20:00:00 86.5 240 309 852 0 0 0
25-Jun-06 21:00:00 86.4 263 328 852 0 0 0
25-Jun-06 22:00:00 86.4 282 352 852 0 0 0
25-Jun-06 23:00:00 86.4 292 373 850 0 0 0
26-Jun-06 00:00:00 86.3 176 241 851 0 0 0
26-Jun-06 01:00:00 86.2 120 140 852 0 0 0
26-Jun-06 02:00:00 86.0 121 142 851 0 0 0
26-Jun-06 03:00:00 85.9 123 146 853 0 0 0
26-Jun-06 04:00:00 85.7 127 148 854 0 0 0
26-Jun-06 05:00:00 85.7 138 159 853 0 0 0
26-Jun-06 06:00:00 85.7 183 206 852 0 0 0
26-Jun-06 07:00:00 85.7 191 209 853 0 0 0
26-Jun-06 08:00:00 85.6 211 295 855 0 0 0
26-Jun-06 09:00:00 85.7 260 390 868 0 0 0
26-Jun-06 10:00:00 85.7 288 433 852 0 0 0
26-Jun-06 11:00:00 85.7 374 489 852 0 0 0
26-Jun-06 12:00:00 85.8 339 445 854 0 0 0
26-Jun-06 13:00:00 85.8 380 509 854 0 0 0
26-Jun-06 14:00:00 85.7 384 510 855 0 0 0
26-Jun-06 15:00:00 85.7 384 506 856 0 0 0
26-Jun-06 16:00:00 85.5 382 510 853 0 0 0
26-Jun-06 17:00:00 85.4 381 508 852 0 0 0
26-Jun-06 18:00:00 85.5 320 511 855 0 0 0
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Expected CR-1&2 Derates w/o Modular Cooling Towers
MCT Aux Power ={1,969
Totals
Unit Loads (MW) 26,338 414 25,924
Inlet Total Expected Gross
Temp. Derate w/o Modular |Actual Derate Avoided
Date & Time (deg F) CR 1 CR2 CR 3 |[Towers (MW) (MW) Derate (MW)

26-Jun-06 19:00:00 85.5 305 501 855 0 0 0
26-Jun-06 20:00:00 85.6 232 352 854 0 0 0
26-Jun-06 21:00:00 85.5 307 381 854 0 0 0
26-Jun-06 22:00:00 85.5 295 361 851 0 0 0
26-Jun-06 23:00:00 85.5 259 326 850 0 0 0
27-Jun-06 00:00:00 85.6 232 263 851 0 0 0
27-Jun-06 01:00:00 85.6 222 223 851 0 0 0
27-Jun-06 02:00:00 85.3 187 191 853 0 0 0
27-Jun-06 03:00:00 84.9 162 166 853 0 0 0
27-Jun-06 04:00:00 84.7 128 142 854 0 0 0
27-Jun-06 05:00:00 84.5 130 148 854 0 0 0
27-Jun-06 06:00:00 84.5 190 215 855 0 0 0
27-Jun-06 07:00:00 84.6 242 248 855 0 0 0
27-Jun-06 08:00:00 84.6 314 329 855 0 0 0
27-Jun-06 09:00:00 84.7 336 388 854 0 0 0
27-Jun-06 10:00:00 84.9 355 417 854 0 0 0
27-Jun-06 11:00:00 85.1 386 505 857 0 0 0
27-Jun-06 12:00:00 85.4 389 509 855 0 0 0
27-Jun-06 13:00:00 85.6 393 509 854 0 0 0
27-Jun-06 14:00:00 85.8 382 459 853 0 0 0
27-Jun-06 15:00:00 86.0 251 493 853 0 0 0
27-Jun-06 16:00:00 86.0 242 496 854 0 0 0
27-Jun-06 17:00:00 86.1 219 494 853 0 0 0
27-Jun-06 18:00:00 86.1 202 494 853 0 0 0
27-Jun-06 19:00:00 86.0 208 501 853 0 0 0
27-Jun-06 20:00:00 85.9 215 500 855 0 0 0
27-Jun-06 21:00:00 85.8 241 498 854 0 0 0
27-Jun-06 22:00:00 85.7 252 498 854 0 0 0
27-Jun-06 23:00:00 85.6 253 505 853 0 0 0
28-Jun-06 00:00:00 85.6 251 298 853 0 0 0
28-Jun-06 01:00:00 85.7 126 200 852 0 0 0
28-Jun-06 02:00:00 85.9 121 177 852 0 0 0
28-Jun-06 03:00:00 86.0 120 138 851 0 0 0
28-Jun-06 04:00:00 86.0 128 143 851 0 0 0
28-Jun-06 05:00:00 86.0 130 139 853 0 0 0
28-Jun-06 06:00:00 85.9 184 141 853 0 0 0
28-Jun-06 07:00:00 86.0 231 151 853 0 0 0
28-Jun-06 08:00:00 86.0 283 360 854 0 0 0
28-Jun-06 09:00:00 86.0 351 496 853 0 0 0
28-Jun-06 10:00:00 86.1 376 502 852 0 0 0
28-Jun-06 11:00:00 86.1 383 503 853 0 0 0
28-Jun-06 12:00:00 86.3 384 500 854 0 0 0
28-Jun-06 13:00:00 86.7 384 501 853 0 0 0
28-Jun-06 14.00:00 87.3 381 506 853 0 0 0
28-Jun-06 15:00:00 87.0 382 505 853 0 0 0
28-Jun-06 16:00:00 87.1 385 504 852 0 0 0
28-Jun-06 17:00:00 87.2 381 505 855 0 0 0
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Expected CR-1&2 Derates w/o Modular Cooling Towers
MCT Aux Power ={1,969
Totals
Unit Loads (MW) ___ 26,338 414 25,924
inlet Total Expected Gross
Temp. Derate w/o Modular [Actual Derate|{ Avoided
Date & Time (deg F) CR 1 CR2 CR 3 |[Towers (MW) (MW) Derate (MW)

28-Jun-06 18:00:00 87.2 384 503 853

28-Jun-06 19:00:00 87.1 385 501 851

28-Jun-06 20:00:00 87.0 383 501 829

28-Jun-06 21:00:00 86.2 383 504 867

28-Jun-06 22:00:00 86.7 363 459 850

28-Jun-06 23:00:00 86.5 328 405 851

29-Jun-06 00:00:00 86.4 271 265 851

29-Jun-06 01:00:00 86.6 312 283 852

29-Jun-06 02:00:00 86.7 314 283 851

29-Jun-06 03:00:00 87.0 291 257 851

29-Jun-06 04:00:00 87.2 157 223 848

29-Jun-06 05:00:00 87.4 195 247 849

29-Jun-06 06:00:00 87.4 281 219 850

29-Jun-06 07:00:00 87.1 353 295 851

29-Jun-06 08:00:00 87.2 310 391 857

29-Jun-06 09:00:00 87.2 380 503 850

29-Jun-06 10:00:00 87.2 383 499 853

29-Jun-06 11:00:00 87.1 385 508 853

29-Jun-06 12:00:00 87.3 385 507 852

29-Jun-06 13:00:00 87.6 385 501 851

29-Jun-06 14:00:00 88.2 386 507 849

29-Jun-06 15:00:00 88.6 386 505 849

29-Jun-06 16:00:00 88.3 388 498 849

29-Jun-06 17:00:00 88.4 389 509 848

29-Jun-06 18:00:00 88.4 386 508 851

29-Jun-06 19:00:00 88.0 387 506 851

29-Jun-06 20:00:00 87.9 389 503 851

29-Jun-06 21:00:00 87.7 385 508 850

29-Jun-06 22:00:00 87.7 386 506 850

29-Jun-06 23:00:00 87.6 338 460 848

30-Jun-06 00:00:00 87.7 319 289 850

30-Jun-06 01:00:00 87.8 339 262 850

30-Jun-06 02:00:00 87.6 382 219 852

30-Jun-06 03:00:00 87.6 362 173 849

30-Jun-06 04:00:00 87.7 194 171 849

30-Jun-06 05:00:00 87.9 204 178 850

30-Jun-06 06:00:00 88.0 227 148 850

30-Jun-06 07:00:00 88.0 263 142 849

30-Jun-06 08:00:00 88.0 280 294 849

30-Jun-06 09:00:00 88.0 372 424 849
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30-Jun-06 10:00:00 88.0 384 504 849
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30-Jun-06 11:00:00 88.0 383 506 849 21 21
30-Jun-06 12:00:00 87.9 380 510 850 21 21
30-Jun-06 13:00:00 88.1 381 497 850 22 22
30-Jun-06 14:00:00 88.2 385 507 850 22 22
30-Jun-06 15:00:00 88.3 384 505 850 23 23
30-Jun-06 16:00:00 88.3 387 505 849 23 23
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Expected CR-1&2 Derates w/o Modular Cooling Towers
MCT Aux Power =|1,969
Totals
Unit Loads (MW) 26,338 414 25,924
Inlet Total Expected Gross
Temp. Derate w/o Modular |Actual Derate Avoided
Date & Time (deg F) CR 1 CR2 CR3 |Towers (MW) (MW) Derate (MW)
30-Jun-06 17:00:00 88.2 386 508 849 23 0 23
30-Jun-06 18:00:00 88.1 382 507 850 24 0 24
30-Jun-06 19:00:00 88.1 383 497 850 14 0 14
30-Jun-06 20:00:00 88.1 388 504 849 0 0 0
30-Jun-06 21:00:00 88.0 382 512 848 0 0 0
30-Jun-06 22:00:00 88.0 384 505 849 0 0 0
30-Jun-06 23:00:00 87.9 317 508 850 0 0 0
01-Jul-06 00:00:00 87.9 212 509 849 0 0 0
01-Jul-06 01:00:00 87.8 210 378 849 0 0 0
01-Jul-06 02:00:00 87.7 212 382 848 0 0 0
01-Jul-06 03:00:00 87.6 214 338 848 0 0 0
01-Jul-06 04:00:00 87.3 211 344 848 0 0 0
01-Jul-06 05:00:00 87.3 212 375 848 0 0 0
01-Jul-06 06:00:00 87.3 214 387 850 0 0 0
01-Jul-06 07:00:00 87.5 213 388 849 0 0 0
01-Jul-06 08:00:00 87.5 279 483 848 0 0 0
01-Jul-06 09:00:00 87.6 373 502 850 0 0 0
01-Jul-06 10:00:00 87.6 381 501 850 0 0 0
01-Jui-06 11:00:00 87.7 381 507 850 0 0 0
01-Jul-06 12:00:00 87.7 384 507 850 0 0 0
01-Jul-06 13:00:00 87.7 377 509 850 0 0 0
01-Jul-06 14:00:00 87.7 383 504 851 0 0 0
01-Jul-06 15:00:00 87.9 389 511 850 9 0 9
01-Jul-06 16:00:00 87.9 387 500 849 27 0 27
01-Jul-06 17:00:00 88.1 387 509 849 20 0 20
01-Jul-06 18:00:00 87.8 390 508 849 13 0 13
01-Jul-06 19:00:00 87.7 387 498 850 7 0 7
01-Jul-06 20:00:00 87.6 386 502 850 0 0 0
01-Jul-06 21:00:00 87.6 386 500 850 0 0 0
01-Jul-06 22:00:00 87.5 387 502 849 0 0 0
01-Jul-06 23:00:00 87.4 388 504 851 0 0 0
02-Jul-06 00:00:00 87.4 389 498 849 0 0 0
02-Jul-06 01:00:00 87.3 390 503 847 0 0 0
02-Jul-06 02:00:00 87.2 347 481 848 0 0 0
02-Jul-06 03:00:00 87.1 355 487 850 0 0 0
02-Jul-06 04:00:00 86.8 304 431 851 0 0 0
02-Jul-06 05:00:00 86.7 279 407 850 0 0 0
02-Jul-06 06:00:00 86.7 276 407 850 0 0 0
02-Jul-06 07:00:00 86.9 222 341 851 0 0 0
02-Jul-06 08:00:00 87.0 280 449 850 0 0 0
02-Jul-06 09:00:00 86.9 338 474 849 0 0 0
02-Jul-06 10:00:00 86.9 381 512 850 0 0 0
02-Jul-06 11:00:00 86.9 383 513 852 0 0 0
02-Jul-06 12:00:00 86.9 385 517 853 0 0 0
02-Jul-06 13:00:00 86.8 390 525 853 0 0 0
02-Jul-06 14:00:00 86.9 390 523 853 0 0 0
02-Jul-06 15:00:00 87.0 389 514 853 0 0 0
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Expected CR-18&2 Derates w/o Modular Cooling Towers
MCT Aux Power =|1,969
Totals
Unit Loads (MW) 26,338 414 25,924
Inlet Total Expected Gross
Temp. Derate w/o Modular |Actual Derate| Avoided
Date & Time (deg F) CR1 CR2 CR 3 [Towers (MW) (MW) Derate (MW)
02-Jul-06 16:00:00 87.2 390 516 852 0 0 0
02-Jul-06 17:00:00 87.4 388 518 852 0 0 0
02-Jul-06 18:00:00 87.3 391 515 852 0 0 0
02-Jul-06 19:00:00 87.2 389 511 852 0 0 0
02-Jul-06 20:00:00 87.1 388 482 852 0 0 0
02-Jul-06 21:00:00 87.0 384 489 852 0 0 0
02-Jul-06 22:00:00 86.8 385 481 852 0 0 0
02-Jul-06 23:00:00 86.9 298 398 850 0 0 0
03-Jul-06 00:00:00 86.7 175 258 850 0 0 0
03-Jul-06 01:00:00 86.6 132 167 851 0 0 0
03-Jul-06 02:00:00 86.5 130 149 852 0 0 0
03-Jul-06 03:00:00 86.5 139 158 851 0 0 0
03-Jul-06 04:00:00 86.4 139 159 850 0 0 0
03-Jul-06 05:00:00 86.3 148 171 850 0 0 0
03-Jul-06 06:00:00 86.1 176 205 851 0 0 0
03-Jul-06 07:00:00 86.1 123 143 852 0 0 0
03-Jul-06 08:00:00 86.2 215 229 851 0 0 0
03-Jul-06 09:00:00 86.3 289 358 850 0 0 0
03-Jul-06 10:00:00 86.3 385 492 848 0 0 0
03-Jui-06 11:00:00 86.5 388 509 848 0 0 0
03-Jul-06 12:00.00 86.5 387 507 849 0 0 0
03-Jul-06 13:00:00 86.6 386 506 850 0 0 0
03-Jul-06 14:00:00 86.7 388 506 852 0 0 0
03-Jul-06 15:00:00 87.0 389 511 853 0 0 0
03-Jul-06 16:00:00 87.5 388 504 852 0 0 0
03-Jul-06 17:00:00( 88.2 389 495 852 0 0 0
03-Jul-06 18:00:00 88.1 390 501 851 22 0 22
03-Jul-06 19:00:00 88.1 388 500 851 45 0 45
03-Jul-06 20:00:00 87.8 385 509 647 54 0 54
03-Jul-06 21:00:00 87.7 384 499 649 16 0 16
03-Jul-06 22:00:00 87.6 387 504 646 0 0 0
03-Jul-06 23:00:00 87.4 385 505 647 0 0 0
04-Jul-06 00:00:00 87.5 355 460 648 0 0 0
04-Jul-06 01:00:00 87.4 311 416 649 0 0 0
04-Jul-06 02:00:00 87.3 236 357 648 0 0 0
04-Jul-06 03:00:00 87.1 187 287 650 0 0 0
04-Jul-06 04:00:00 87.2 148 251 652 0 0 0
04-Jul-06 05:00:00 87.1 124 228 652 0 0 0
04-Jul-06 06:00:00 87.1 136 239 652 0 0 0
04-Jul-06 07:00:00 86.9 120 222 652 0 0 0
04-Jul-06 08:00:00 86.8 211 288 652 0 0 0
04-Jul-06 09:00:00 86.9 347 406 651 0 0 0
04-Jul-06 10:00:00 87.0 387 494 652 0 0 0
04-Jul-06 11:00:00 87.1 384 501 654 0 0 0
04-Jul-06 12:00:00 87.3 384 501 651 0 0 0
04-Jul-06 13:00:00 87.4 383 502 651 6 0 6
04-Jul-06 14:00:00 87.7 383 501 651 20 0 20
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Expected CR-1&2 Derates w/o Modular Cooling Towers
MCT Aux Power ={1,969
Totals
Unit Loads (MW) 26,338 414 25,924
Inlet Total Expected Gross
Temp. Derate w/o Modular [Actual Derate Avoided
Date & Time (deg F) CR 1 CR2 CR 3 |Towers (MW) (MW) Derate (MW)
04-Jui-06 15:00:00 88.0 383 503 650 34 34
04-Jui-06 16:00:00 87.9 383 503 651 49 49
04-Jul-06 17:00:00 88.0 383 500 651 63 63
04-Jul-06 18:00:00 88.2 385 497 651 77 77
04-Jul-06 19:00:00 88.4 383 499 651 68 68
04-Jul-06 20:00:00 88.3 381 500 651 46 46
04-Jul-06 21:00:00 88.2 388 495 652 24 24

04-Jul-06 22:00:00 88.1 386 500 655

04-Jul-06 23:00:00 87.9 383 503 655

05-Jui-06 00:00:00 87.9 255 487 655

05-Jul-06 01:00:00 87.9 122 391 655

05-Jul-06 02:00:00 87.9 123 253 652

05-Jul-06 03:00:00 87.9 124 152 652

05-Jul-06 04:00:00 88.6 123 151 652

05-Jul-06 05:00:00 88.2 123 151 653

05-Jul-06 06:00:00 88.2 124 168 654

05-Jul-06 07:00:00| 87.9 163 223 655

05-Jul-06 08:00:00 87.8 282 358 656

05-Jul-06 09:00:00 87.8 372 506 652

05-Jul-06 10:00:00 87.8 388 449 652

05-Jul-06 11:00:00 87.9 386 498 652

05-Jul-06 12:00:00 87.7 386 490 657

05-Jul-06 13:00:00 87.7 385 501 701

05-Jul-06 14:00:00 87.9 388 494 744

05-Jul-06 15:00:00 88.0 389 501 750

05-Jul-06 16:00:00 88.2 389 498 765

05-Jul-06 17:00:00 88.2 389 498 784

05-Jui-06 18:00:00 88.3 389 503 803

05-Jul-06 19:00:00 88.6 389 501 823

~NiW

05-Jui-06 20:00:00 88.6 387 507 843

05-Jul-06 21:00:00 88.4 390 499 849

05-Jul-06 22:00:00 88.3 390 495 850

05-Jul-06 23:00:00 88.2] 389 505 850

06-Jul-06 00:00:00 88.2 300 503 849

06-Jul-06 01:00:00 88.2 291 505 850

06-Jul-06 02:00:00 88.2 287 460 849

06-Jul-06 03:00:00 88.1 147 322 850

06-Jul-06 04:00:00 88.1 118 144 851

06-Jul-06 05:00:00 88.0 121 141 851

06-Jul-06 06:00:00 88.0 187 209 851

06-Jul-06 07:00:00 87.8 252 314 852

06-Jul-06 08:00:00 87.8 361 469 852

06-Jul-06 09:00:00 87.6 370 496 853

06-Jul-06 10:00:00 87.7 371 499 852
06-Jul-06 11:00:00 87.5 375 498 853
06-Jul-06 12:00:00 87.5 392 45 852

=== == == === = == = == = = = = == = ===l ==l [=] =l [=l =l =) =)=l l=)(=ll=l{=l =l =l (=l [=l (=l l=l =] =]
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[=ll=l{=llsil=ll=llellell=l{=l[=l (=) (===l Rt Nl Ul [=l (= (=]{=) (=l [=l =] (=l (=) =)=l =) =)= (=l {=] (=) (=i (=) (=1 0\N]

06-Jul-06 13:00:00 87.9 390 0 851
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Expected CR-1&2 Derates w/o Modular Cooling Towers

MCT Aux Power ={1,969
Totals
Unit Loads (MW) 26,338 414 25,924
Inlet Total Expected Gross
Temp. Derate w/o Modular {Actual Derate Avoided
Date & Time (deg F) CR 1 CR2 CR 3 |Towers (MW) (MW) Derate (MW)

06-Jul-06 14:00:00 87.9 385 0 852 0 0 0
06-Jul-06 15:00:00 88.0 385 0 850 0 0 0
06-Jul-06 16:00:00 88.1 385 0 851 0 0 0
06-Jul-06 17:00:00 88.0 382 0 850 0 0 0
06-Jul-06 18:00:00 88.0 383 0 852 0 0 0
06-Jul-06 19:00:00 88.1 374 0 851 0 0 0
06-Jul-06 20:00:00 88.0 383 0 852 0 0 0
06-Jul-06 21:00:00 87.7 378 1 853 0 0 0
06-Jul-06 22:00:00 87.4 249 0 854 0 0 .0
06-Jul-06 23:00:00 87.3 359 0 852 0 0 0
07-Jul-06 00:00:00 87.2 302 0 851 0 0 0
07-Jul-06 01:00:00 87.3 302 0 852 0 0 0
07-Jul-06 02:00:00 87.7 195 0 852 0 0 0
07-Jul-06 03:00:00 87.7 124 0 852 0 0 0
07-Jul-06 04:00:00 87.8 131 0 852 0 0 0
07-Jul-06 05:00:00 87.7 132 0 852 0 0 0
07-Jui-06 06:00:00 87.9 241 0 852 0 0 0
07-Jul-06 07:00:00 88.0 281 0 852 0 0 0
07-Jul-06 08:00:00 87.9 346 0 852 0 0 0
07-Jul-06 09:00:00 87.8 320 0 854 0 0 0
07-Jul-06 10:00:00 87.8 359 0 855 0 0 0
07-Jul-06 11:00:00 87.2 366 0 855 0 0 0
07-Jul-06 12:00:00 86.8 366 0 854 0 0 0
07-Jul-06 13:00:00 86.9 367 0 854 0 0 0
07-Jul-06 14:00.00 87.2 368 0 854 0 0 0
07-Jul-06 15:00:00 87.2 301 0 852 0 0 0
07-Jul-06 16:00:00 87.3 354 0 852 0 0 0
07-Jul-06 17:00:00 86.7 354 0 852 0 0 0
07-Jul-06 18:00:00 86.8 354 0 852 0 0 0
07-Jul-06 19:00:00 86.9 351 0 851 0 0 0
07-Jul-06 20:00:00 86.7 352 0 851 0 0 0
07-Jul-06 21:00:00 86.6 353 0 851 0 0 0
07-Jul-06 22:00:00 86.0 354 0 851 0 0 0
07-Jul-06 23:00:00 85.8 300 0 852 0 0 0
08-Jul-06 00:00:00 85.6 287 1 852 0 0 0
08-Jul-06 01:00:00 85.4 200 0 853 0 0 0
08-Jui-06 02:00:00 85.5 128 0 853 0 0 0
08-Jul-06 03:00:00 85.4 126 0 853 0 0 0
08-Jul-06 04:00:00 85.5 131 0 853 0 0 0
08-Jui-06 05:00:00 85.3 141 0 853 0 0 0
08-Jul-06 06:00:00 85.4 178 0 852 0 0 0
08-Jul-06 07:00:00 85.7 207 0 852 0 0 0
08-Jul-06 08:00:00 85.4 277 0 851 0 0 0
08-Jul-06 09:00:00 85.7 355 0 850 0 0 0
08-Jul-06 10:00:00 85.6 363 0 854 0 0 0
08-Jul-06 11:00:00 85.4 359 0 856 0 0 0
08-Jul-06 12:00:00 85.5 365 0 857 0 0 0
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Expected CR-1&2 Derates w/o Modular Cooling Towers

MCT Aux Power ={1,969
Totals
Unit Loads (MW) 26,338 414 25,924
Inlet Total Expected Gross
Temp. Derate w/o Modular Actual Derate| Avoided
Date & Time (deg F) CR 1 CR2 CR3 |[Towers (MW) (MW) Derate (MW)

08-Jul-06 13:00:00 85.7 363| - 0 856 0 0 0
08-Jul-06 14:00:00 85.8 303 0 854 0 0 0
08-Jul-06 15:00:00 85.8 232 0 854 0 0 0
08-Jul-06 16:00:00 85.7 354 0 853 0 0 0
08-Jul-06 17:00:00 85.7 353 0 853 0 0 0
08-Jul-06 18:00:00 85.7 353 0 854 0 0 0
08-Jul-06 19:00:00 85.7 326 0 854 0 0 0
08-Jul-06 20:00:00 85.7 351 0 854 0 0 0
08-Jul-06 21:00:00 85.7 291 0 854 0 0 0
08-Jul-06 22:00:00 85.9 281 0 854 0 0 0
08-Jul-06 23:00:00 86.0 323 0 854 0 0 0
09-Jul-06 00:00:00] 86.0 216 0 854 0 0 0
09-Jul-06 01:00:00 85.9 171 0 854 0 0 0
09-Jul-06 02:00:00 85.8 122 0 853 0 0 0
09-Jul-06 03:00:00 85.7 122 0 853 0 0 0
09-Jul-06 04:00:00 85.5 129 0 853 0 0 0
09-Jul-06 05:00:00 85.4 137 ¢] 852 0 0 0
09-Jul-06 06:00:00 85.4 142 0 852 0 0 0
09-Jul-06 07:00:00 85.3 145 0 853 0 0 0
09-Jui-06 08:00:00 85.3 253 0 853 0 0 Q
09-Jui-06 09:00:00 85.3 282 0 855 0 0 0
09-Jul-06 10:00:00 85.2 264 0 855 0 0 0
09-Jul-06 11:00:00 85.1 343 27 854 0 0 0
09-Jul-06 12:00:00 85.0 365 60 855 0 0 0
09-Jul-06 13:00:00 85.0 362 114 856 0 0 0
09-Jul-06 14:00:00 85.1 374 167 856 0 0 0
09-Jul-06 15:00:00 85.2 384 263 855 0 0 0
09-Jul-06 16:00:00 85.4 387 346 855 0 0 0
09-Jul-06 17:00:00 85.7 384 399 854 0 0 0
09-Jul-06 18:00:00 85.8 386 403 854 0 0 0
09-Jui-06 19:00:00 85.9 385 411 856 0 0 0
09-Jul-06 20:00:00 85.6 386 414 854 0 0 0
09-Jul-06 21:00:00 85.6 388 510 853 0 0 0
09-Jul-06 22:00:00 85.9 385 506 853 0 0 0
09-Jul-06 23:00:00 85.9 222 509 852 0 0 0
10-Jul-06 00:00:00 85.9 165 466 853 0 0 0
10-Jui-06 01:00:00 85.8 121 365 853 0 0 0
10-Jul-06 02:00:00 85.8 126 289 853 0 0 0
10-Jul-06 03:00:00 85.7 126 240 852 0 0 0
10-Jul-06 04:00:00 85.7 123 195 852 0 0 0
10-Jul-06 05:00:00 85.5 133 205 853 0 0 0
10-Jul-06 06:00:00 85.5 197 267 853 0 0 0
10-Jui-06 07:00:00 85.4 219 351 854 0 0 0
10-Jul-06 08:00:00 85.4 318 420 855 0 0 0
10-Jul-06 09:00:00 85.4 360 484 856 0 0 0
10-Jul-06 10:00:00 85.3 386 476 856 0 0 0
10-Jul-06 11:00:00 85.4 386 507 856 0 0 0
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Expected CR-1&2 Derates w/o Modular Cooling Towers
MCT Aux Power =|1,969
Totals
Unit Loads (MW) 26,338 414 25,924
Inlet Total Expected Gross
Temp. Derate w/o Modular [Actual Derate| Avoided
Date & Time (deg F) CR 1 CR2 CR 3 |Towers (MW) (MW) Derate (MW)
10-Jul-06 12:00:00 85.3 384 506 854 0 0 0
10-Jul-06 13:00:00 85.2 380 505 857 0 0 0
10-Jul-06 14:00:00 85.3 382 508 858 0 0 0
10-Jul-06 15:00:00 85.4 384 507 857 0 0 0
10-Jul-06 16:00:00 85.5 386 506 854 0 0 0
10-Jul-06 17:00:00 85.6 385 512 854 0 0 0
10-Jul-06 18:00:00 85.6 382 512 854 0 0 0
10-Jul-06 19:00:00 85.6 383 505 855 0 0 0
10-Jul-06 20:00:00 85.6 385 511 855 0 0 0
10-Jul-06 21:00:00 85.6 382 512 855 0 0 0
10-Jul-06 22:00:00 85.5 382 511] 855 0 0 0
10-Jul-06 23:00:00 85.6 383 361 853 0 0 0
11-Jul-06 00:00:00 85.8 384 368 853 0 0 0
11-Jul-06 01:00:00 86.0 317 379 855 0 0 0
11-Jul-06 02:00:00 86.0 255 332 853 0 0 0
11-Jul-06 03:00:00 85.9 199 256 852 0 0 0
11-Jui-06 04:00:00 86.1 166 230 853 0 0 0
11-Jul-06 05:00:00 85.9 197 240 848 0 0 0
11-Jul-06 06:00:00 86.0 281 345 852 0 0 0
11-Jul-06 07:00:00 86.0 244 342 853 0 0 0
11-Jul-06 08:00:00 85.9 315 383 854 0 0 0
11-Jul-06 09:00:00 85.8 358 358 854 0 0 0
11-Jul-06 10:00:00 85.9 374 481 854 0 0 0
11-Jul-06 11:00:00 85.9 387 507 856 0 0 0
11-Jul-06 12:00:00 85.9 386 518 856 0 0 0
11-Jul-06 13:00:00 86.0 389 520 855 0 0 0
11-Jul-06 14:00:00 86.2 391 514 855 0 0 0
11-Jul-06 15:00:00 86.4 386 513 854 0 0 0
11-Jul-06 16:00:00 86.5 386 512 854 0 0 0
11-Jul-06 17:00:00 86.5 390 508 854 0 0 0
11-Jul-06 18:00:00 86.2 390 514 855 0 0 0
11-Jul-06 19:00:00 86.1 389 514 855 0 0 0
11-Jul-06 20:00:00 86.0 389 512 855 0 0 0
11-Jul-06 21:00:00 85.9 390 512 855 0 0 0
11-Jul-06 22:00:00 86.0 391 515 854 0 0 0
11-Jul-06 23:00:00 86.1 242 476 852 0 0 0
12-Jul-06 00:00:00 86.1 222 386 852 0 0 0
12-Jul-06 01:00:00 86.0 124 200 856 0 0 0
12-Jul-06 02:00:00 86.0 126 143 859 0 0 0
12-Jul-06 03:00:00 86.0 126 143 856 0 0 0
12-Jul-06 04:00:00 86.0 126 149 853 0 0 0
12-Jui-06 05:00:00 85.8 126 169 851 0 0 0
12-Jul-06 06:00:00 85.8 154 231 853 0 0 0
12-Jul-06 07:00:00 85.6 189 324 853 0 0 0
12-Jul-06 08:00:00 86.0 314 380 853 0 0 0
12-Jul-06 09:00:00 86.0 386 493 853 0 0 0
12-Jul-06 10:00:00 85.9 388 513 853 0 0 0
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Expected CR-1&2 Derates w/o Modular Cooling Towers
MCT Aux Power =/1,969
Totals

Unit Loads (MW) 26,338 414 25,924
Inlet Total Expected Gross
Temp. Derate w/o Modular |Actual Derate| Avoided

Date & Time deg F) CR 1 CR2 CR 3 |Towers (MW) (MW) Derate (MW)

12-Jul-06 11:00:00 86.0 388 512 853

12-Jul-06 12:00:00 86.0 387 508 853

12-Jul-06 13:00:00 86.1 389 508 854

12-Jul-06 14:00:00 86.1 389 512 854

12-Jul-06 15:00:00 86.2 388 512 854

12-Jul-06 16:00:00 86.2 385 509 854

12-Jul-06 17:00:00 86.0 389 504 855

12-Jul-06 18:00:00 85.8 381 513 855

12-Jul-06 19:00:00 85.8 385 509 855

12-Jul-06 20:00:00 85.9 386 510 845

12-Jul-06 21:00:00 85.7 378 486 855

12-Jul-06 22:00:00 85.8 313 480 853

12-Jul-06 23:00:00 85.8 378 485 854

13-Jul-06 00:00:00 85.8 373 353 852

13-Jul-06 01:00:00 85.8 260 231 851

13-Jul-06 02:00:00 85.6 255 140 852

13-Jul-06 03:00:00 85.5 217 142 854

13-Jul-06 04:00:00 85.5 167 143 854

13-Jul-06 05:00:00 854 175 151 854

13-Jul-06 06:00:00 85.4 256 243 853

13-Jul-06 07:00:00 85.4 221 223 853

13-Jul-06 08:00:00 85.3 224 225 853

13-Jul-06 09:00:00 85.5 356 383 853

13-Jul-06 10:00:00 85.4 294 415 854

13-Jul-06 11:00:00 854 379 486 853

13-Jul-06 12:00:00 85.5 384 492 8565

13-Jul-06 13:00:00 85.8 384 519 855

13-Jul-06 14:00:00 85.5 384 514 855

13-Jul-06 15:00:00 85.7 385 508 852

13-Jul-06 16:00:00 85.9 385 429 848

13-Jul-06 17:00:00 86.0 385 494 854

13-Jul-06 18:00:00 85.8 384 509 854

13-Jul-06 19:00:00 85.6 382 513 855

13-Jul-06 20:00:00 85.6 384 488 856

13-Jul-06 21:00:00 85.6 379 488 854

13-Jul-06 22:00:00 85.7 362] 465 854

13-Jul-06 23:00:00 85.8 297 399 853

14-Jul-06 00:00:00 85.9 279 224 853

14-Jul-06 01:00:00 84.7 170 142 852

14-Jul-06 02:00:00 84.6 130 144 851

14-Jul-06 03:00:00 84.3 136 160 852

14-Jul-06 04:00:00 84.3 127 151 851

14-Jul-06 05:00:00 84.3 130 152 852

14-Jul-06 06:00:00 84.6 150 172 852

14-Jul-06 07:00:00 84.8| 218 235 852

14-Jul-06 08:00:00 85.9 317 322 852

QIOI0[Q|0O|O[OI0|0|0|I0|0|Q|0|0QI0[O[|0O|0]|0|0|0I0|0O]|O|0|0|0|0|0|O 0|00 0IC|0|0|O|0|0[0O|0|0|0|0 |0
=== {=]{= =1 [= == ===l [= == === [= =] (=1 (= =1 (= (=)=l (=) =l{=l{=} (=) (=] [= =l (=]{=] [=){=] =)=l (el =] {=) (=] l=] (=] (=]
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14-Jul-06 09:00:00 85.8 359 396 852
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Expected CR-1&2 Derates w/o Modular Cooling Towers

MCT Aux Power =/1,969
Totals
Unit Loads (MW) 26,338 414 25,924
Intet Total Expected Gross
Temp. Derate w/o Modular |Actual Derate| Avoided
Date & Time (deg F) CR1 CR2 CR 3 [Towers (MW) (MW) Derate (MW)

14-Jul-06 10:00:00 86.0 380 487 854 0 0 0
14-Jul-06 11:00:00 86.0 388 517 854 0 0 0
14-Jul-06 12:00:00 86.1 387 509 854 0 0 0
14-Jul-06 13:00:00 86.1 388 508 853 0 0 0
14-Jul-06 14:00:00 86.4 388 508 854 0 0 0
14-Jul-06 15:00:00 86.8 389 513 854 0 0 0
14-Jul-06 16:00:00 86.6 390 508 853 0 0 0
14-Jul-06 17:00:00 86.6 391 514 854 0 0 0
14-Jui-06 18:00:00 86.4 388 510 855 0 0 0
14-Jul-06 19:00:00 86.2 391 508 855 0 0 0
14-Jul-06 20:00:00 86.3 388 515 855 0 0 0
14-Jul-06 21:00:00 86.4 390 512 853 0 0 0
14-Jul-06 22:00:00 86.3 390 516 853 0 0 0
14-Jul-06 23:00:00 86.2 388 5086 854 0 0 0
15-Jul-06 00:00:00 86.1 389 511 854 0 0 0
15-Jul-06 01:00:00 86.2 388 512 854 0 0 0
15-Jul-06 02:00:00 86.3 388 517 853 0 0 0
15-Jul-06 03:00:00 86.3 283 398 853 0 0 0
15-Jul-06 04:00:00 86.3 219 218 853 0 0 0
15-Jul-06 05:00:00 86.4 145 143 852 0 0 0
15-Jul-06 06:00:00 86.5 145 141 851 0 0 0
15-Jul-06 07:00:00 86.5 123 139 851 0 0 0
15-Jul-06 08:00:00 86.5 231 242 851 0 0 0
15-Jul-06 09:00:00 86.6 322 362 852 0 0 0
15-Jul-06 10:00:00 86.6 368 487 853 0 0 0
15-Jul-06 11:00:00 86.7 382 497 854 0 0 0
15-Jul-06 12:00:00 86.8 388 506 853 0 0 0
15-Jui-06 13:00:00 87.1 388 514 852 0 0 0
15-Jul-06 14:00:00 87.4 389 511 851 0 0 0
15-Jul-06 15:00:00 88.0 387 513 852 0 0 0
15-Jul-06 16:00:00 87.8 388 514 852 0 0 0
15-Jul-06 17:00:00 87.7 387 517 852 0 0 0
15-Jul-06 18:00:00 87.6 387 516 852 0 0 0
15-Jul-06 19:00:00 874 388 514 851 0 0 0
15-Jui-06 20:00:00 87.5 387 516 852 0 0 0
15-Jul-06 21:00:00 87.2 387 512 852 0 0 0
15-Jul-06 22:00:00 87.2 388 515 851 0 0 0
15-Jul-06 23:00:00 87.0 391 514 850 0 0 0
16-Jul-06 00:00:00 87.0 388 515 852 0 0 0
16-Jul-06 01:00:00 86.9 388 489 851 0 0 0
16-Jul-06 02:00:00 86.9 298 430 850 0 0 0
16-Jul-06 03:00:00 86.9 173 150 851 0 0 0
16-Jul-06 04:00:00 86.9 120 140 851 0 0 0
16-Jul-06 05:00:00 87.2 129 147 852 0 0 0
16-Jui-06 06:00:00 87.3 123 143 854 0 0 0
16-Jul-06 07:00:00 87.4 120 143 854 0 0 0
16-Jul-06 08:00:00 87.6 218 237 849 0 0 0
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Expected CR-1&2 Derates w/o Modular Cooling Towers

MCT Aux Power =(1,969
Totals
Unit Loads (MW) _ 26,338 414 25,924
Inlet Total Expected Gross
Temp. Derate w/o Modular |Actual Derate| Avoided
Date & Time (deg F) CR 1 CR2 CR 3 [Towers (MW) (MW) Derate (MW)

16-Jul-06 09:00:00 87.7 261 374 849 0 0 0
16-Jul-06 10:00:00 87.8 361 470 850 0 0 0
16-Jul-06 11:00:00 87.8 384 520 851 12 0 12
16-Jui-06 12:00:00 87.9 383 509 847 23 0 23
16-Jul-06 13:00:00 88.1 383 510 850 34 0 34
16-Jul-06 14:00:00 88.4 384 509 849 45 0 45
16-Jul-06 15:00:00 88.7 382 512 849 56 0 56
16-Jul-06 16:00:00 89.5 384 508 848 67 0 67
16-Jul-06 17:00:00 89.4 384 508 848 81 0 81
16-Jul-06 18:00:00 89.2 382 512 848 89 0 89
16-Jul-06 19:00:00 88.6 384 506 848 80 0 80
16-Jul-06 20:00:00 88.8 383 512 848 38 0 38
16-Jui-06 21:00:00 88.7 382 507 862 0 0 0
16-Jui-06 22:00:00 88.5 386 508 850 0 0 0
16-Jul-06 23:00:00 88.2 296 508 849 0 0 0
17-Jui-06 00:00:00 87.9 228 429 848 0 0 0
17-Jul-06 01:00:00 87.8 210 369 847 0 0 0
17-Jul-06 02:00:00 87.7 181 325 848 0 0 0
17-Jul-06 03:00:00 87.7 128 237 849 0 0 0
17-Jul-06 04:00:00 87.7 147 185 849 0 0 0
17-Jul-06 05:00:00 87.7 196 237 847 0 0 0
17-Jui-06 06:00:00 87.6 254 328 847 0 0 0
17-Jul-06 07:00:00 87.6 220 251 848 0 0 0
17-Jul-06 08:00:00 87.7 235 243 849 0 0 0
17-Jul-06 09:00:00 87.8 324 484 849 0 0 0
17-Jul-06 10:00:00 87.8 312 487 850 0 0 0
17-Jul-06 11:00:00 87.9 316 512 851 0 0 0
17-Jul-06 12:00:00 87.9 312 508 851 0 0 0
17-Jul-06 13:00:00 87.9 312 512 851 0 0 0
17-Jul-06 14:00:00 87.9 312 510 851 2 0 2
17-Jul-06 15:00:00 88.0 346 513 849 29 0 29
17-Jul-06 16:00:00 88.2 386 510 850 55 0 55
17-Jul-06 17:00:00 88.5 372 519 850 82 0 82
17-Jul-06 18:00:00 88.8 381 516 851 56 0 56
17-Jul-06 19:00:00 88.5 384 513 851 21 0 21
17-Jul-06 20:00:00 88.5 383 515 849 0 0 0
17-Jul-06 21:00:00 88.2 385 511 851 0 0 0
17-Jul-06 22:00:00 88.1 361 517 850 0 0 0
17-Jul-06 23:00:00 88.0 375 397 850 0 0 0
18-Jul-06 00:00:00 88.0 289 490 851 0 0 0
18-Jul-06 01:00:00 87.8 180 404 850 0 0 0
18-Jul-06 02:00:00 87.8 139 386 848 0 0 0
18-Jul-06 03:00:00 87.7 120 219 847 0 0 0
18-Jul-06 04:00:00 87.8 119 213 847 0 0 0
18-Jul-06 05:00:00 87.7 121 217 847 0 0 0
18-Jul-06 06:00:00 87.6 126 286 848 0 0 0
18-Jul-06 07:00:00 87.3 146 276 846 0 0 0
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Expected CR-1&2 Derates w/o Modular Cooling Towers
MCT Aux Power =|1,969
Totals
Unit Loads (MW) 26,338 414 25,924
Inlet Total Expected Gross
Temp. Derate w/o Modular |Actual Derate | Avoided
Date & Time (deg F) CR 1 CR2 CR 3 |Towers (MW) (MW) Derate (MW)
18-Jul-06 08:00:00 87.3 125 231 850 0 0 0
18-Jul-06 09:00:00 87.5 237 411 849 0 0 0
18-Jul-06 10:00:00 87.6 367 488 850 0 0 0
18-Jul-06 11:00:00 87.7 378 501 851 0 0 0
18-Jul-06 12:00:00 87.8 387 500 852 0 0 0
18-Jul-06 13:00:00 87.8 385 504 852 19 0 19
18-Jul-06 14:00:00 88.1 382 505 852 50 0 50
18-Jui-06 15:00:00 88.3 3N 504 850 81 0 81
18-Jul-06 16:00:00 88.7 391 513 849 111 0 111
18-Jul-06 17:00:00 89.2 382 507 848 142 0 142
18-Jul-06 18:00:00 89.3 384 512 848 173 0 173
18-Jul-06 19:00:00 89.5 383 509 848 159 0 159
18-Jul-06 20:00:00 89.7 384 504 847 125 0 125
18-Jui-06 21:00:00 89.4 382 514 847 96 0 96
18-Jul-06 22:00:00 89.2 325 513 847 70 0 70
18-Jul-06 23:00:00 88.9 380 419 848 47 0 47
19-Jul-06 00:00:00 88.8 344 364 845 0 0 0
19-Jul-06 01:00:00 88.8 355 288 844 0 0 0
19-Jul-06 02:00:00 88.7 284 139 844 0 0 0
19-Jul-06 03:00:00 88.6 190 141 844 0 0 0
19-Jul-06 04:00:00 88.5 122 141 847 0 0 0
19-Jul-06 05:00:00 88.6 131 151 846 0 0 0
19-Jul-06 06:00:00 88.6 167 189 846 0 0 0
19-Jul-06 07:00:00 88.5 152 207 847 0 0 0
19-Jul-06 08:00:00 88.5 122 282 848 0 0 0
19-Jul-06 09:00:00 88.4 305 413 848 0 0 0
19-Jul-06 10:00:00 88.6 383 491 848 25 0 25
19-Jul-06 11:00:00 88.7 389 504 848 90 0 90
19-Jul-06 12:00:00 88.9 389 508 847 115 0 115
19-Jul-06 13:00:00 88.9 389 501 848 139 0 139
19-Jul-06 14:00:00 89.0 39N 501 848 164 0 164
19-Jul-06 15:00:00 89.1 389 504 847 189 0 189
19-Jul-06 16:00:00 89.4 383 503 847 213 0 213
19-Jul-06 17:00:00 89.8 387 498 846 238 0 238
19-Jul-06 18:00:00 90.1 388 503 844 263 0 263
19-Jul-06 19:00:00 89.8 384 506 844 247 0 247
19-Jul-06 20:00:00 90.3 382 520 845 219 0 219
19-Jul-06 21:00:00 90.2 385 502 845 192 0 192
19-Jul-06 22:00:00 90.1 383 504 845 167 0 167
19-Jul-06 23:00:00 90.1 384 444 844 136 0 136
20-Jul-06 00:00:00 90.0 373 381 824 48 0 48
20-Jul-06 01:00:00 89.9 280 283 845 0 0 0
20-Jui-06 02:00:00 89.8 137 139 844 0 0 0
20-Jul-06 03:00:00 89.8 131 147 844 0 0 0
20-Jui-06 04:00:00 89.7 122 143 843 0 0 0
20-Jul-06 05:00:00 89.7 127 146 843 0 0 0
20-Jul-06 06:00:00 89.5 153 169 845 0 0 0
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Expected CR-1&2 Derates w/o Modular Cooling Towers

MCT Aux Power =(1,969
Totals
Unit Loads (MW) 26,338 414 25,924
Iniet Total Expected Gross
Temp. Derate w/o Modular |Actual Derate Avoided
Date & Time deg F) CR1 CR2 CR 3 |Towers (MW) (MW) Derate (MW)

20-Jul-06 07:00:00 89.5 123 148 845 0 0 0
20-Jul-06 08:00:00 89.4 134 229 845 0 0 0
20-Jul-06 09:00:00 89.3 291 382 843 0 0 0
20-Jul-06 10:00:00 89.2 384 496 843 26 0 26
20-Jul-06 11:00:00 89.3 388 504 844 173 0 173
20-Jul-06 12:00:00 89.6 387 502 845 183 0 183
20-Jul-06 13:00:00 89.9 386 505 846 193 0 193
20-Jul-06 14:00:00 90.1 386 506 848 206 0 206
20-Jul-06 15:00:00 90.3 388 506 846 212 0 212
20-Jul-06 16:00:00 90.6 388 506 844 222 0 222
20-Jui-06 17:00:00 90.5 340 492 843 241 104 138
20-Jul-06 18:00:00 90.7 333 452 843 251 104 148
20-Jul-06 19:00:00 90.6 364 495 844 268 104 164
20-Jul-06 20:00:00 90.7 361 484 845 255 104 152
20-Jui-06 21:00:00 90.5 377 508 844 235 0 235
20-Jul-06 22:00:00 90.5 378 506 844 215 0 215
20-Jul-06 23:00:00 90.3 376 509 842 195 0 195
21-Jul-06 00:00:00 90.2 378 512 844 176 0 176
21-Jul-06 01:00:00 90.3 296 403 842 138 0 138
21-Jul-06 02:00:00 90.1 214 212 842 0 0 0
21-Jul-06 03:00:00 90.0 121 142 844 0 0 0
21-Jul-06 04:00:00 89.8 121 141 844 0 0 0
21-Jul-06 05:00:00 89.8 121 143 845 0 0 0
21-Jul-06 06:00:00 89.7 168 194 844 0 0 0
21-Jul-06 07:00:00 89.6 221 191 844 0 0 0
21-Jul-06 08:00:00 89.5 366 352 847 0 0 0
21-Jul-06 09:00:00 89.4 387 429 847 60 0 60
21-Jul-06 10:00:00 89.3 387 512 846 154 0 154
21-Jul-06 11:00:00 89.2 388 501 847 172 0 172
21-Jul-06 12:00:00 89.1 388 504 848 185 0 185
21-Jul-06 13:00:00 89.3 388 502 848 197 0 197
21-Jul-06 14:00:00 89.4 387 502 848 209 0 209
21-Jul-06 15:00:00 89.6 388 510 848 222 0 222
21-Jul-06 16:00:00 89.8 387 507 845 234 0 234
21-Jul-06 17:00:00 89.9 389 500 847 246 0 246
21-Jul-06 18:00:00 89.9 391 503 848 259 0 259
21-Jul-06 19:00:00 90.1 384 503 847 238 0 238
21-Jul-06 20:00:00 90.2 387 502 846 215 0 215
21-Jui-06 21:00:00 90.0 387 506 847 192 0 192
21-Jul-06 22:00:00 90.0 388 502 846 174 0 174
21-Jul-06 23:00:00 89.8 385 505 846 163 0 163
22-Jul-06 00:00:00 89.7 388 510 845 135 0 135
22-Jul-06 01:00:00 89.6 314 338 846 79 0 79
22-Jul-06 02:00:00 89.6 218 246 843 0 0 0
22-Jul-06 03:00:00 89.4 131 200 845 0 0 0
22-Jul-06 04:00:00 89.4 130 201 845 0 0 0
22-Jul-06 05:00:00 89.3 125 200 845 0 0 0
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Expected CR-1&2 Derates w/o Modular Cooling Towers

=.Q=_T___$_j==1
MCT Aux Power ={1,969

Totals
Unit Loads (MW) 26,338 414 25,924
Inlet Total Expected Gross
Temp. Derate w/o Modular |Actual Derate| Avoided
Date & Time (deg F) CR 1 CR2 CR 3 [Towers (MW) (MW) Derate (MW)

22-Jul-06 06:00:00 89.2 176 200 844 0 0 0
22-Jul-06 07:00:00 89.2 125 201 844 0 0 0
22-Jul-06 08:00:00 89.2 222 223 845 0 0 0
22-Jul-06 09:00:00 89.2 330 381 846 0 0 0
22-Jul-06 10:00:00 89.1 327 427 847 89 0 89
22-Jul-06 11:00:00 89.0 383 511 850 100 0 100
22-Jul-06 12:00:00 88.9 384 503 848 112 0 112
22-Jul-06 13:00:00 88.8 387 503 849 124 0 124
22-Jul-06 14:00:00 88.9 386 504 848 136 0 136
22-Jul-06 15:00:00 89.0 384 508 851 148 0 148
22-Jul-06 16:00:00 89.3 384 505 850 160 0 160
22-Jul-06 17:00:00 89.4 385 498 850 172 0 172
22-Jul-06 18:00:00 89.4 387 511 850 177 0 177
22-Jul-06 19:00:00 89.5 386 510 849 170 0 170
22-Jul-06 20:00:00 89.6 386 500 848 164 0 164
22-Jul-06 21:00:00 89.8 385 504 847 157 0 157
22-Jul-06 22:00:00 90.0 386 512 847 172 0 172
22-Jul-06 23:00:00 89.8 386 505 848 188 0 188
23-Jul-06 00:00:00 89.7 351 487 846 146 0 146
23-Jul-06 01:00:00 89.6 220 297 848 1 0 1
23-Juil-06 02:00:00 89.4 159 302 846 0 0 0
23-Jul-06 03:00:00 89.4 137 201 844 0 0 0
23-Jul-06 04:00:00 89.5 129 200 846 0 0 0
23-Jul-06 05:00:00 89.4 170 201 845 0 0 0
23-Jul-06 06:00:00 89.3 191 200 846 0 0 0
23-Jul-06 07:00:00 89.2 164 200 847 0 0 0
23-Jul-06 08:00:00 89.1 241 248 848 0 0 0
23-Jul-06 09:00:00 89.2 375 425 849 0 0 0
23-Jul-06 10:00:00 89.1 383 501 847 117 0 117
23-Jul-06 11:00:00 89.0 384 503 848 129 0 129
23-Jul-06 12:00:00 89.0 383 501 849 141 0 141
23-Jul-06 13:00:00 89.0 385 501 850 153 0 153
23-Jul-06 14:00:00 89.0 386 505 850 165 0 165
23-Jul-06 15:00:00 89.2 386 500 849 177 0 177
23-Jul-06 16:00:00 89.4 386 502 847 189 0 189
23-Jul-06 17:00:00 89.5 386 502 848 201 0 201
23-Jul-06 18:00:00 89.5 385 502 848 187 0 187
23-Jul-06 19:00:00 89.5 386 499 847 155 0 155
23-Jul-06 20:00:00 89.2 385 503 848 123 0 123
23-Jul-06 21:00:00 89.1 386 503 835 102 0 102
23-Jul-06 22:00:00 89.0 369 464 845 84 0 84
23-Jul-06 23:00:00 88.9 370 479 847 33 0 33
24-Jul-06 00:00:00 88.9 374 316 848 47 0 47
24-Jul-06 01:00:00 88.7 330 229 847 0 0 0
24-Jul-06 02:00:00 88.5 195 231 847 0 0 0
24-Jul-06 03:00:00 88.4 180 230 848 0 0 0
24-Jul-06 04:00:00 88.5 168 230 847 0 0 0
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Expected CR-1&2 Derates w/o Modular Cooling Towers

MCT Aux Power =|1,969
Totals
Unit Loads (MW) 26,338 414 25,924
Inlet Total Expected Gross
Temp. Derate w/o Modular |Actual Derate Avoided
Date & Time (deg F) CR 1 CR2 CR 3 |[Towers (MW) (MW) Derate (MW)

24-Jul-06 05:00:00 88.3 145 231 847 0 0 0
24-Jul-06 06:00:00 88.3 174 231 846 0 0 0
24-Jul-06 07:00:00 88.3 120 240 847 0 0 0
24-Jul-06 08:00:00 88.4 203 405 847 0 0 0
24-Jul-06 09:00:00 88.5 201 505 847 0 0 0
24-Jul-06 10:00:00 88.4 202 505 847 0 0 0
24-Jui-06 11:00:00 88.3 339 494 850 0 0 0
24-Jul-06 12:00:00 88.3 384 509 851 15 0 15
24-Jul-06 13:00:00 88.3 382 504 851 35 0 35
24-Jul-06 14:00:00 88.5 382 508 850 54 0 54
24-Jul-06 15:00:00 88.5 383 504 852 73 0 73
24-Jul-06 16:00:00 88.6 383 508 852 92 0 92
24-Jul-06 17:00:00 88.8 381 501 850 112 0 112
24-Jul-06 18:00:00 88.9 384 513 849 131 0 131
24-Jul-06 19:00:00 88.9 382 505 849 131 0 131
24-Jul-06 20:00:00 88.9 386 503 848 94 0 94
24-Jul-06 21:00:00 88.8 383 507 848 56 0 56
24-Jul-06 22:00:00 88.8 383 364 848 23 0 23
24-Jul-06 23:00:00 89.1 313 218 848 0 0 0
25-Jul-06 00:00:00 89.2 285 222 848 0 0 0
25-Jul-06 01:00:00 89.2 322 217 849 0 0 0
25-Jul-06 02:00:00 89.0 279 206 848 0 0 0
25-Jul-06 03:00:00 88.9 208 200 848 0 0 0
25-Jul-06 04:00:00 88.9 142 201 848 0 0 0
25-Jul-06 05:00:00 88.9 131 200 848 0 0 0
25-Jul-06 06:00:00 88.7 227 197 848 0 0 0
25-Jul-06 07:00:00 88.4 285 278 849 0 0 0
25-Jul-06 08:00:00 88.2 374 365 849 0 0 0
25-Jul-06 09:00:00 88.3 382 436 849 0 0 0
25-Jul-06 10:00:00 88.3 386 506 849 14 0 14
25-Jul-06 11:00:00 88.3 384 506 849 67 0 67
25-Jul-06 12:00:00 88.3 382 508 849 90 0 90
25-Jul-06 13:00:00 88.6 387 514 849 105 0 105
25-Jul-06 14:00:00 88.8 384 512 850 121 0 121
25-Jul-06 15:00:00 88.9 385 511 850 137 0 137
25-Jul-06 16:00:00 89.2 387 513 852 152 0 152
25-Jul-06 17:00:00 89.2 386 508 848 168 0 168
25-Jul-06 18:00:00 89.3 387 514 848 183 0 183
25-Jul-06 19:00:00 89.4 385 502 847 199 0 199
25-Jul-06 20:00:00 89.3 386 504 847 168 0 168
25-Jul-06 21:00:00 89.1 386 510 848 127 0 127
25-Jul-06 22:00:00 88.9 382 512 848 87 0 87
25-Jul-06 23:00:00 88.7 361 512 848 54 0 54
26-Jul-06 00:00:00 88.7 223 511 848 15 0 15
26-Jul-06 01:00:00 88.8 218 513 848 15 0 15
26-Jul-06 02:00:00 88.9 125 518 848 15 0 15
26-Jul-06 03:00:00 88.9 122 509 848 7 0 7
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Expected CR-182 Derates w/o Modular Cooling Towers
MCT Aux Power =|1,969
Totals
Unit Loads (MW) 26,338 414 25,924
Inlet Total Expected Gross
Temp. Derate w/o Modular |Actuai Derate Avoided
Date & Time (deg F) CR 1 CR2 CR 3 [Towers (MW) (MW) Derate (MW)
26-Jul-06 04:00:00 89.0 120 512 848 0 0 0
26-Jul-06 05:00:00 89.1 120 510 847 0 0 0
26-Jul-06 06:00:00 89.0 179 490 848 0 0 0
26-Jul-06 07:00:00 88.9 196 379 849 0 0 0
26-Jul-06 08:00:00 88.8 213 458 850 57 0 57
26-Jul-06 09:00:00 88.8 204 474 849 76 0 76
26-Jul-06 10:00:00 88.8 211 520 850 97 0 97
26-Jul-06 11:00:00 88.9 211 511 851 121 0 121
26-Jul-06 12:00:00 88.9 385 422 851 0 0 0
26-Jul-06 13:00:00 88.9 387 516 851 64 0 64
26-Jul-06 14:00:00 89.1 384 516 850 58 0 58
26-Jul-06 15:00:00 89.4 389 511 849 185 0 185
26-Jul-06 16:00:00 89.4 387 514 849 184 0 184
26-Jul-06 17:00:00 89.5 388 517 848 183 0 183
26-Jul-06 18:00:00 89.5 388 525 847 182 0 182
26-Jul-06 19:00:00 89.6 386 516 848 181 0 181
26-Jul-06 20:00:00 89.5 385 505 848 180 0 180
26-Jul-06 21:00:00 89.3 385 506 848| 179 0 179
26-Jul-06 22:00:00 89.2 385 514 849 178 0 178
26-Jul-06 23:00:00 89.0 283 404 850 84 0 84
27-Jul-06 00:00:00 88.9 205 403 850 0 0 0
27-Jul-06 01:00:00 89.0 201 251 849 0 0 0
27-Jul-06 02:00:00 89.1 200 250 848 0 0 0
27-Jul-06 03:00:00 89.2 142 250 848 0 0 0
27-Jui-06 04:00:00 89.2] ° 160 253 847 0 0 0
27-Jul-06 05:00:00 89.3 155 247 846 0 0 0
27-Jul-06 06:00:00 89.2 237 248 847 0 0 0
27-Jul-06 07:00:00 89.1 280 364 848 0 0 0
27-Jul-06 08:00:00 89.1 383 398 849 0 0 0
27-Jul-06 09:00:00 89.2 383 399 849 26 0 26
27-Jul-06 10:00:00 89.1 384 408 849 47 0 47
27-Jul-06 11:00:00 89.0 384 398 849 67 0 67
27-Jul-06 12:00:00 89.2 385 407 850 88 0 88
27-Jul-06 13:00:00 89.5 382 481 851 108 0 108
27-Jul-06 14:00:00 89.3 382 502 852 129 0 129
27-Jul-06 15:00:00 89.4 382 502 846 149 0 149
27-Jul-06 16:00:00 89.3 383 502 850 170 0 170
27-Jul-06 17:00:00 89.3 380 503 849 164 0 164
27-Jul-06 18:00:00 89.4 385 502 848 150 0 150
27-Jul-06 19:00:00 89.4 383 504 847 137 0 137
27-Jul-06 20:00:00 89.5 382 506 847 123 0 123
27-Jul-06 21:00:00 89.3 382 503 847 110 0 110
27-Jul-06 22:00:00 89.2 383 505 846 96 0 96
27-Jul-06 23:00:00 89.0 237 501 847 75 0 75
28-Jul-06 00:00:00 89.0 209 295 848 0 0 0
28-Jul-06 01:00:00 89.0 137 200 848 0 0 0
28-Jul-06 02:00:00 88.9 134 199 848 0 0 0
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Expected CR-1&2 Derates w/o Modular Cooling Towers

MCT Aux Power =/1,969
Totals
Unit Loads (MW) 26,338 414 25,924
Iniet Total Expected Gross
Temp. Derate w/o Modular |Actual Derate| Avoided
Date & Time (deg F) CR 1 CR2 CR 3 |Towers (MW) (MW) Derate (MW)

28-Jul-06 03:00:00 88.8 120 200 852 0 0 0
28-Jul-06 04:00:00 88.8 121 202 852 Q Y] 0
28-Jul-06 05:00:00 88.9 126 201 848 0 0 0
28-~Jul-06 06:00:00 88.9 223 199 848 0 0 0
28-Jul-06 07:00:00 88.9 246 232 848 0 0 0
28-Jul-06 08:00:00 89.0 222 215 848 0 0 0
28-Jul-06 09:00:00 89.0 315 256 848 0 0 0
28-Jul-06 10:00:00 89.1 310 260 848 0 0 0
28-Jul-06 11:00:00 89.1 311 260 849 0 0 0
28-Jul-06 12:00:00 89.3 313 258 849 0 0 0
28-Jui-06 13:00:00 89.5 310 261 848 13 0 13
28-Jul-06 14:00:00 89.5 311 262 848 28 0 28
28-Jul-06 15:00:00 89.7 355 259 848 43 0 43
28-Jul-06 16:00:00 89.5 384 259 848 57 0 57
28-Jul-06 17:00:00 89.5 387 259 848 66 0 66
28-Jul-06 18:00:00 89.4 385 262 848 68 0 68
28-Jul-06 19:00:00 89.4 387 258 841 71 0 71
28-Jul-06 20:00:00 89.2 384 257 826 74 0 74
28-Jul-06 21:00:00 89.2 384 259 849 77 0 77
28-Jul-06 22:00:00 89.1 384 260 848 79 0 79
28-Jul-06 23:00:00 89.1 386 260 849 82 0 82
29-Jul-06 00:00:00 89.0 389 262 849 85 0 85
29-Jul-06 01:00:00 89.1 361 259 849 45 0 45
29-Jul-06 02:00:00 88.8 221 260 848 0 0 0
29-Jul-06 03:00:00 88.8 146 258 847 0 0 0
29-Jul-06 04.00:00 88.7 124 259 847 0 0 0
29-Jul-06 05:00:00 88.8 120 258 847 0 0 0
29-Jul-06 06:00:00 83.0 154 261 847 0 0 0
29-Jul-06 07:00:00 89.1 154 258 846 0 0 0
29-Jul-06 08:00:00 89.0 225 260 847 0 0 0
29-Jul-06 09:00:00 89.0 302 260 849 35 0 35
29-Jul-06 10:00:00 89.1 376 260 850 53 0 53
29-Jul-06 11:00:00 89.1 388 260 850 59 0 59
29-Jul-06 12:00:00 89.1 388 258 851 66 4] 66
29-Jul-06 13:00:00 89.2 388 259 850 72 0 72
29-Jul-06 14:00:00 89.5 387 261 851 78 0 78
29-Jul-06 15:00:00 89.7 385 260 850 85 0 85
29-Jul-06 16:00:00 89.7 387 260 850 91 0 91
29-Jul-06 17:00:00 89.6 384 260 849 98 0 98
29-Jul-06 18:00:00 89.6 388 260 848 98 0 98
29-Jul-06 19:00:00 89.6 388 260 848 96 0 96
29-Jul-06 20:00:00 89.5 388 260 848 94 0 94
29-Jul-06 21:00:00 89.4 390 261 848 92 0 92
29-Jul-06 22:00:00 89.3 386 260 845 90 0 90
29-Jul-06 23:00:00 89.2 387/ 260 851 88 0 88
30-Jul-06 00:00:00 89.1 387 262 850 86 0 86
30-Jul-06 01:00:00 89.1 383 261 849 84 0 84
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Expected CR-1&2 Derates w/o Modular Cooling Towers

MCT Aux Power =|1,969
Totals
Unit Loads (MW) 26,338 414 25,924
Inlet Total Expected Gross
Temp. Derate w/o Modular |Actual Derate Avoided
Date & Time (deg F) CR 1 CR2 CR3 |Towers (MW) (MW) Derate (MW)

30-Jul-06 02:00:00 89.1 287 262 848 21 0 21
30-Jul-06 03:00:00 88.7 198 259 848 0 0 0
30-Jul-06 04:00:00 88.6 118 260 848 0 0 0
30-Jul-06 05:00:00 89.0 125 262 848 0 0 0
30-Jul-06 06:00:00 89.0 138 260 848 0 0 0
30-Jul-06 07:00:00 89.0 136 261 847 0 0 0
30-Jul-06 08:00:00 89.1 235 259 847 0 0 0
30-Jul-06 09:00:00 89.2 365 259 847 0 0 0
30-Jul-06 10:00:00 89.2 384 260 846 24 0 24
30-Jul-06 11:00:00 89.4 383 261 845 65 0 65
30-Jul-06 12:00:00 89.5 383 259 849 67 0 67
30-Jul-06 13:00:00 89.6 382 260 850 80 0 80
30-Jul-06 14:00:00 89.8 383 258 849 81 0 81
30-Jul-06 15:00:00 90.1 381 228 848 115 0 115
30-Jul-06 16:00:00 90.3 381 359 848 150 0 150
30-Jul-06 17:00:00 90.0 385 462 849 146 0 146
30-Jul-06 18:00:00 89.7 382 471 850 143 0 143
30-Jul-06 19:00:00 89.7 382 474 851 140 0 140
30-Jul-06 20:00:00 89.4 380 477 851 136 0 136
30-Jul-06 21:00:00 89.3 384 476 851 133 0 133
30-Jul-06 22:00:00 89.2 383 481 851 129 0 129
30-Jul-06 23:00:00 89.1 374 479 851 126 0 126
31-Jul-06 00:00:00 89.0 223 471 850 122 0 122
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RESUME OF
THOMAS A. HEWSON JR.

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE
1981-Present Energy Ventures Analysis, Inc.
Principal

Responsible for power industry market studies. Provides regular power industry forecasts
of future electricity demand growth, generation mix, environmental compliance and
production cost changes for Fuelcast subscribers and individual client studies.
Completed numerous studies examining the effect of future environmental regulation and
utility deregulation on fuel prices, supplier capacity decisions (new, repower, retire),
generation/environmental technology choice, wholesale electric prices and emission
allowance values. Provided market assessments for new fuel, generation and pollution
control technologies. Directed industrial utility group examining repowering technology
options, costs and risks. Completes studies on renewable power options, costs, incentives
and price impacts. Performs assessments of electricity demand, energy conservation
potential and alternative energy charge frameworks for power consumers.

Responsible for corporate emission allowance forecasts and assessments. Provides
ongoing forecasts of emission trading market prices and fundamentals of existing Acid
Rain SO2 market, seasonal NOx market, CAIR, RGGI and individual state new source
offset markets. Assesses future market trading values for mercury and carbon dioxide.
Evaluates wide range of state legislative multi-pollutant proposals and their effect on
regional production costs, state GDP, and environmental benefits. Engaged in
developing new rules and regulations to expand existing emission allowance trading
markets to include non-traditional sources (e.g. mobile sources).

Directs technical feasibility and environmental permitting studies. Expert in electric
utility repowering technologies, fuel upgrading and environmental control technologies.
Work includes several plant specific analyses on the costs of reducing SO2 emissions
through allowance purchases, switching to lower sulfur fuels, least emission dispatching,
plant retirements, repowering and FGD scrubber retrofits for all major coal and oil fired
utility stations. Examined feasibility/costs of hazardous waste treatment/disposal for all
major industrial waste streams in Louisiana.
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1976- 1981  Energy and Environmental Analysis, Inc.
Project Manager

Responsible for environmental and regulatory analysis. Examined, for governmental and
industrial clients, the requirements and associated impacts on current industrial practices
of the Clean Water Act, Clean Air Act, Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, Toxic
Substances Control Act, Safe Drinking Water Act, Fuel Use Act, Natural Gas Act,
Natural Gas Policy Act, Surface Mining and Reclamation Act and Occupational Safety
and Health Act. Results of these policy, economic and technical analyses have been used
for Congressional hearings, EPA rulemaking, court testimony, industrial policies,
administrative hearings and permit negotiations. Developed Federal and state regulatory
compliance strategies for the Department of Energy and several industrial clients. On
behalf of several clients, he has applied for construction, NPDES, air, solid waste,
hazardous waste, water use and land use permits.

Responsible for solid waste/hazardous waste management analyses. Evaluations have
included analyses of solid waste and hazardous waste treatment/disposal options for the
fertilizer, fermentation ethanol, petrochemical, inorganic chemical, electric utility,
synthetic fuel, pulp and paper and mineral processing industries.

Publications

Mr. Hewson has presented and published several papers on the electric utility industry
and emission allowance markets. Also co-author on two papers on innovative
wastewater treatment technologies.

Educational Background
1976 B.S.E. (Civil Engineering), Princeton University.

Mr. Hewson was appointed for a 2-year term as a Member of the Alexandria
Environmental Policy Commission in 2005. He served as Commission Vice Chairman in
2006 until his term expired in January 2007.
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Resume
PATRICIA W. MERCHANT, CPA
Office of Public Counsel Phone: 850-487-8245
Room 812, 111 West Madison Street Fax:  850-488-4491
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1400 E-mail: merchant.tricia@leg.state.fl.us

Professional Experience:
March, 2005 to Present

Office of Public Counsel — Senior Legislative Analyst

In my current position, I perform financial and accounting analysis and reviews, and provide
testimony, as required, involving utility filings before the Florida Public Service Commission
(or other jurisdictions) as an advocate for the Citizens of the State of Florida.

1981 to February, 2005 - Florida Public Service Commission
2000 to February, 2005

Public Utilities Supervisor — File and Suspend Rate Case Section, Bureau of Rate Filings,
Division of Economic Regulation

In this capacity I was supervised 5 to 8 regulatory professionals. This section performed
financial, accounting, engineering and rate review and evaluation of rate proceedings for
large water and wastewater utilities, as well as electric and gas utilities regulated by the
Commission. The types of cases included file and suspend rate cases, limited proceedings,
overearning investigations, annual report reviews, service availability and tariff filings,
rulemaking, and customer complaints. The section reviewed utility filings, requested and
reviewed Commission staff audits, and generated and analyzed discovery requests. I
coordinated and prepared staff recommendations to the Commission for agenda conferences.
I reviewed the analytical work and edited the written documents of all analysts in this section
for proper regulatory theory, grammar and accuracy. I also made presentations to customer
groups at Commission staff customer meetings for the rate proceedings to which I was
assigned. We presented recommendations at agenda conferences, providing responses to
comments and questions by other parties and Commissioners. I also prepared and presented
testimony, and assisted in the preparation of cross-examination questions for depositions and
formal hearings. Additionally, I provided training in regulatory theory for new staff and
provided training on regulatory and accounting issues for other analysts at the Commission.

FLOR[BA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

Q@{%ILR T maibitNo_d
Company/

Wimess: Poctric (e W, Merchant (PWM-1)
Date: __O5 /0] 07




Docket No. 060162-E1
Resume of Patricia W. Merchant
Exhibit (PWM-1)
Page 2 of 3
1989 — 2000

Regulatory Analyst Supervisor, Accounting Section, Bureau of Economic Regulation,
Division of Water and Wastewater

I supervised 5-7 regulatory accounting analysts. This section performed the same job
activities as above specifically for the larger Commission regulated Class A and B water and

wastewater companies.

1983 - 1989
Regulatory Analyst — Accounting Bureau, Division of Water and Wastewater

As an accounting analyst, I performed the same job activities as described above for water
and wastewater companies in a non-supervisory role.

1981 — 1983

Public Utilities Auditor, Division of Auditing and Financial Analysis

As an auditor in the Tallahassee district of the Commission, I performed financial and
accounting audits of electric, gas, telephone, water and wastewater utilities under the
Commission’s jurisdiction.

Education and Professional Licenses

1981 Bachelor of Science with a major in accounting from Florida State University

1983 Received a Certified Public Accountant license in Florida

List of Cases in which Testimony was Submitted

Dockets Before the Florida Public Service Commission:

050958-EI - Petition for approval of new environmental program for cost recovery through
Environmental Cost Recovery Clause by Tampa Electric Company. (testified at hearing)

060658-EI - Petition on Behalf of Citizens of the State of Florida to require Progress Energy
Florida, Inc. to Refund Customers $143 million. (filed testimony stipulated into record)

060362-EI - Petition to Recover Natural Gas Storage Project Costs through Fuel Cost
Recovery Clause, by Florida Power & Light Company. (testified at hearing)

050045-EI - Petition for Rate Increase by Florida Power & Light Company. (filed testimony,
deposed, case settled prior to hearing)

991643-SU - Application for Increase in Wastewater Rates in Seven Springs System in Pasco
County by Aloha Utilities, Inc. (testified at hearing)
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971663-WS - Application of Florida Cities Water Company, Inc. for a limited proceeding to
recover environmental litigation costs. (all testimony and exhibits stipulated into record
without hearing)

940847-WS - Application of Ortega Utility Company for increased water and wastewater
rates. (testified at hearing)

911082-WS - Water and Wastewater Rule Revisions to Chapter 25-30, Florida
Administrative Code. (testified at hearing)

881030-WU - Investigation of Sunshine Utilities of Central Florida rates for possible over
earnings. (testified at hearing)

850151-WS - Application of Marco Island Ultilities, Inc. for increased water and wastewater
rates. (testified at hearing)

850031-WS - Application of Orange/Osceola Utilities, Inc. for increased water and
wastewater rates in Osceola County (testified at hearing)

840047-WS - Application of Poinciana Utilities, Inc. for increased water and wastewater
rates (testified at hearing)

Cases Before the Division of Administrative Hearings:

97-2485RU - Aloha Utilities, Inc., and Florida Waterworks Association, Inc., Petitioners,
vs. Public Service Commission, Respondents, and Citizens of the State of Florida, Office of
Public Counsel, Intervenors (deposed and testified at hearing)
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PEF Earnings Analysis

Adjusted for Inclusion of Modular
Cooling Towers in Base Rates
As of 12/1/2006

Cost of Capital - Per PEF

13-Month Average FPSC Adjusted % to Total
Common Equity-Mid Point 2,626,115,733 60.35%
Preferred Stock 19,963,104 0.46%
Long Term Debt 1,288,684,378 29.61%
Short Term Debt 1 0.00%
Customer Deposits 89,597,519 2.06%
Customer Dep. Inactive 409,176 0.01% -
Deferred Income Tax 311,003,361 7.15%
ITC-Equity 10,779,316 0.25%
ITC-Debt 5,249,706 0.12%
Total 351,802,294 100.00%

Range of Rate of Return on Equity: 10.75% to 12.75%

Jurisdictional
Average Rate of Return (Jurisdictional) FPSC Adjusted

Docket No. 060162-El
Adjusted ROR for PEF
Exhibit ___ (PWM-2)

Mid point

Cost

Rate

11.75%
0.0451
5.74%
0.00%
6.21%
0.00%
0.00%
11.69%
5.74%

2006 Estimated
Mod. Cooling Tower
Costs Per ECRC

Page 1 of 1

Weighted
Cost
7.09%
0.02%
1.70%
0.00%
0.13%
0.00%
0.00%
0.03%
0.01%
8.97%

Jurisdictional
OPC Adjusted ROR

Net Operating Income $371,023,261
Less: Modular Cooling Tower (MCT) Costs

O&M Expenses (2)

Depreciation Expense (2)

Property Taxes (2)
Total Expenses for MCT Costs Before Tax Effect
Tax Impact of Shifting Expenses to Base
Rates 38.58%
Total Expenses for MCT Costs Including Tax Effect
Jurisdictional Factor Net (2)
Jurisdictional Expense Adjustment
OPC Adjusted NOI

Rate Base (1) and (2) _ $4.351,802,294

Jurisdictional Factor Net (2)
Jurisdictional Rate Base Adjustment
OPC Adjusted Rate Base

Average Overall Rate of Return 8.53%

Achieved Rate of Return on Equity
Achieved Rate of Return on Equity per 2006 Surveillance Report

$4,564,195

$37,196
$3.210

$4,604,601

-$1.776,225
$2,828,376

0.94287

$2.666.791

Reduction in ROE from Absorbing Modular Cooling Costs in 2006

Notes:

$253,954
0.93753
$238.090

$368,356.470

$4.351.564,204
846%

1091%

11.00%

0.09%

(1) Source: December 31, 2006 Rate of Return Report filed with Commission staff, dated February 14, 2007

(Schedule 4 p 2 of 2).

(2) Source: Direct testimony of J. Portuondo in the ECRC Docket No. 060007-El, Forms 42-5E,

42-6E, and 42-8E, page 11 of 11, filed August 4, 20086.
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DEP 1998 PETROLEUM STORAGE SYSTEMS 62-761

2. Bulk product piping that is in contact with the soil shall have secondary
containment.

3. Remote fill piping that is in contact with the soil shall have secondary
containment.

4. The following integral piping systems are exempt from the requirements
for secondary containment:

a. Integral piping that is in contact with the soil, and that is connected to

storage tanks containing high viscosity regulated substances; and
b. Vertical fill pipes equipped with a drop tube.
Specific Authority 376.303 FS.
Law implemented 376.303 FS.
History--New 12-10-80, Amended 5-4-92, Formerly 17-761.500, Amended 9-30-98,
7-13-98.

62-761.510 Performance Standards for Category-A and Category-B
Storage Tank Systems.

(1)  General, This section provides deadlines for Category-A and Category-B
storage tank systems to meet the standards for Category-C storage tank systems in
accordance with Rule 62-761.500, F.A.C.

(a) Installation:

1. Installation shall be completed by the deadlines specified in Table UST
and Table AST. However, if installation or upgrade activities are initiated before the
deadlines, work can continue after the deadlines, provided that all work is completed
within 90 days of:

a. Contract execution; or

b. Receipt of construction approval or permits.

2 Installation is considered to have begun if:

a. All federal, state, and local approvals or permits have been obtained or

applied for to begin physical construction for installation of the system; or

b. Contractual obligations have been made for installation of the system
which cannot be canceled or modified without substantial economic loss, provided that
such obligations are pursued diligently in good faith to achieve the requirements of this
rule.

(b) By December 31, 1998:

1. All pressurized small diameter piping systems connected to dispensers
shall have shear valves or emergency shutoff vaives installed in accordance with Rule
62-761.500(4)(c), F.A.C.

2. Cathodic protection test stations shall be installed in accordance with
Rule 62-761.500(1)(f)1. and (2)(b)2. F.A.C., for cathodically protected UST or AST
systems without test stations.

Effective 7-13-98 FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
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DEP 1998 PETROLEUM STORAGE SYSTEMS 62-761

3. Fillboxes shall be color coded in accordance with Rule 62-
761.500(2)(d)1., F.A.C.

4, ASTs that have been reinstalled as USTs, and USTs that have been
reinstallad as ASTs, shall meet the requirements of Rule 62-761.500, F.A.C.

(¢)  After July 13, 1998, a closure assessment shall be perfformed in
accordance with Rule 62-761.800(4), F.A.C., befores the installation of dispenser liners,
piping sumps, or secondary containment of tanks and integral piping.

(d)  Valves meeting the requirements of Section 2-1.7 of NFPA 30A, shall be
installed by January 13, 1999 on any storage tank system located at an elevation that
produces a gravity head on the dispenser or on small diameter piping.

(e) Small diameter piping transporting reguiated substances over surface
waters of the state shall have secondary containment by December 31, 2004.

(2) Underground storage tank systems.

(a) UST Category-A single-walled tanks or underground single-walled piping
shall be considered to be protected from corrosion if the tank or piping was constructed
with corrosion resistant materials, initially installed with cathodic protection, or had
cathodic protection or internal lining installed before June 30, 1992.

(b) UST Category-B systems.

1. All tanks containing pollutants, installed or constructed at a facility after
June 30, 1992, shall have secondary containment.
2. All tanks containing hazardous substances, installed or constructed at a

facility after January 1, 1991, shall have secondary containment.
(¢)  Smail diameter integral piping in contact with the soil that is connected to
UST systems shall have secondary containment if installed after December 10, 1990.
(d) By December 31 of the appropriate year shown in Table UST below, all
storage tank systems shall meet the performance standards of Rule 62-761.500,
F.A.C., or be permanently closed in accordance with Rule 62-761.800(3), F.A.C.

Effective 7-13-98
34
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DEP 1998 PETROLEUM STORAGE SYSTEMS 62-761
TABLE UST
Year Tank or
integral Piping
Installed 1989 1992 1995 1998 2004 2009
+Before 1970 o) B ACFL D E
+1970- 1975 SBL ACF D E
+1978 - 1980 B SL ACF D E
+1981 - 09/01/84 B ACFL D E
+09/02/84 - 06/30/92 B ACFL D E
+Other* B ACFL D E
Key to Table UST

* = All systems with a capacity between 110 gallons and 550 galions, all marine
fueling facililies as defined in Section 376.031, F.S., and those systems of greater than
550 gallon capacity that use less than 1,000 gallons per month or 10,000 gallons per
year.

A=

(1)  Small diameter piping that was protected from corrosion by June 30,
1992, shall have:

(a)  For pressurized piping, line leak detectors with automatic shutoff, or flow
restriction in accordance with Rule 62-761.640(3)(d), F.A.C.; or

(b)  For suction integral piping:

1. Secondary containment in accordance with Rule 62-761.500(1)(e),
F.AC,;

2. A single check valve installed in accordance with Rule 62-
761.610(4)(a)3., F.A.C,;

3. An annual line tightness test in accordance with Rule 62-761.610(4)(a)1.,
F.A.C.; or

4, External monthly monitoring or release detection in accordance with Rule
62-761.610(4)(a)1.b., F.A.C.

(2)  Bulk product piping in contact with soil shall be upgraded with secondary
containment unless the piping is:

(8)  Constructed of corrosion resistant materials or upgraded with cathodic

protection; and

Effective 7-13-98
3s
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DEP 1998 PETROLEUM STORAGE SYSTEMS 62-761

(b) Tested on an annual basis in accordance with APl RP 1110, ASME
B831.4, or an equivalent method approved by the Depariment in accordance with Rule
62-761.850, F.A.C.

B = Vehicular fuel petroleum storage tank systems shall be upgraded with
spill containment.

C = Secondary containment in accordance with Rule 62-761.500(1)(e),
F.A.C., shall be required for the following:

(1)  Concrete storage tanks;

(2) Hazardous substance storage tank systems; and

(3)  For pollutant storage tank systems, the storage tank or smail diameter
piping not protectad from corrosion by June 30, 1992,

D= (1) Secondary containment shall be installed for small diameter piping
extending over surface waiers.

(2) Secondary containment for remots fill-pipes assaciated with Category-A
and Category-B systems.

£ = Pollutant storage tanks and small diameter piping protected from
corrosion on or before June 30, 1992, and all manifolded piping, shall be upgraded with
secondary containment.

F=

(1)  Storage tank systems, excluding vehicular fuel petroleum storage tank
systems, shall be upgraded with spill containment, dispenser liners (as applicable), and
overfill protection.

(2) Unless contained within secondary containment, swing-
joints and flex-connectors that are not protected from corrasion shall be protected from
corrosion. Facilities that have pressurized small diameter piping and that have not met
the foregoing standard on or before July 13, 1998 shall protect the submersible turbine
pump from corrosian or provide corrosion protection for the submersible turbine pump if
the pump is not installed within secondary containment. Corrosion protection is not
required for the submersible turbine pump riser.

L=

(1)  Category-A USTs and their integral piping systems that contain vehicular
fuel, and that are not protected from corrosion, shall have secondary containment, or
be upgraded with secondary containment in accordance with Rule 62-761.500, F.A.C.

(2) Dispenser liners and overfill protection equipment shall be installed at
UST Category-A systems containing vehicular fuel.

O = UST Category-A vehicular fuel storage tank systems subject to Chapter
17-61, F.A.C.,(1984), shall be retrofitted for corrosion protection.

S = Secondary containment for storage tanks and integral piping not protected

from corrosion.

Effective 7-13-98
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DEP 1998 PETROLEUM STORAGE SYSTEMS 62-761

(3) Aboveground storage tank systems.

(a)  All storage tank systems with tanks having capacities greater than 550
gallons that contain vehicular fuel and that were subject to Chapter 17-61, F.A.C., shall
have met the requirements of such chapter by January 1, 1990,

(b)  AST Category-B tanks, with the exception of tanks exempt under Rule 62-
761.500(3)(c)1., F.A.C., installed or constructed at a facility after March 12, 1991, shall
have secondary containment for the tank.

(c) Integral piping that is in contact with the soil and that is connected to AST
systems shall have secondary containment if installed after March 12, 1991. For
integral piping that is exempt under Rule 62-761.500(4)(e)4., F.A.C., it is not required
to install secondary containment,

(d) - By January 1 of the appropriate year shown in Table AST below, unless
specified otherwise, all AST Category-A and Category-B storage tank systems shall
meet the following requirements or be permanently closed in accordance with Rule 62-
761.800(3), F.A.C.

TABLE AST
Year Tank or
Integral Piping
Installed 1993 2000 2005 2010
+Before July 13, P TVX w U
1998
Key to Table AST

P = With the exception of high viscosity bulk product piping, bulk product piping in
contact with soil and not in secondary containment shall be tested in accordance with AP|
RP 1110, ASME B31.4, or an equivalent method approved by the
Department in accordance with Rule 62-761.850, F.A.C. Such testing shall be performed
annually thereafler. *

T=

(1)  With the exception of siting and material construction standards, Category-A
and Category-B systems shall meet the performance standards of Rule 62-761.500, F.A.C.
In addition:

(a) Storage tank system construction standards that include cathodic protection
remain applicable; and

(b)  Storage tanks where the entire bottom of the tank is in contact with concrete
do not have to seal the concrete beneath the tank until such time that the tank bottom is

Effective 7-13-98
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replaced. However, concrete secondary containment systems designed in accordance
with Rule 62-781.500(1)(#)3., F.A.C., do not have to be sealed,

(2) Category-A bulk product piping in contact with the soil shall be upgraded with
secondary containment, unless:

(a) A structural evaluation is performed in accordance with APl §70, as specified
in *U" (2)(b), of Table AST, and results of the structural evaluation indicate that the bulk
product piping has remaining useful life; or

(b)  The integral piping conveys high viscosity regulated substancaes, that are
axampt from secondary containment in accordance with Rule 62-761.500(4)(e) 4., F.A.C.;
or

(¢) The integral piping is protected from corrosion and is tested annually in
accordance with ASME B31.4, APl 1110, or an equivalent method approved by the
Department in accordance with Rule 62-761.850, F.A.C. This piping shall have secondary
containment by January 1, 2010, in accordance with “U" of Table AST.

(3) Initial internal and external inspections, examinations, and tests for each
tank shall be performed in accordance with API Standard 653, and an appropriate
reinspection interval for each tank shall be established in accordance with AP}
Standard 653. If any deficiency is discovered during the inspections, the person
performing the evaluation of the tank in accordance with APl 853 must verify that the
tank is ready for service before the storage tank is put back inta service. This
verification must be documented in the internal inspection records. Future tests for
each tank shall be performed in accordance with the inspection interval established in
accordance with AP) 653 (1996). Baseline inspections already conducted according to
the AP! Standard 653 (1991) will be accepted.

(4) As an alternative to installing secondary containment undemeath an AST
Category-A or Category-B storage tank, the interior bottom of the tank and at least 18
inches up the sides may be internally lined in accordance with AP{ RP 652. Secondary
containment must nonetheless be installed in the dike field area and be continuously
bonded to the perimeter of the tank foundation.

U= :

(1)  Allinternally lined single bottom storage tanks, with the exception of tanks
exempt under Rule 62-761.500(3)(c)1., F.A.C., shall be upgraded with secondary
containment.

(2) All AST Category-A bulk product piping in contact with the soil , except for
piping exempt from secondary containment requirements under Rule 82-
761.500(4)(e)4. F.A.C., shall be:

(a) Upgraded with secondary containment in accordance with Rule 62-
761.500(1)(e), F.A.C.; or

(b) Instead of being upgraded with secondary containment, be evaluated for
structural integrity by:

1. Establishing and maintaining the piping inspection intervals in accordance
with API 570, Section 4-2, by January 1, 2000;

Effective 7-13-98
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DEP 1998 PETROLEUM STORAGE SYSTEMS 62-761
2. Determining the remaining life of the system in accordance with API 5§70,

Section 5.0, by January 1, 2000. if the determination indicates that the piping:

a. Must be repaired, then the piping shall be repaired within three months of
the determination in accordance with APl 570 and Rule 62-761.700, F.A.C;

b. Is leaking, then the piping must be immediately taken out of operation. If
the piping cannot be repaired, it must be ciosed or upgraded with secondary
containment within one year of the determination;

c. Is not leaking, but has corroded to a point where it no longer has
structural integrity, then the piping shall be closed, or upgraded with secondary
containment by January 1, 2000; or

d. Has remaining useful life, then the piping shall be closed or upgraded
with secondary containment when the AP 570 inspection and remaining life
determination data indicates that closure or replacement is necessary.

3. Providing a certification by a professional engineer registered in the State
of Florida that the svaluation meets the above criteria.

V=

(1)  Secondary containment for cut and cover or concrete storage tanks.

(2)  Spill containment in accordance with Rule 62-761.500(1)(c), F.A.C.

(3) Dispenser liners for shop-fabricated tanks in accordance with Rule 62-
761.500(3)(e), F.A.C.

(4) Secondary containment in accordance with Rule 62-761.500(1)(e) and
(3)(c), F.A.C., for dike field areas of facilities with shop-fabricated tanks having dike
field area secondary containment that is constructed of concrete or installed with
synthetic liners not meeting these requirements.

W=

(1)  Secondary containment in accordance with Rule 62-761.500(1)(e) and
(3)(c), F.A.C., for dike field areas of facilities with field-erected tanks having dike field
area secondary containment that is constructed of concrete or installed with synthetic
liners not meeting these requirements.

(2) Secondary containment for small diameter piping extending over surface
waters.

(3) Secondary containment for small diameter petroleum contact water piping
in contact with the soil.

X = Deadline to determine integrity of single wall bulk product piping with an API
570 structural integrity evaluation in accordance with the option for Category-A systems
in “U" of Table AST.

Specific Authority 376.303 FS. Law Implemented 376.303-376.3072 FS. History--New
12-10-90, Amended 5-4-92, Formerly 17-761.510, Amended 9-30-98, 07-13-98.

Effective 7-13-98
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